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IN THE HOUSE.

Thursday, April 10, ;913.
he House met according to ad-
journment and was called to order by
the Speaker.

Prayer by the Rev. Mr. Pinkham of
"Gardiner.

Journal of previous session read and
approved.

Papers from the Senate disposed of
in’ concurrence.

Senate Bills on First Reading.

An Act to appropriate moniss fur
the expenditures of government for
the year 1913, (On motion by Mr.
Thombs of Lincoln the rules were sus-
pended and the bill received its thres
several readings at the present time
and was passed to be engrossed with-
out reference to a committee, in con-
currence with the Senate.)

Resolve providing for the payment
of certain deficiencies accrued prior
to January 1st, 1913. (On motion by
Mr. Connors of Bangor the rules were
suspended and the resolve received ilc
two readings and was passed to be
engrossed without reference to a com-
mittee, in concurrence with the Sen-
ate.)

From the Senate: Report of the
committee of conference on the dis-
agreeing action of the two branches
of the Legislature on bill, An Act rel-
ative to compensation to employes for
personal injuries received in the course
of their employment, and to the pre-
vention of such injuries, reporting that
they cannot agree.

In the Senate that branch voted to
discharge the committee from further
consideration of the measure; in that
branch on further motions the vote
were reconsidered whereby the bill
was passed to be enacted and whera-
by it was passed to be engrossed, an
Senate Amendments O and P were
adopted; further on motion by Sen-
ator Wing the matter was laid upon
the table; the next day on motion
by Senator Wing the bill was taken
from the table, Senate Amendment
Q was adopted, and the bill was pass-
ed to be engrossed as amended by
Senate Amendments O, P and Q; ths
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Senate also voted to insist on its ac-
tion and asked for a new committes
of conference, the President of the
Senate appointing as members of such
committee of conference on the part

‘of the Senate, Senators Wing, Bailey

and Conant.

The question before the House be-
ing concurrent action with the Senate
in the appointment of a new com-
mittee of conference,

Mr. Marston of Skowhegan moved
that the former committee of confer-
ence which has reported that they
cannot agree, be discharged from fur-
ther consideration of the measure,

The motion was agreed to.

Mr. DISCOTEAUX of Biddeford:
Mr. Speaker, would it be in order to
have the amendments printed?

The SPEAKER: The Chair will
state that the amendments could he
printed after action is taken on the
request of the Senate for a new com-
mittee of conference.

Mr. MOOERS of Ashland: Mr
Speaker, if it is in order I will make .
a motion that the House adhere to its
former action.

Mr. MARSTON of Skowhegan: Mr.
Speaker, I will say that there are a
great many opponents of the bill who
are absent at this time, and if the
motion is insisted upon I shall insist
upon the guestion of the presence of
a quorum,; and I will request the
gentleman to withdraw his motion,

on the ground that there is not a
quorum present.
Mr. IRVING of Caribou: Mr.

Speaker, 1 feel that if the members
of the committee of conference un the
part of the Senate had entertained the
amendments' along the lines whicn
they have recommended in the Sen-
ate session, that in all probability the
report of the committee of conference
would have been different from what
it wus. It seems to me now that they
are inclined to meet on a level or to
meet on some proposition nearer to
one in which it may be possible for
the Legislature to create and pass a
bill that will be fairly satisfactory to
all parties. TFor my part, I wish to
say to the members of the House thal
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as far as committees of conference
are concerned, I want no more part
in it on this measure; and the mo-
tion that I shall make, and I wish it
it to be understood that I shall not
be included in the committee of con-
ference if such a committee should be
appointed—I believe this measure to
be an important matter and a matter
that this Legislature ought not to
adopt without sufficient consideration
and deliberation in this body; I be-
lieve it is of sufficient importance to
every member of this Legislature that
it should be followed until we find
something that is satisfactory, if not
in this body and if not in this Legis-
lature, then at some future Legisla-
ture; and I believe that the inguiry
and the research made by this body
should not be lost, and that the bene-
fit of it should be given in some way
to that body which may enact such a
law; and in view of the fact that it
may be possible to meet upon some
plan by which this matter can be per-
fected for the benefit of the employ-
ers and the employes of the State of
Maine; and I move that the Hous2
concur with the Senate in the appoint-
ment of a committee of conference.

The SPEAKER: This motion has
precedence over the motion to ad-
here. Is the House ready for the
guestiion?

A viva voce vote being taken,

The motion was agreed to.

The Speaker thereupon appointed as
such committee of conference on the
part of the House Messrs. Peacock nf
Readfield, Kimball of Bridgton and
Dresser of South Portland.

On motion by Mr. Marston of Skow-
hegan the rules were suspended and
that gentleman was permitted to in-
troduce out of order resolve in favor of
A. E. Haves, for services as assistant
messenger of the House.

On further motion of Mr. Marston
the rules were suspended and the re-
solve received its two readings and
was passed to be engrossed without
reference to a committee.

Orders.

Mr. MOOERS of Ashland presented the

following order:
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OrdereG, whereas the present session
of the Legislature has been protracted
beyond the usual time of adjournment,
and whereas certain cases concerning the

.alleged negiect of various officials to en-

force the prohibitory law have becn
heard by the Legislature, and certain
other cases are pending before the Leg-
islature which will, if heard, occupy con-
siderable further time, and

Whereas it is probable that more of
such cases might properly be brought be-
fore the Legislature,

Be it ordered, the Senate concurring,
that a joint special committee consisting
of three members on the part of the
Senate and seven representatives be se-
lected to investigate tne conditions con-
cerning the enforcement of the prohibi-
tory law throughout the State, and re-
port wueir findings to the Governor of
Maine on or before January l1st next, in
order that he might if he deems it well
to do so, convene the ILegislature in spe-
cial session to act on such report or take
such other action in the premises as he
sees fit; and that the cases now pending
before the Legislature, involving charges
against Adelbert J. Tolman, sheriff of
Knox county, Wilbert W. Emerson, sher-
iff of Penobscot county, Hewitt W. Lowe,
sheriff of Androscoggin county, and Wil-
liam H. Hines, county attorney of An-
droscoggin county, be referred to such
committee; such committee is hereby
given power to summon and require the
attendance of witnesses and cause the
production of books, papers and docu-
ments at such times and places as said
committee may assign therefor upon
proper notice to the persons interested.

On motion by Mr. Newbert of Augusta
the order was laid upon the table.

Passed to Be Enacted.

An act to amend Section 50 of Chapter
51 of the Revised Statutes, as amended
by Chapter 165 of the Public Laws of
1911, relating to the duties of railroad
commissioners.

An act for the better protection of au-
tomobile garage keepers and owners.

Finally Passed.

Resolve in favor of Fred F. Lawrence,
for services as stenographer to the joint
special committee on public utilities,

Resolve in favor of H, D. Maxwell, for
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stenographic services for the committec

on pumiic health,

From the Senate: Report of the com-
mittee on State prison, which was in-
structed by an order of the Legislature
to inquire into the expediency of allow-
ing time convicts in the State prison a
small compensation for their: work and
labor performed while in said prison, re-
porting legislation inexpedient.

The report was accepted in concur-
rence.
From the Senate: Report of the com-

mittee on State prison, which was in-
s.ructed by an order of rthe l.egislature
to investigate the books of account and
financial conditions of the Maine State

Prison, and report at once to this Legis-
lature by bill or otherwise, submitting
report and resolve.

The report was accepied in concur-

rence.

Accompanying the report of the com-
mittee on State prison was resolve for
the payment of debts of the Maine State
Prison.

In the Senate the resolve received its
two readings and was passed to be en-
grossed under a suspension of the rules.

On motion by Mr. Sturgis of Auburn
the resolve received its two readings and
was passed to be engrossed without ref-
erence to a committee, under a suspen-
sion of the rules.

TFrom the Senate: An act to amend
Section two of Chapter 250 of the Pub-
lic Laws cf 1909, relating to the payment
of fees accruing to State institutions and
departments.

In the House this bill was passed to be
enacted, as amended by House Amend-
ment A, and came from the Senate in
that branch amended by Senate Amend-
ment A.

On motion by Mr. Higgins of Brewer,
under a suspension of the rules, the
votes were reconsidered whereby this bill
was passed to be enacted and whereby
it was passed to be engrossed.

Senate Amendment A was then adopt-
ed in concurrence, and on further motion
by Mr. Higgins the bill was passed to
be engrossed as amended by House
Amendment A and Senate Amendment A.

185

Mr. BOMAN of Vinalhaven: Mr. Speak-
er, I :will ask if the report of the com-
mittee on State prison will be printed.

THE SPEAKER: The Chair will state
that the rules do not provide for the
printing of such a report.

Mr. Boman then moved that the report
of the committee on State prisoan be
printed.

The motion was agreed to.
At this point the Senate came in and
a joint convention was formed.

In Convention.
The convention was called to order by
the President of the Senate.
THE PRESIDENT: The secretary will
call the roll of the convention.

_PRESENT:—Sen. Allan of Washington,
Sen. Allen of Kennebec, Allen of Ma-
chias, Sen. Bailey, Bass, Benn, Benton,
Bither, Boland, Boman, Bowler, Sen.
Boynton, Bragdon of Sullivan, Bragdon
of York, Brennan, Bucklin, Sen. Bur-
leigh, Butler, Sen. Chase, Churchill,
Clark of New Portland, Cochran, Nen.

Colby, Sen. Cole, Sen. Conant, Connors,
Cook, Crowell, Currier, Cyr, Davis, Des-
coteaux, Doherty, Dunbar, Dunton, Dur-
gin, Eastman, Eaton, Eldridge, Ellioit,
Estes, Farnham, Farrar, Folsom,
Franck, Gallagher, Gamache, Goodwin,
Gordon, Greenleaf of Auburn, Greenleaf

of utisfield, Sen. Hagerthy, Haines, Han-
cock, Harman, Harper, Harriman, Has-
kell, Sen. Hastings, Sen. Hersey, Hig-
gins, Hutchins, Irving, Jenkins, Jen-
nings, Sen. Jillson, Johnson, Jones, Ke-
hoe, Kimball, Leary, Libby, Marston,
Mason, Sen. Maxwell of Sagadahoe,
Maxwell of Boothbay Harbor, McBride,
McTadden, Merrill, Mildon, Sen. Milli-
ken, Mitchell of Kittery, Mitchell of New-
port, Sen. Morey, Morgan, Morrison,
Morse, Sen. Murphy, Newbert, Nute,
(' Connell, Sen. P’ackard of Knox, Pack-
ard of Newburg, Sen. I’atten of Hancock,
Peacock, Peaks, Pendleton, Peters, DPe-
terson, Pitcher, Putnam, Sen. reynolds
of Kennebec, Reynolds of Lewiston, Sen.
Richardson of Penobscot, Richardson of

Canton, Roberts, Robinson, Rousseau,
Sanborn, Sanderson, Sargent, Sherman,
Skelton, Skillin, Sen. Smith of Penob-

scot, Smith of Auburn, Smith of Patten,

Smith of Presque 1Isle, Snow, Spencer,
Sen. Stearns, Stevens, Stuart, Sturgis,
Swift, Taylor, Thombs, Tobey, Trimble,
Tryon, Umphrey, Violette, Sen. Walker,
Washburn, Waterhouse, Wheeler, Win-
chenbaugh, Sen. Wing, Wise, Yeaton.

ABSENT:—Austin, Brown, Chadbourne,
Chick, Sen. Clark of York, Clark of Port-

land, Donovan, Dresser, Sen. Dutton,
FEmerson, Sen. Emery, Sen. Flaherty,
Gardner, Hodsdon, Hogan, Kelleher ot

Portland, Kelleher of Waterville, Lawry,
Leader, LeBel. Leveille, Sen. Mansfield,
Mathieson, Maybury, Metcalf, Mooers,
Morneau, Sen. Moulton, Plummer, Price,
Quinn, Ramsay, Ricker, Rolfe, Scates
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Smith of DPittsfield, Sprague, Stanley.
Stetson, Swett, Thompson, Twombly.

The PRESIDENT: A call of the roll
discloses the presence of 139 members
of the convention. Before reading the
resolve under which this convention is
formed the presiding officers desire to
express to the convention their appre-
ciation of the attendance and devotion
to duty under difficulties that the mem-
bers of this convention have shown in
the cases that lhave heen heard. We
personally realize that every member
of the convention is giving his attend-
ance here at the cost of personal incou-
venience and the sacrifice of husiness
interests; and we think it is due to you
to understand that we appreciate it, and
we helieve the people of the State ap-
preciate it We wish to assure vou that
the presiding officers, and they have the
assurance of the co-operatien of coun-
gel, will do evervthing in their power
to gee that these hearvings to come ave
put before yvou expeditiously, and witl
make the situation as casy for the mem-
bers of the convention as possible; and
we (rust that now, after a few hours'
rest, we shall all tanke a new grip upon
our courage and show the same patience
and devotion to duty that we have
shown, and hope that in that way we
may get through with what remains to
bhe done in a very few days.

The secretary of the convention will
read the resolve under which this con-
vention is formed.

(The secretary then read the resolve
in favor of the adoption of an address
to the Governor for the removal of Wil-
bert W. Emerson, sheriff for the county
of Penobscot.)

The PRESIDENT:
now be entered.

Appearances may

ATTORNEY GENERAL WILSON:
For the purpose of presenting the evi-

dence in support of the causes asgssign-
ed the secretary of the convention may
enter upon the record with the name of
the attorney general the names of Ben-
jamin F. Cleaves and George E. Emery

of Biddeford and A. L. Blanchard of
Bangor.
Mr. CHARLES J. DUNN: Mr. Pre<i-

dent, the respondent is present with his
counsel, Hon. Louis C. Stearns, George
E. Thompson and myself. And by way
of answer to the charges preferred, he
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makes a general denial, all of which it
is respectfully requested may be entered
upon the records of the convention.

The PRESIDENT: The secretary will
enter the appearances of counsel upon
both sides as requested, and the secre-
tary will also enter a general denial.
The secrcta..ry will now read the rules
of the convention.

(The secretary then read the rules
of the convention, being similar to the
rules found on Page 1485 of the Leg-
islative Record.)

The PRESIDIENT:  Are there any mo-
tions to be made by counsel?

JUDGI STEARNS: We have no mo-
tions, Mr. President.

The 3 LESIDENT: The
aeneral may then proceed.

The following opening statement in
behalf of the prosccution was then made
by M. Cleaves:

M
convention:

attorney

President and gentlemen of the
If T am unusually brief in

calling vour attention to some of the
things with reference to Penobscot
county you will, T think, understand

that it is in the interest of promptness
rather than on account of a lack of
material.  This case, so far as Penob-
scot county is concerned, and so far as
tlie investigation by the attorney gen-
cral and his assistants has developed,
is no different from the cases already
heard, excepting that the present re-
spondent has only been in office since
the first day of January; otherwige I
think we shall demonstrate that the
case in Penobscot county is just exactly
the same as it wag in the case of Cum-
berland county, and more flagrant than
it was even in the case of Sagadahoc.

We shall call your attention to the
payment of 97 straight liquor taxes in
the city of Bangor alone, something like
140 or more, as my recollection is now,
in the entire county; we shall call your
attention to the various places through
witnesses rather than by my designa-
tion, and to the fact that ever since the
first day of January and up to so re-
cent a period as last Saturday morn-
ing, liguor was as openly sold in the
city of Bangor as were groceries or any
legitimate commodities. Stocks of all
kinds up to a week ago, last Friday, af-
ter the message from the Governor came
to this Legislature were in these va-
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.
rious and many bar rooms in the city of
Bangor, stocks of goods which were un-
usually large, unusually large I think
even for Bangor, displayved so openly
that in many of the places to which your
attention will be called there was no
attempt made at concealment between
the strecet and the bar, excepting the
door which you had to open in order
to get in, and whenever the door was
opened and a person went in or came
out. such was the openness and the
flagrancy of the violations of law which
weer constant and continuous, that the
people passing along the strect not only
could see but did sec many people in the
act of drinking intoxicating .iquors.
Until a week ago, last Friday, ale up-
on draught was the rule, and we think
we shall be able to show you directly

and directly connecct the sheriff with
the order to shut off at that time ale
on draught. A great many places did

shut off at that time; some did not, and
as I say, as recently as last Saturday
morning, after the resolve had heen
presented and after one sheriff of this
State had been placed upon his trial and
the trial of another was then going on

for the very offense charged in this
resolve, ale upon draught was heing

sold openly in the city of Bangor.

T have said, gentlemen, that this case
differs from the othiers only in the re-
spect that the present sheriff was not
his own successor in the office, and in
fairness to him and to this body T feel
it my duty to say that if Sheriff mer-
son had shown during thesce three
months any decent effort to enforce the
prohibitory law, the attorney general
and his assistants, as well as you,
would have felt that he was entitled to
at least a reasonable and decent oppor-
tunity to relieve conditions which per-
haps had existed before his time; and
if that were the case I would state it to
you fairly; but such evidence as comes
to us indicates that there has been no
change, and as one of the evidences of
that absence of change we shall cail
vour attention to the many, many bar
rooms that have been openly run in the
city of Bangor and to the fact that dur-
ing all of that time vast quantities of
intoxieating liquors of all kinds, includ-
ing beer in barrels, have been not only
shipped into the c¢ity of Bangor but in
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S0

daylight through the public streets:
that our evidence shows that upon one
occasion the police patrol wagon was
held up, and I am not sure that the am-

bulance ever had to give way to beer
wagon; but it has been openly hauled

through the public streets and backed
up to the doors of the well-known places,
and practically no effort made to sup-
press that practice.

In addition to that. there have been
about 30 efforts, so far as the recordsz
of the court disclose, in the form of com-
plaints and warrants and attempts to
seize during the 90 days that have
clapsed since the first day of January.
T think you will he satisfied and amply
satisfied that there has heen no day dur-
ing that 90 days but what the sheriff of

Penobscot county could have made double

that number of seizures within the city
of Bangor alone; and wce call your par-
ticular attention to the absence of rey
apparent effort, persistent, continued and
continuous effort to close up these places
and relieve the condition and the situ-
ation which have cxisted there.

Now, we have had put upon the wall
here a4 map or plan-—and by the way, per-
haps T ought to call your attention to
the fact that the DLlue part of the plan
represents water, and 1 call your atten-
tion to that now because perhaps water
won’t be mentioned again during this
hearing. (Laughter.) The red marks
upon the plan might indicate at a dis-
tance that they were seals and have 1
legality, rather than the opposite. My
interpretation of it is that they show a
consideration moving from one party to
the other; and practically they repre-
sent various places in the city of Ban-
gor, within that portion or district of
tne city where we shall give you some
evidence with reference to each place of
violations of either the prohibitory law
or the law ‘with reference to the mainte-
nance of houses of ill fame. Among the
particular places to which we wish to
call your attention would he those lead-
ing from the railroad station, shown here
in the region of Iixchange street, places
which have been open and notorious:
the same is true in reference to this sec-
tion swhich I indicate with my pointer,
one of which is a shsck that was built
very shortly after the time of the nig
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fire irn Bangor, and consists merely of a
rough board place that has nothing and
never had anything in it but a bar. It
is not fitted up as well as some that we
shall call your attention to, but it is a
place where intoxicating liquors have
been so openly sold that people coming
down the declivity or standing upon tlie
steps above have been able to tell and
will testify to the continuons and open
violations of the prohibitory law.
These other two places, the Jameson
place and the other one which I do not
recall by name, are nothing but bar
rooms, and you will have a description
given to you of these places, and of the
furnishings which will equal, if not ex-
cel the description o that in some of
the places in Portland. Another place
in that locality is what we may call a
gem of a bar, small but elegant, with
a marble top to it, and violations of law
are open and flagrant there. In this re-
gion about Pickering and Haymarket
Squares, all these places are open and
notorious ligquor saloons. This locality
is a particularly notorious place, where
the violations are and have been very
flagrant. Down in this locality where
I am indicating is a section known us
the Devil’'s Half Acre. I shall not need
to say anything about that, but the tes-
timony will prove that the name is well
applied. I think, briefly, that is enough
to call your attention to the salient and
particular features so that you may fully
understand the evidence as it comes in.

Mr. William ¥E. Southard, having been
duly sworn, testified as follows:

Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. Your name is William E. Scuth-
ard? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you are a civil engineer of
Bangor? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And did you prepare the plan and
map which appear at the rear of the
House? A. 1 did.

Q. Was that drawn to an actual scale?
A. It was copied from records in the
city engineer’'s office, yes, sir.

Q. Have you placed upon that map in
red ink or some red substance the vari-
ous places to which your attention was
called and which you 'were requested to
place upon the map? A. I have,
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Q . And are those places located with
approximate correctness upon the streets
and where they appear to be? A. Thay
are.

Q. The scale of the map is indicated
upon it, one inch equal to 40 feet? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. And by the scale upon that map
one inch to 40 feet distances between any
points can be very readily ascertained?
A, Yes, gin

Cross- Examination.

By JUDGE STEARNS.

Q. You live in Bangor? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you lived there?
A, Since 1899.

Q. Did you enter ail those places you
have marked upon the map, enter the
buildings where the marks are placed
representing shops? A. No, sir. Not
any of them.

Q. Who pointed them out to you? A.
I located 52 of them from my—well,
from travelling around Bangor and whar
T noticed, and from the outside appear-
ance, and then I gave the small plan to

a gentleman and he went out and
brought in 16 additional.
Q. Did you =ee Luose 16 additinonal

ones? A,
Yes, sir.
Q. On the face of the earth? A. Yes,
sir.
Q. Or .id you take their word? A. I
Iccated them on the face of the earth.
Q. But you entered none of them? A,
No, sir,

I located them aflerwards.

Mr. C. I, OWEN, having been duly
sworn, testified as follows:

Examination by Judge CLEAVES.

Q. Your name is C. E. Owen? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. You are a resident of Water-
ville? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you in your possession
and before you an examined transcript
of the record of internal revenue taxes
for liquor dealers in the county of
Penobscot, which you have personally
examined? A. I have.

Q. And how recently did you make
that examination for the purpose of
additions or corrections? A. The last
addition was made on the second day
of April.
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Q. So that it is corrected up to
April 2nd? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you read the list of those
people in Bangor who pay a retail li-
quor dealers’ tax? A. The names of
the persons or of the places, or both?

Q. I think you may read the names
and the places. A. I may not be able
to pronounce these names, but I will
do the best I can. AuCoin, Camille,
11 Union street, Stanley House. Paul
AuCoin, 215 Broad street. Michael J.
Buckley, Queen Street Hotel. Williaw
Bureau, 46 May street. John Burke,
225  Broad street. Buckley Druz
Company, James I, Buckley, Proprie-
tor, 27 Hammond street., John A,
Burns, 181 Exchange street. Leo J.
Buckley, 113 Exchange street. Odilon
Burdreau, 11 Broad street. J. W.
Cratty, 37 Harlow street. Richard I
Crows, Pickering square. P. H.
Connors, 137 Proad street, A. M. Cox,
75 Pickering square. Viector H. Chai-
sun, 91 Exchange street. Curtis &
Tupper, 5 Hammond street. Daniel O.

53

Cannon, 114 Haymarket square, John
. Daley, 108 Pickering syuare. Cor-
nelius Donovan, 31 Hodgdon strect.

John P. Delaney, Exchange street. W,
A, Davis, 33 Pine street. N. H. Davis,
35 Andrew  Erickson,

Kiks Club of Ban-
Main street. Es-
Pharmacy Company, 125 State
John D. Troley, 106 Pickering
H. 8. Fifield, 263 Main street.
Edward Toley, 126 Third
John P. TFrawley, 73 Main
Maurice P. Gallagher, 29 Wa-
James A. Given, 111 Ex-
John H. Gordon, 223
Daniel H. Golden, 221

T Broad streef.

«

35 Front street.
)

=4
sex
street.

s(uare.
Thomas
street,

street,

ter street.
change street.
Broad street,

yr, Club building,

Broad street. Samuel Ginsberg, 21
French street. Willlam Goodson, 40
May street. Patrick F. Grozan, 20
Harlow street. John C. Hurley, 171

lxchange street. James P. Holland, 41
Pickering square. Louis H. Hann, 18
Hammond street. Fred T. Hall & Co.,
202-206 Exchange street. M. J. Hen-

nessey, 33 Hancock street, Tssie M.
Harmon, Maplewood Park. Mrs. Pat-
rick Igo, 329 Main street. John M.
Jameson, 228 Harlow street. Joseph

40 Hammond street
20 Central street.

D. M. Jameson,
I'rederick Johnson,
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M. C. Konaley, 365 Main street. M. J.
Kelley, 14 Haymarket square. Pat-
rick J. Lousy, 27 Union street. Frank

T. Largay, 92 Washington street, Riv
erside Hotel. James Leeman, 76 Han-
cock street, Frank Lasier, 27 TUnion
street. James J. McCann, 87 Picker-
ing square. William McGuire, $2 Pick-
ering square. T. P. McAloon, 80
Pleasant street. John E. Mitchell, 207
Broad street. E. F. McHugh, 83
Pickering square. Charles H. Milaaq,

139 Main street. FKugene McCarthy,
12 French, Waverly House. Peter W.

Morrill, 494 South Main street. A, A.
Meclntire, 197 Exchange street. J. F.
Morris, 124 Haymarket square. Del-
nis McGuire, Eagle House. Patrick

H. McNamara, 73 Exchange street, P.
J. McAuley, 17 Franklin street. Peter
Mogan, 16 Union street. P, A. Mc-
Namara. 91 York street. John Me-
Aloon, French street, Hotel Royal.
Michael Meclnnis, Railroad street,
Brunswick House. Moon & Cratty,
place not given. Reginald McDougal,
16 Hodgdon street. TPope McKennoi,
Globe Hotel, Henry K. Priest, 215 Har-
low street. The Pastime Cluh, &9
Main street, Ross Bottling Works,
178-175 Broad street. Elie Richards.
140 Hancock street. Joseph Rich, 236
Hancock street, Nicholas Rogeis, 270
Hancock street. John H. Russell, 20
Fxchange street., John H. Sullivan,
154 Main street. Roger Staples, 386
Central street. William M. Smith, 23
Hancock street. John H. Shannon, 123
Broad street. (. (., Smith, 499 Main
street. Alex Savoy, 203 Broad street.
The CCaldwell Sweet Company, 26
Main street. George W, Townsend,
Stillwater avenue, Townsend House.
Hugh F. Thompson, 28 Hodgdon street.
Edmond Tardiff, 89 Exchange street.
P. W. Towle, 9% York street. Chris
Toole, Saint James Hotel. Tarratine
Club, Club House. Fred D. Wyman,
81 Exchange street. Fred White, Han

cock and Oak streets, Willlam A,
Withie, 153 Broad street. Louis Ja-
cobson, 227 Broad street.

Q. How many does that make that
pay a liquor dealers’ tax? A. Ninety-
seven.

Q. How many wholesalers among

that number? A. Six.
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Q. Are there any wholesale malt lig-
uor dealers? A. Five.

Q. Have you a similar list of Old
"Town corrected to the same date?
A. T have.

Q. Will you read the list of licenses
in Old Town? A. William Bernier, Cen-
ire street; J. P. Beaulieu, South Side
Tnion street; Joseph St. Beaulieu, Union
street; B. E. Boucher, Water street, New
Era Restaurant; H. M. Burnham, Main
street, drug store; Fred Bell, Commer-
cial hotel; John English, Water street;

Joseph Cotter, Main street; Talien Du-
mont, 14 Water street; Fred English,
Bosworth street; John L. Ferguson,

Commercial Hotel: Alex Fraser, Water
street, City Hotel; J. Millie Fisher, Old

Town Exchange; Joseph H. Grover,
Center street, west end of Dbridge;
Mitchell Groneau, Water street, City

Hotel; William Green, Main street, Old
Towm Exchange; Joseph F. Heald &
Co., Crock Hotel, Water street; Louis
Jam, Polk gtore, west side Main street;
M. A. Kane, The Willows, Court street;
J. F. Kennedy, Sherry Place, west side
Water street; Fred HE. lL.ovejoy, Main
street. That, however, is a malt ligquor
license, and should not have been read.
Josian Mishou, Cousins Hotel; W. Clem-
ent Mutty, Main and Court streets, Mut-

ty's pharmacy; A. G. Perry, Water
street, Riverside ITouse; P. H. Shea,
Water street; Joe J. Saindon, Water

street: Mike Sherry, Water street, Sher-
ry's store; Omar St. Louis, east side
Front street: Paul and Sophia Thibo-
deau, Front street. That completes the
list for Old Town.

Q. How many in that Ilist at Old
Town? A. Retail liquor dealers in 0ld
. Town, 29.

Q. Any wholesalers among that list?
A. Two wholesale liquor dealers.

Q. And any wholesale malt ligquor
dealers? A. No.

Q. Have you a
A. I have.

Q. Read that list, please. A. Leon
A. Boynton, 23 North Main street; Wil-
lis G. Barker, 103 Center street; the
Merrill Lrug Co., 204 Penobscot square;
T. A. Seymour, 554 South Main street.

list for Brewer?

Those arec all in Brewer proper. There
are some in South Brewer.

Q. You win read those, please.
A. Joseph F. Cluett, 19 King street;
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William Andrew Kiah, 15 Oak strect.
That, however, is a malt liquor tax.
Fred Succe, 23 1-2 Oak street; ¥Fred D.
Wyman, 557 South Commercial street.
charge of the work.

Q. Have you a similar list with ref-
erence to Dexter and Lincoln, is theve
any such list? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you read the Dexter list first?

A. George E. Brewster, Main street;

D. M. Cleveland, Exchange Hotel; Al-
hert L. Davis, DMain street, Blithier
block; W. L. Davis, Dexter House;

George Ranco, Church street; W. T.
Springall, 14 Main street.

Cross-Examination.

By Judge STEARNS.
Q. Mr. Owen, did you make personal
visits to Portsmouth to get this informa-

tion? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you examined the books vour-
self? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When were you there last?

A. The 2nd day of April.

Q. You have no means of knowing,
I suppose, how many of those licenses
were issued to apothecaries or drug

stores? . They are not indicated on
the books.
Mr. ARTHUR L. THAYER, having

been duly sworn, testified as follows:
¥xamination by Judge CLIEAVES.

Q. What ig your full name? A,
thur 1. Thayer.

Q. You are an attorney at law? A. T
am.

Q. And practice in Bangor? A. I do.

Q. And for how many vears?
A. Since a year ago last IFebruary.

Q. Now since the first day of Jan-
uary, this year, have you made any
personal investigation and observation
in regard to the sale of intoxicating
liguor in the city of Bangor? A. I
have.

Ar-

Q. Will you state your investigation
to the convention, mentioning places
where you went and what you saw at
each place and about the time, speaking
s0 that everyone can hear. A. Soon
after the first of the year, when Sher-
iff Emerson came in, he made, as I re-
member, several search and seizures.
I was out of town and came back and
heard about it and was interested to
know what he was actually doing, and T
took particular pains, the latter part of
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the afternoon and in the evening to
go about the city of Banfor and the
places that I knew where liguor had
been previously sold, to sece if it was
true. - I found that most of the places,
that evening, were closed. Very few of
the places where they had been selling
previous to that day were open. The
next week I took particular pains, after
conversation in regard to the matter,
to go around again to see what the
change had been. HKvery place that I
visited, and I visited about 25, the fol-
lowing week, was open, and men were
drinking in every place that T visited;
liquor was on the shelves in practically
every saloon, and in most of them you
could see the ligquor from the streets
through the swinging doors.

Q. Just let me interrupt you a mo-
ment. Were those places to which you
have called attention on some of the
principal streets of Bangor? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. And where people were almost mo-
mentarily passing along the sidewalk?
A. Continually.

Q. And if I understood you correctly,
when a person went in or out of those
places so that the door was momenta-
city open, the conditions were such that
you, standing on the sidewalk, could
see in and see the parties drinking some
sort of liguor and see the display of
liquor and bottles plainly exhibited on
or about the bar? A, Yes, sir, and
yvou could also see into each one of those
saloons. There is generally when you
enter a cigar stand—some of the places
are restaurants—and back of the cigar
stand there is a place where they go
through to the room where the liguor
is kept, and in many saloons that door
is kept open so that you can see from
the street the bottles on the shelves
and see the people drinking. And in
one or two, the windows are so arranged

that you can see the bottles on the
through the windows.

Q. When was this time? A. In
January.

Q. What part of January? A. The

early part. 'The week after the raid.
Q. Now will you designate Wwhere
some of those places were, and let me
point them out so that you will not have
to leave the witness stand? A. You
begin on Harlow street. The first is a
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shack; that is the only thing it was
built for, a liquor saloon, and that has
a window so that you can see the men
drinking and see the bottles displayed
as you go down the street. The next
one is one of the best in Bangor, and
that has been open and was open while
I was in Bangor.

Q. This place next to the shack, if T
understoed you ecorrectly, was open
when you left Bangor, yesterday, or
how recently have you seen it open? A.
Day before yesterdayv.

Q. Will you describe the interior of
this place? Is that the Jameson place?
A. I think so. Put T do not know the
owner of any.

Q. Thig is next to the
Yes, sir.

Q. And so that the convention may
hear each word, will you describe that
place? A. This is a new brick build-
ing that has been erected since the fire
aud the entire lower floor was usad
for beer. As you enter, there is a place
{for cigars on the left, and a plate glass
window and a door occupies the entire
front of the building. That floor is used
for the saioon. As you enter, I should
say abeut 15 feet from the door is a
swinging door in @ partition that di-
vides the saloon from the cigar part.
The saloon part is as well furnished
as any I ever saw in Roston or New
York for the size of it. When I was in
there in January, the shelves back of
the bar contained bottles of whiskey,
cocktails, and other ingredients used
in mixing drinks. When I was there,
Saturday and last Tuesday, they con-
tained pop beer and ginger ale. The
hard stuff was not apparent. As you
go in, the bar is on the left, and it is
of splendid bard wood, looks like ma-
hogony with a nice brass rod around it.
On the right is a table and, last Sat-
urday and Monday, that table contain-
ed about seven different kinds of things
like salted crackers and pretzels, that
would tend to create an appetite for
strong drinks like those usually sold in
liguor saloons.

Q. Now while we are upon this
Jameson matter, since that time in
January, early in January, when you
say you went about after raids, have
you been into that place and seen any
intoxicating liquors being sold? A. T

shack? A
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was in that place, last Saturday, about
12 o’cleck, and I saw about 10 men.
There were from 8 to 10 men. Every
man was drinking. And at the same
time, I procured a half pint bettle of
whiskey.

@. From that place? A.
rlace.

Q. And upon last Saturday, did you
see the evidence of any watchers any-

From that

where? A. There were none when I
was there.
Q. And was the door locked or un-

locked
open.

Q. Open? A. Open.

Q. And these men who were in there
you say were drinking some sort of a
liquid? A. They were. The Adifferent
men were drinking different liquids.
Some of them were pouring liquor—
when a man would order whiskey, they
would put the hottle on the table and
he would Leip himself. It was in bot-
tles marked ‘“whiskey,” looked like
whiskey, it certainly simelled like whis-
key.

Q. Omn any other occasions since the
first of Jaruary, and last Saturday,
have you been in that same place? A,
I have.

Q. Now will you give the convention
an idea whether you were there in the
moath of March, thig vear? Al 1
couldn’'t say definitely, that I was there
during that month.

Q. Were you either in February or
March? A. I was in there in February.

Q. Now upon that occasion what did
you notice in regard to the presence of
intexicating liguors, and what can you
<ay as to whether people, while you
were there, asked for anything and
were served? A. While T was there,
there were—in February, the particu-
lar occasion I refer to, there were 1T
should think about 15 people in the
room and every man was drinking
some sort of liguid.

Q. Did you see any of them drink-
ing out of small glasses? A. Yes, I
did.

Q. Did you hear anyone call for any
particular liquor? A. T did.

Q. What did vou hear them call for?
A. 1 heard them call for whiskey and
beer. Those are the only two that I
remember distinctly.

2. And was there at that time any

as you approached? A. Wide

e
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open display of liquors in the barroom?
A, There was on the shelf.

Q. Now upon last Saturday, when
you made this purchase of a half pint
of Nyuor and heard others call for and
be served with whiskey, where did the
bartender procure the bottle or bottles
from which Le served you and the oth-
ers? A. Underneath the shelves over
which the mirrcr is are cupboards and
e took the bottles as he opened these
cupboard docrs, they were fvll of bot-
tles of different sorts, marked whis-
key of diijerent kindsg, and it was from
cne of the cupboards near the center
of thig set of cupboards that he took
this bottle of whiskey.

Q. So that the change which you no-
ticed, early in January and last Satur-
day, was that the liquors which had
veen openly displayed upon the shelvesz
adjacent to the bar had been from that
place removed and put in these cup-
boards just below? A. They bhad.

Q. With that exception did vou no-
tice any change in that particular
place? A. I did not.

Q. XNow will you state some other
place that you visited and designate?

4. The best place is the Manhattan
Cafe between State Street and York
strect, where your pointer is now
placed.

Q. Did you visit that in January?
A, T did.

Q. Describe it as it then existed?
A. The Manhattan Cafe is different
from most of the bars in Bangor, in
that the front part of it 1s a very good
restaurant, one of the best in Ban-
gor, and it is probably 25 feet from
the door as vou enter the Manhattan
Cate back to the swinging doors that
divides the Cafe part, the food part,
from the drink part, and as you enter
from the doors into the place where
the liguor is sold, the bar is on the
right and it is a much shorter bar
than in most of the saloons in Ban-
gor, but a much better one having a
marble top and a better brass rail and
a, better mirror. In January and part
of February—I didn’t visit this after
February—there was liquor displaved
on the shelves behind this bar and
last Saturday when I secured a pint
bottle of whiskey at thig bar, there
were no bottles displayed, no bottles
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of liquor displayed cn the shelves of
this bar. The bottles were similar to
those in the other saloons. Simply
pop and light soft drinks.

Q. Now you say you did upon Sat-
urday last call for and procure a
pint of whiskey from this Manhattan
Caf=? A. I did.

Q. And where did the bartender get
the supply from? A. When I went
into the cafe, T asked him for a pint
Of a certain kind of whiskey. He said
I would have to wait a moment. I
waited and he went downstairs
through a door to the left as I en-
tered the salcon and in a few mo-
ments he returned with a basket, I
should sayv hold about a bushel, filled
with bottles of various kinds, and on
the top of these bottles was the bot-

le that I procured, a pint bottle of
very good whiskey—a half-pint bot-
tle of very good whiskey.

Q. With the exception of this

bushel which you saw last Saturday

Q. What, if any, display of liquors
that you saw in that place? A. XNo
I @id not because they took the bot-
tles in this bar from underneath, from
what would be the front bar as we
stand here (indicating) the bottles
were taken from down under here, in-
stead of back there,

Q. At that time, last Saturday, did
you see customers being served with
hard liquors which were obtained from
hottles just behind the top of the bar?
A. T saw customers served from bot-
tles marked ‘*‘whiskey” and with cull
bottles of beer, and some of them had
mixed drinks of some sort.

Q. Now upon Saturday last in eith-
er the Jameson place or the Manhat-
tan Cafe, how many barkeepers were
there on duty? A. There was one at
the Jameson place and there were
about three at the Manhattan Cafe.

Q. Did they have any
uniform? A. White coats.

Q. And will you mention any other
place that vou made several visits to?
A. The ones that I have made the
most visits to are the Hammond
street, near the corner of Hammond
and Main—T pass that every day I
g0 to the office—

distinctive
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Q. And am I pointing to that place
now? A. You are.

Q. And that is on this plan the
next place to City hall as shown here,
at this mark. A. It isin the building.

Q. And is that known as the Jame-
son place to you? A. It is.

Q. Now when did you visit that
place first this vear? A. 1 visited it
the week following the raid.

Q. And did I understand you,
o daily by that place? A.
day.

Q. Now describe that place as it
existed early in January this year.
A, Thisg is a much smaller plate than
the others and as you enter there is
a very short cigar counter on the left.
The window is decorated similar to
the other windows of the other sa-
loons, or the windows of the other sa-
loong, and then there is a sort of
screen and on the right that comes
nearly across the room but there is
no swinging door there—there wasn't
when I have been in,—it may have
been barred back, but I saw no swing-
ing door, because the bar is hidden by
this screen that comes nearly across
the room and bhack of that screen,
parallel to the street is a short bar.
And whenever I have been in there up
until last Saturday there were alwals
bottles of whiskey and other liquors
in plain sight.

Q. And upon last Saturday, what
change if any did you notice? A. I
could not get any there last Saturday.

Q. Was the place open? A. It was
open and men were drinking but they
hadn’t what I wanted.

Q. Did you hear any perscn call for
any liquor while you were in last Sat-
urday? A. XNo, I did not.

Q. But you s=saw them drinking
some sort of liquids, and you called
for some particular thing and thev
didn’t have it? A. I did, and T saw
them drinking what was to me whis-
key, lecoked to me like whiskey.

Q. Out of small glasses? A.
of small glasses—a small glass of li-
quid and a glass of water with it

Q. And did you see the bottle from
which that was poured? A. I did not.

Q. Now upon other occasions dur-
ing the present year when you have

you
Every

Out
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been in there or by there, what do you
say in regard to a bartender, or bar-
tenders, whether they had any, if so,
how many, and how they were
dressed? A. Why they have ulways
had one or two whenever I have bheen
in there. Sometime they have had ou
a white coat, and other times, simply
dressed in ordinary uniform.

Q. XNow at both the Jameson place
on Harlow and the Jameson place on
Hammon street, corner of Main, up to
your visit last Saturday, have you
seen ale on draught? A, There was
ale on draught in the one on Harlow
street when I was in there in Janu-
ary. The other one I haven’t seen ale
drawn., I don't know whether there
is ale drawn back there or not.

Q. You have gone back and forth
daily by this Jameson place—what
have you observed, if anything, from
the street as you have gone back and
forth? A. Well, the most noticeabl:
thing I have observed is a very strong
odor of intoxicating liquor as I have
passed the door.

Q. And has that been continuous or
occasional? A. Well it depended on
whether the wind was blowing or
whether it was a quiet day or not, but
as a rule you can smell liquor when
yvou pass that door.

Q. Now what have you noticed if
anything in regard to people in con-
siderable numbers congregating there,
noises, if any, that you have heard
frem within, and whether their condi-
tion was Iintoxicated or otherwise as
yvou have seen them? A, Well, I have
seen g great many people go in and
out there and at times the room seems
to be filled with men as you pass and
there is always more or less—I
wouldn't say always—there is at times
more or less what appears to he
gambling, dice throwing and card
playing on the counter outside »f the
bar part.

Q. Now will you mention another
place? A. There is a place on Frank-
lin street, way up between Hammond
and— .

Q. Where I am now pointing? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. And by what name will you des-
ignate that place? Or have you heard
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it designated? A.
name.

Q. We will call it the Pete McAu-
ley place—and I am pointing to the
place that you refer to? A. You are.

Q. Now will you give your experi-
ence in that place during this present
year. A. Well, that place is one that
is as well kept as any of the others.
Instead of the tobacco signs in the
windows, there are nice imitation
palm trees in the outer part, and in
the rear part is a well equipped bare
from which I have had no trouble to
gecure whiskey at any time and I have
never been in there when I haven't
seen other men there and at all times
drinking what appeared to be whis-
key and beer.

Q. Now how recently have you
made a purchase of intoxicating 1li-
quors at the Pete McAuley place? A.
Not since February.

Q. Have you been in there since
February? A. 7Yes, I was in there in
March.

Q. And how late in March, what
portion of March? A. About the mid-
dle of March I was there,

Q. More than one occasion? A. 1
went in there the week following the
raid and then once in March, and I
couldn’t get in Monday, it seemed to
be closed.

Q. Now in March when you wera
at that place what did you observe in
regard to display of liquor and the
service of people? A. The liquor was
openly displayed when I was in there
in March.

Q. And that you think was about
the middle of the month? A. [t was.

Q. And that is relatively located to
the county jail, is it? A. It is.

Q. And is the county jail the place
where the sheriff has been living dur-
ing this year asz you understand it? A.
I understand so.

Q. Now did you go to the place op-
posite there on Central streest. A,
That is the Johnson Cafe, I think., [¥
that is the Johnson Cafe, I have.

Q. Well that is the Johnson Cafe,
Now how frequently have you bheen
in that place? A. I have been thare
often for meals,

I don’t know the
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Q. Now have you ever been in thke
barroom itself? A. I have not.

Q. How often do you go there for
meals? A. Why I should say an av-
erage of once a week, perhaps.

Q. And have so continued up to
the present time? A. Yes, sir.

Q. While you have been there at
your meals what if anything have you
noticed in regard to people going
through the dining room to a back
room? A. I have noticed them doing
that.

Q. In how large numbers, few or
many? A. Well, T wouldn’t say that
it was many, occasionally men that I
know that I have seen go through and
I have been invited to go in with thera.

Q. You never have been in the
place yourself? A, No, sir.

Q. Now have you been to the Hol-
land place in Pickering square? A.
Well, I must confess that those places
in Pickering square, I don't know the
name of one, I simply know the dif-
ferent saloons that are there. I have
visited several of those saloons it dif-
ferent times.

Q. Was one of the saloons that you
visited located where I now point and
which is marked “Holland”? A. Yes,
sir, the first one as I came by on the
street.

Q. WIill you describe that place and
your several visits, if there were sev-
eral? A, No, I have been in there
only twice just to see if liquor was be-
ing sold.

Q. When was it? A. Soon after
the raid and last week—Monday of
this week, I beg vour pardon.

Q. Monday of this week? When you
went into that particular place what,
if anything, did you see in regard to
the sale or use of intoxicating liquors
in that place? A. Liquor was be-
ing drunk, There was none apparent
other than that that was being served
over the bar.

Q. Now were the liquors being
served beer, or were there hard li-
quors being served? A. Whiskey an.l
heer,

Q. That was Monday of this week?
A, It was,

Q. And where, if you noticed, did
the supply of liguor with which the
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customers were being served came
from, where was it being kept in the
barroom? A, Well, I saw but one
bottle in that place and that was tak-
en from underneath the front of the
bar.

Q. Were there any watchers at that
place? A, Not that I know,

Q. Was the door open or locked? A.
It was so I could open it and enter,

Q. How many men should you say you
saw in there on Monday of this week?
A. Monday morning, about five men, five
or six Dbesides the bartender.

Q. And did he still have on his uni-
form? A, He did not.

Q. Taken that off. Did you visit—

JUDGE STEARNS: Judge Cleaves,
now I want to be fair and I want you
to be fair with this respondent, that was
not a proper remark for you to make.

JUDGE CLEAVES: I think you are
right, Judge Stearns, absolutely. At was
not fair and I withdraw it.

Q. Did you visit a place which is be-
low the Holland place which I will call
the J. J. Crowe place, located relatively
where I have my pointer? A. I did.

Q. And when was your last visit
there? A, Last week.

Q. What if anything did vou notice in
regard to the service of intoxicating
liquors in that place? A. In answer "o
that question, I will have to say that
those saloons around in that section T
visited one after the other simply to sce
whether men were there and whether
they were drinking and my remembrance
of all of them is general. I could not
state anything particular except that I
saw men drinking in practically every
saloon around in that section.

Q. And dvinking soft or hard liquors?
A. Beer and whiskey seemed to be the
liqguor and mixed drinks, I don’'t kKnow
what, they called for a mixed drink.

Q. How many places in Pickering
Square before vou get to Water strant
aid you visit there, Saturday or Mona-
day? A. Well, I visited every one that
looked like a liquor saloon. I don’t ye-
member the number.

Q. Were there more than the two I
caused your attention to? A. Oh, there
are four or five there anyhow.

Q. You visited the whole and found
the situation in each substantially as yvou
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have described with reference to the two?
A, T did.

Q. Did you go into any-other place in
the vicinity of Pickering or Haymarket
square? A. I went into the places "n
Broad street and into one place on Union
street, those places, that row of places
where your pointer is now.

Q. Does that have any local name?
A. 1 understand it is called the Devil's
Half-Acre.

Q. And into how many places on Broad
street known as the Devil’s Half-Acre
diw you go? A. Eight—I beg your par-
don—I went into nine, because there are
eignt in one street in a row.

Q. Eight in a row on Broad street? A.
des.

Q. That was Saturday or Monday, or
Lboth? A. I went into a part of them
on each day—I went into some of them
on Saturday and all of them on Monday.

Q. Now from Saturday what did you
observe in reference to conditions so far
as intoxicating liquors are concerned in
the several places you visited? A. The
same general condition.

. That you have described? A. That
1 have described in the other saloons.

Q. Liquor—hard liquors being sold and
consumed? A. Apparently.

Q. That is, something of a liguid nu-
ture that was being served in a smail
glass out of a large bottle? A. And a
very strong odor of hard liquor.

Q. Now upon Monday with reference
to the nine places, is the situation the

same, the condition? A. Well, there
were fewer men, hardly any men, in

most of the places—there were fewer men
in the places on Monday than there were
on Saturday, but in practically every
place there was an odor of liquor.

Q. Now what other places did you
visit on Saturday or Monday? A. On
Saturday 1 visited the several places,
other places on Exchange street and on
Washington street and Hancock street.

Q. Now let me call your attention to
the McNamara place, and this place is
the first one as you go from the depot

on Exchange place, were you in that
place? A, I was.
Q. Now describe to the convention

what you saw there. A. I saw similar
conditions to the other places that I had
visited, other than that in several places
there seemed to be more gambling and
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dice; the drinking was just about thc
same. ~That was on Saturday.

Q. Now what other places upon Ex-
change street which appear upon this
plan did you visit? Can you state? A,
1 visited all of them.

Q. Were there any of those places
where you failed to cobserve hard liquor
being sold or drank? A. There were
one or two where no one was drinking
hard liquor. They were simply playing
cards or throwing dice. Simply the odor
of liqguor and the same general appear-
ance there was in the places where they
were drinking.

Q. How many places on Washington
street did you visit? A, Two.

Q. And in those two places what did
yvou observe in regard to hard liquors?
A. In the one that is marked there near
the center the same condition that exist-
ed on Exchange strcet, men were drink-
ing both beer and whiskey, apparently
whiskey.

Q. Now upon Hancock street did you
visit one or more places? A. Two places.

Q. And what were the conditions
there? A. They were—Saturday after-
noon, they were 'well filled with men,
every man apparently drinking a liguor
of some sort.

Q. Did you go around on to French
sireet? A, I did not.

Q. What other places did you visit in
Bangor, either Saturday or Monday? A.
There is one on the corner of Hancock
and Oak streets that I visited. That one
there (indicating).

Q. What is that, a shop or a tene-
ment, or what is it? A. It was just a
little corner store, looked like, seemed to
he at one time apparently a store and
now it is simply a place where evidently
liquor is being sold. I visited that place
and there was simply the odor— of liquor
having been sold and the only man that
was there was the bartender or the man
in charge.

. Had you bheen in that place at
any time previously during this year?
A. 1 had in January.

¢. Had you in January vigited all
of ti.e places to whicli you have called
attenition as having visited either Sat-
urday, last week, or Monday, of this
week? A, No, I did not bhecause in
January at that time I was not as
mucl: interested as I was, Saturday
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and Monday. I simply went to proba-
bly a dozen or 15 of those places in
January to see whether—what the ef-
cct had been of the search and seizure
of he previous week.

Q. Bro. Thayer, how many purchases
of intoxicating liquor did you make in
Bangor, last Saturday? A. Tour.

Q. And visited the places you have
spoken of, Saturday and Monday? You
visited the places that you have al-
ready spoken of? A. I did.

Q. At any of those places did you
find any closed doors, any locked doors,
rfastened in any way, or any watchers?
A, Well, I didn’t visit a place that was
lIocked. There were one or two of those
marked on Exchange street that were
closed on Saturday, the one next to the
Jumeson place on Harlow street, the
shack, and the one next to it were
closed, Saturday noon, Saturday eve-
ning; the best one and next to the
Jameson place on Harlow street, was
cpern.

Q. But did you find any watchers at
any of those places that yvou visited?
A. They were either ahsolutely closed
or open and easily entered.

Q. And any time upon any of your
visits during the present year have
you found any fastened doors or ob-
served any watchers at any of these
places? A. None whatever.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Stearns.

Q. Do I understand, Mr. Thayer,
that vou are a Bangor lawyer? A, T
am.

Q. Where is your office? A
tral street.

@. And in whese employment were
vou in making these investigations
commencing last January? A, I was
in the employ of no man.

Q). Do you mean to say that you did
it voluntarily? A. I did.

G. And when did you say you be-
gan? A. Arter the first raid that was
made by Sheriff Emerson. I began this
year after the first raid was made. T
began some time ago to make these in-
vestigations.

Q. How long ago did you begin to
maie investigations? A. When I re-
turned to Bangor about a year ago last
November.

7). Mr. Emerson wasn't sheriff then?
A, He wasn’t.

44 Cen-
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Q. And did you continue these in-
vestigations throughout the whole pe-
riod until last February? A. If you
call them investigations.

Judge CLEAVES: In the other case,
Judge Stearns, there was some ques-
tinn as to whether we could compare
conditions existing, this year, with
those under some previous adminis-
tration, and the Chair ruled that we
shiould not put in any specified time to
show what conditions were under any
former administration, but of course
in answering questions describing con-

diticng scme latitude is allowed the
witness. -Unless some reason appears
under which conditions should be

properly admitted, for the present the
Chair will exclude testimony prior to
January fivst,

Judge STIEARNS: I might as well be
heard at this peint. If I understand the
ruling to be this, that we shaill not be
permitted to show the conditions that
existed in Bangor when this sheriff
came into office, then I am very grest-
v surprised. Suppcse the gheriff-—I
think the objection goes to exactly this
point—suppose the sheriff had the task
set before him to clean out the Augean
stables, for example, as Hercules did,
and you should say that he should not
be permitted to show the condition of
these stables and the amount of filth
and refuse thal would have to be re-
moved. T say it is directly in point. It
would be an injustice to this respon-
dent, with this issue upcn him, if he be
not permitted to show the conditions
that existed before the first day of Jan-
uary.

The SPEAKER: Mr. Attorney Gener-
al, do you desire to say anything?

Judge CLEAVES: I will say, Mr.
Speaker, in behalf of the attorney gen-
eral, that we had no objection to tie
statement of facts, but it was compar-
ing in his mind conditions existing,
iast vear, with those existing, this year,
and giving an impression whether they
were better or worse,

The SPEAKER: The ruling previous-
ly made was that it is not admissible
or permissible to testify or to bring in
evidence to show whether or not con-
ditions, this year, are better or worse
than those existing under some other
administration, the reason of that be-
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ing that that doesn’t get you anywhere,
because to follow that out and know
what the conditions really are, yon
have got to prove what they were un-
der tlie administration referred to. Does
the counsel see the pcint the Chair
makes?

Judge STEARNS: Do I understand
that we will be permitted—I will make
it as brief as T can and as plain as T
can—is it conceded that we shall be
perinitted to prove the conditions that
exjisted at the time this sheriff took of-
fice?

The SPEAKER: The Chair had not
finishhed stating his position. It is not
permissible to bring in testimony tc
show simply that conditions are better
or worse now than at another specified
time. Under some circumstances it is
admissible to show that conditions
were bad on a previous date, with ref-
erence to the sheriff’s attitude towards
thosc conditions when he iakes pos-
session of his office, Now this condi-
tion right here, the question is whether
or not he was famibiar with the con-
ditions existing previously.

(Question read by stenographer.)

The SPEAKER: Of course that ques-
tion is admissible in cross-examination.

Judge CLEAVES: I want 1o say in
behalf of the attorney general and iu
fairness 1o the other side that we dn
not object to facts which show condi-
tions at the close of last year.

The SPEAKER: I don’t think you
properly could object to that. The
Chair will exclude testimony, to com-
pare conditions, whether better or worse
but counsel and parties may show what
conditions actually were prior to the
first of January, when this man tock
possession, that is, whether they were
bad or open or shut or otherwise.

Q. How much time did you spend in

this first tour or round of visits to
places, in January; A. About two
hours.

Q. And do you know what places you
visited on that occasion? A. In gen-
eral T do.

Q. And how many were there?

A. T should say about 15.

Q. Did you make any visit after that
in the month of January to any place?
A, Yes.

Q. When? A. I vigited

one on
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Franklin street about the middle of
January, and then I visited the one on
Exchange street, the Manhattan cate.
I visited that several times, since Jan-
uary—the one on Hammond street, 1
have been there perhaps a half a dozen
times, the Jphnson restaurant I have
been in perhaps once or twice.

Q. After that did you make any fur-
ther visits? A. I made no further vis-
its; I have been in them.

Q. What was your purpose on gon-
ing in there, Mr. Thayer? A. 1 have
often been with friends who went in to
get ligsor.

Q. You went with friends who went
in to get a drink? A. I did.

Q. Did you drink with them? A, X
did not.

Q. But your companions did A. They
did.

Q. And you did that often? A. No,
not often. I had also another purposec.
I wanted to find out the actual condi-
tion of affairs in Bangor in the sa-
loons.

Q. Did I ask you that? A.
asked me my purpose.

Q. That is right. And did vou ever
talk with the sheriff? A. I have.

Q. And you are acquainted with the
sheriff personally? A. After he made
his raid I went to him, I knew him by
sight. T have spoken with him several
times.

Q. Did you have any acquaintance
with him before he was elected sheriff?
A, I did not.

Q. Now there seem to be three
places with which you claim to have
special familiarity and acquaintance,
and one of them you refer to as an es-
pecially well fitted, well furnished
place, the Jameson place, and I under-
stood you to say that it was fitted as
well as bars in Boston and New York.
A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are familiar with those hars,
I suppose? A. I am.

Q. Both in Boston and New York

I am.

Q. So that you compare this with
those and say that it compares favor-
ably? A, I do.

Q. How many times have you heen
in that place? A. What place?

Q. The place I inquired of, the
Jameson place, that had a good bar,

You

A
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A. I should say about four times.
Q. Did you visit it, in January?

I did.

Q. And the last time you went snd
visited it you say it was closed?
A. No, one side of it was closed.

Q. One side of it was closed, and
that was the thing you call a shack, I
believe? A. There is a shack on one
side and a good saloon on the other.
They werc both closed at that time.

Q. Both the shack and the 3aloon?
A. And the one on the other side.

Q. Now how many places did you
find closed altogether, last Saturday?
A. About six.

Q. Had you visited them within that

A.

week, these places? A. Previous to
Saturday?
Q. Yes. A. No, I think not.

Q. You don’'t know when they were

closed? A. No, I do not

Q. Nor how long they had been
closed? A. No, I do not.

Q. I understood you to say that you

took your meals frequently at Johnson's

restaurant. A. I took meals there fre-
quently.

Q. And that is on Central street?
A Tt is.

Q. Now, sir, do you say there is a
bar in that place? A. There is a place
to get liquor. 1 was asked if I went

through the bar and I said I didn’t.

Q. Do you know there is a bar there?
A. I know there is a place to get lig-
uor.

Q. Have you ever been in that place?
A. To get liquor?

Q. Yes. A. I have been
men who did get liquor.

Q. But you haven't been in the place
yourself where the liquor was pro-
cured? A. 1 have not.

Q. And you don’t know just where
it is? A. I do not.

Q. You visited, as I understand, on
your last round, which was Monday, two
places where you said you Dbought
whiskey? A. Saturday I bought whis-
key at four places.

Q. Four places? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, Mr. Thayer, what did you
want of four particular brands of whis-
key? A. I had heard that there was
to be an investigation of Sheriff Emer-
son. I went to the county attorney and
the assistant, who had been appointed
in Bangor, and volunteered my assist-

in with
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ance, and I went to those places to see
if T could get it, and I got it.

Q. What did you do with it?
have it here.

Q. I understood you to say that one
sample was good whiskey. A. It looked
like good whiskey; it cost 40 cents a
half pint.

A I

Q. You didn't taste it? A, I
haven’t.
Q. But it looks like good whiskey?

A. It does.

Q. And that is the only means that
vou took by which to tell, was it?
A, It was.

Direct Examination Resumed.
Just a single question, Mr. Thay-
Your attention was called to the
six places that you say you found closed,
Saturday. How recently had you been
past any of those places or into them
and found them open? A. 'The shuck
was the first one that I found closed.
and as I remember it now about zhe
middle of February I was in that place,
and it was open then. The one next to
that, on this side, (pointing to map)
was closed, Saturday noon, and Satur-
day evening it was open. There was
one down on Exchange street, in that
last group of four, that was closed,
both Saturday and Monday. The oth-
ers I simply found closed on that day.
WALTER DANFORTH, called for
the prosecution, sworn, in answer to

questions by Judge Cleaves, testified
as follows:

Q.

er.

Q. Your residence is Bangor? A.
It is.

Q. You are the treasurer of the
Bangor & Arcostook Railroad? 4. T
am

Q. For how long have you been
such treasurer? A. Since March 1405,

Q. During the present year have
you visited for the purpose of obser-

vation any places in Bangor where
yYou have sgeen intoxicating liquors
sold? A. 1 have.

Q. When did you first go about?
A. About the middle of January.

Q. And will you tell us first wheth-
er you visited the place called the
shack and observed it about that
time? A. I didn’'t at that time,

Q. What place did you observe and
visit in January? A, I didn't visit
the interjor of any saloons in January.
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My investigations were confined en-
tirely to exterior investigations.

Q. Now where did you go? TUpon
what streets? A. Upon Exchange
street, Hancock, Washington, Broad,
Pickering Square, and a few others.

Q. Upon any of those streets. as
you passed any of the places, did you
see drinking and see bottles of liquor
displayed openly in any of those
places? A, In several.

Q. Now are you able to designate
by name or location any of the places
©of which you made such observation?

A. Only in a general way. One on
Pickering Square and one on Ex-
change street, especially, that 1 saw

from the sidewalk.

Q. What did you obkserve in those
places from the sidewalk? A. 1 saw
men entering and leaving those places.
I detected very strongly the odor of
liquors. 1 saw men intoxicated and
in a partially intoxicated condition,
and I could see men on the interior,
and occasionally, as the doors opened
into the place where the bar is, I
would see men lifting something tc
their lips, drinking from a glass.

Q. Upon that occasiocn were you
able to see into any of these barrooms
and see the display of bottled goods
anywhere about the bar room, from
the street, I mean. A. I did not.

Q. Later, namely sabout a month
ago, did you again make some investi-
gations? A, I did.

Q. And was it in the month of
March? A. It was.

Q. Now will you tell us first where

vou went? A, Practically over the
same territory as on my earlier visit,

Q. Did you go into any of the
places a month ago? A. I stepped in-
to the front part of two or three, one
on Exchange street, one on Pickering
Square.

Q. Now in those places what did
you observe in regard to intoxicating
liquor? A. I saw men entering and
leaving the place where the bar is
located, and could detect the odor of
liquor.

Q. Did you visit the shack, or have
vou been by it? A. Frequently.

Q. Now as you went by, or as you
approached the place, what, if any-
thing, did you see in regard to what
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was going on inside? A, In the
shack?
Q. Yes. A. I could see from the

sidewalk through into the back room,
and saw men lined up in front of
what looked like a bar, and some of
them drinking from glagses.

Q. Now do you know McNamara's

place? A, I do.
Q. Where is that located? A. At
the lower end of Exchange street, on

the easterly side.
Q. Have you been into that place

during the month of March, or the
present one? A. T have.

Q. Which? A. Saturday last.

Q. Now upon Saturday last, Yyou

say you were at McNamara's place?
A. T was.

Q. Did you go in? A. I did.

Q. State to the convention what
you observed in regard to intoxicat-
ing liquor? A. T saw several men
standing in front of a bar, drinking
from a glass.

Q. And what kind of a looking

drink was it? A. Dark colored, some
of it had freth on the top of it.

Q. Did you see what kind of a re-
ceptacie it was poured out of? A.
Not at that place.

Q. How many men were drinking
at that place? A. Three or four.

Q. Did you see any signs of hard
liquor there then? A. I did not.

Q. What other place did you visit?
A, I visited the shack Saturday
morning.

Q. What did you observe there? A,
A man behind the bar, and three men
in front, one drinking whiskey from
a glass.

Q. What other place did you visit?
A. The one next to it, brick building
next to it.

). What did you observe there? A.
A man behind the bar, and four or
five men in that place.

Q. What were they doing? A. Two
of them were drinking from a glass.

Q. What other place did you visit?
A. The one next to that.

Q. Did you visit at the other places
on Saturday last? A. I did.

Q. What did you observe at the last
place? A. I didn’t see any one drink-
ing in the third place. 1 saw several
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men in there, but none of them drink-
ing.

Q. The location of that so-called
shack—is it in the outskirts of the
city, one of the low down places in

Bangor, or is it upon one of its pub-
lic streets? A. It faces East Market
Square, practically the center of the
city.

Q. And where, with reference to
that place, is the postoffice to be
built? A. Across the street diagonal-
ly.

Q. So that it is in one of the bet-
ter portions of Bangor, the business
portion? A. Within a thousand feet
or less.

Q. Do you know the J. J. Burns
place? A. I know a place that is
occupied on the corner of York and
Exchange streets by a man by the

name of Burmns.

Q. Did you visit that place? A. I
did.

Q. When did you visit that last?

A. Last Saturday.

Q. What, if any, evidence of the sale
of intoxicating liquor did you observe
there? A. T didn’t go into the interior,
where the bar was, in that building. I
stopped and talked with the proprietor.

Q. Who knew you? A. He did.

Q. So you didn’t go in? A, I didn’t.
Q. What other places did vou visit?
A. Several others on Exchange street

below that point.

Q. And what did you observe in regard
to intoxicating liquors in those places?
A. Tn nearly every place from two to
eight or 10 men, some of them drinking
from a glass.

Q. Now during the month of March
did you observe those same places, some
of them? A, From the exterior only.

Q. What, if any, change from what
the condition was in March did you no-
tice when you were there last Saturday?
A. I didmn’t notice any change. There
were no watchers and people entered and
left freely. That is, I saw no watchers.

Q. During the present year, and up to
a day or two, had you frequently observ-
ed barrels and kegs of beers being haul-
ed through the streets of Bangor? A. I
have seen jiggers driving through our
streets loaded with what I have always
believed to be beer barrels.
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Q. Was that being done
time? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And how were the barrels covered
or protected? A. Partially covered by
canvas cloth.

Q. And have you seen any of those
teams back up to any place during the
daytime? A. I have not.

Q. What, if anything, can you say
about the Penobscot Exchange; have you
been into that? A. I have.

Q. How recently? A. Since the
of January.

Q. Are you able to state about when?
A, At the time the special committee
were investigating the strike conditions.

Q. That is, at the time the State Board
of Arbitration were investigating the
strike, during the sessions of this Legis-
lature? A. Yes.

Q. And what did you observe at the
Penobscot Exchange at that time? A, I
passed a room in which I

in the day-

first

saw  men

standing in front of the bar. Some of
them were drinking.
Q. What, if any, didplay of liquors

did you observe? A. I passed so rapid-
ly T didn’t notice particularly.

Q. You saw several men drinking at a
bar? A. At a bar.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Stearns.

Q. I understand you entered the inte-
rior of no places until when? A, I en-
tered one or two in January.

Q. But since then you entered the in-
terior of no place until what date? A,
Last Saturday.

Q. And do ‘you remember then
many you entered? A. Ilight or nine.

Q. And I suppose you had some ex-
cuse that you gave the barkeeper or the
innholder in those places for entering
there? A, 1 did.

Q. Did you inquire for a relative é6r an
acquaintance? A, For an acquaintance,

Q. What acquaintance? A. A man
who used to be one of my subordinates.

Q. Do you remember his name? A.
Yes. Rory McDonald.

Q. Did you expect to find him in every
one of those places? A. I did not.

Q. You didn’t find him? A, I did not.

Q. I submit that you had a right to
enter them, if they were open, without
any pretext? A, I had.

Q. Now you say you saw some display

how
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at the Penobscot Exchange in January?
A. I beg your pardon, I saw a bar.

Q. Isn’t that a display? A. I don’t so
understand it.
Q. You saw a bar? A, I did.

Q. You passed it? A, I did.

Q. You passed it with me going and
coming, didn’t you? A. I did.

Judge STEARNS: T don’t think I saw
jt. I don’t have any doubt it was there
at that time.

CHARLES R. CARLETON, called for
the prosecution, sworn, in answer to
questions by Judge Cleaves, testified as
follows:

Q. You are a clergyman? A, Yes, sir.

Q. Of What denomination? A, Meth-
odist Episcopal.

Q. At Bangor? A. At East Corinth.

Q. How long have you had your
charge? A. Two years.

Q. How far is that from Bangor: -..
Twenty miles.

Q. During this present year, about
four weeks ago, were you in Bangor and
made some observations? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Upon what streets did you begin
these observations? A. In what they
call West Market square, and upon
Broad street, and at the foot of Ex-
change street.

Q. Now will you tell the convention,
Mr. Carleton, where you went and what
you observed in reference to intoxicating
liquors? A. I don’t know the names of
the places that I visited at that time.
I know they were on the square, on the
north side, and that they were at the
foot of Broad street on the right hand
side going down.

Q. How many such places did you
visit? A. I visited two on the square
and two at the foot of Broad street and
one on Exchange street on the left hand
side, at the foot of the street—I wouldn’t
say the foot, but near the foot.

Q. At any or all of those places, did
you see intoxicating liquors being used?

A. I noticed from the outside—the Goors
were open and I could see bhottles from
the outside, could see bottles in through
the door as it swung, and men drinking
at the bar.

Q. What kind of bottles did you ob-
serve? A, Long-necked bottles on the
bar.
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Q. They were on or about the bar, in
plain sight, as the door swung open?
A, Yes.

Q. And you were then upon the street,
ag you saw it? A, I was.

Q. Did you upon that occasion go
into any of these places? A. I don’t
recall just the number. I went to—T
think it was two on the square, and
two at the foot of Broad and one on
Exchange street. T wouldn’t say that
as an actual fact as to number, but sim-
ply as to conditions.

Q. In each of these places did you
find a display of bottled goods in view?
A, T diad. .

Q. And what we call
bottles? A. I did.

Q. Did you observe how any or all
of those bottles were labeled? A. T

long-necked

noticed “whiskey” on them of various
brands. “Rye” on one in particular, I
remember.

Q. Digd you see any person served
with any hard liquors? A. I did.

Q. In each of those places? A, I
wouldn’t say that I saw them served
with hard ligquor in each of those places,
but in several of the places.

Q. Did you make any purchase or

effort to purchase in any of these
places? A. I did not.
Q. How many men did you see in

those places? A. It would vary great-
ly, but there were a number of men
in each place.

Q. Was there a bar
A. There was.

Q. A bartender? A. In some there
was one, and in some two, and in one
place I saw three.

Q. What place was it you saw three?
A. 1 couldn’t tell exactly; I couldn’t
tell just what place.

Q. And were any of them dressed in
white coats? A. They were all

Q. Now when next did you make any
investigation? A. Last Saturday.

Q. And upon that occasion, last Sat-
urday, who were you accompanied by?
A. Constable Tibbetts.

Q. Mr. Tibbetts, who is a constable
of the city of Bangor? A. Yes.

Q. And did you go about to these
same places? A. I couldn't say that
I visited exactly the same places.

Q. How many did vou visit, on Sat-
urday last? A. I couldn't state the

in each place?
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number exactly. We visiled several
places on the square, one or two on Har-
low street, one on French street, and
several on Hancock street.

Q. Now in those places what evidence
did you sce if the use of intoxicating
liquors? A. Shall T name the places?

Q. If you will. A. On HHancock
street, there were men lined up at the
bar. There were no liguors displayed,
but there was liquor being drunk that
looked to me like whiskey.

Q. That is, being drunk out of a
small glass? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the bottles in each
place served to any one? A. One.

Q. Describe that bottle? A, It was
a long-necked bottle,

Q. Go on. A. On French street, I

visited one place kept by what I judged
was a Jew. There were no men in
there, There was an odor of liquor per-
ceptible all through, but no liquors in
sight. I had a reason to argue that he
was  selling liquorand T said—(Ob-
jected to).

JUDGE CLEAVES: Don’t give any
conversation that you had. A. At Han-
cock street, we visited several places.
There was an odor of liquor in all the
places that we visited. In some there
were a few men, and in some many.
We came back to the Square and there
we went into one place where I counted
as high as 40 odd men in one place.

Q. Are you able to state
to where that was? A.
liam C. Cox’'s place.

Q. Now let us see if we can locate
that. A. I haven’t looked at that map.

Q. Would it be about where I place
my pointer, in Pickering square? A. It
would.

Q. And that you refer to as the Cox
place? A. I was told it was Cox’s
place.

Q. And down there in that place you
found 40 men? A. Forty odd men.

Q. Lined up to the bar? A. They
were not all lined up to the bar; there
were one or two men in the corner that
were intoxicated and some men sitting
on the table who secemed to be eating
some kind of a lunch, and the rest were
at the bar.

Q. At that place did you see any
hard liquor being drunk? A. There
was an old man seated at one end of the

relative
That was Wil-
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counter drinking out of a bottle marked
“Rye” and the glass was a small glass;
and I heard a man call for ale, and it
was scerved to him out of a bottle, and
the other men were drinking various
kinds of liquor.

Q. Can you name any other place?
A. There were two places on that same
side of the street as Cox's. I don't
know the names of the places, and the
number of men varied in them, but in
all the places on the square that we
visited there were hard ligquors in sight.
I had occasion to step to the end of the
counter, and under the counter I saw
other places in there, some were In
cases and some were Iin what seemed to
be-—well, we might call it the lower
part of a refrigerator, and the Ilong-
necked bottles seemed to be in there.

Q. At any of these places did you
find the door locked or fastened in any
way when you approached? A. None.

Q. Did you find any watchers, or
any person apparently looking for you?
A. None.

Q. And in any place did you hear
anybody refuse when they made a re-
quest for liquor? A. None.

Cross-Examination.
By Judge STEARNS:

Q. You live in East Corinth, I under-
stand? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is 20 miles from Ban-

gor? A, Twenty miles.

Q. And that is in Penobscot county?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. And how long did you say you
had lived there? A. Two years.

Q. Did you ever live in Bangor?

A. Three years, while I was going to
school.

Q. And where did you go to school
in Bangor? A. Bangor Theological
school.

Q. How long ago was that?
should have to look up the date.

Q. No, yvou don’t need to 1ook up any
date. Can't you tell approximately
when you went to school? A. I should
have to guess at it, and I don’t want to
guess.

Q. You don’t want to guess?
sir.

Q. Do you think there would be any
sin in guessing? A. I am not talking
about sin.

Q. Then why can't you tell me ap-

A, I

A, No,
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proximately how long ago it was that
you went to school in Bangor? A. I
said I would have to look up the date,
ard I don’t remember exactly,

Q. Can’t you approximate the num-
ber of years ago? A. I suppose 1
could, but I don’t wish to.

Q. What is your objection, Mr.
Carleton to giving me the approximate

time? A. I don’t like to guess.
Q. What is your scruple about
guessing, Mr. Carleton? A, Simply

that I don't care to guess..

Q. So you refuse to answer
question? A. I do.

Q. Have you lived in Bangor with-
in the last five years? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And how recently did you move
out of Bangor? A. 1 couldn’'t tell
you.

Q. Did you move
three years ago? A.
guess.

Q. Did you move out
four years ago? A.
ser that question.

The SPEAKER: Mr. Carleton, it is
not necessary to give the exact figures
in answer to these questions; it is
necessary to answer the question as
well as may be and give your in-
formation, and if you can tell exactly
or give how many years or how many
months ago it was, you must give it.

A. It was within six years.

Judge STEARNS: Within six years
yvou have lived in Bangor? A. Yes,
sir; within six years.

Q. And you haven't
since? A. No, sir.

Q. Now, do you know the names of
any places that you visited in Bangor
except Cox’s? A. 1 don’t; ves, I beg
vour pardon, a place kept by TRussell
on Itxchange street.

Q. And do you know whether that
is a restaurant? A. It passes as one.

Q. Have you any reason, sir, to say
it is not a restaurant? A. I haverea-
son to say it is something in addition
to that.

Q. Did I ask you about that addi-

that

out of Bangor
I don’t wish to

of Bangor
I refuse to an-

lived there

tion? A. You asked for an explana-
tion.
Q. I asked you if you had any rea-

son to suppose it is not a restaurant?
A. T have no reason to suppose it is
uot a restaurant.
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Q. And Cox’s, where you saw the
40 men is also a restaurant, isn’t it?
A. I suppose s0, yes.

Q. Of those places, restaurants are
the only ones whose mnames—the
names of whose owners you know?
A. Yes, sir.

J. M. ARTERS,
testified as follows:

By Mr. CLEAVES:

Q. Please state your full name and
occupation? A. J. M. Arters; clergy-

called and sworn,

man.
Q. And you are located at Port-
land? A. 1 live in Portland; yes, sin

Q. During the present year while
you were visiting in Bangor did you
make some observations? A. I did.

Q. When was it? A, On Friday,
the 14th of February.

Q. Will you state what von did and
what you saw? A. Well, with refer-
ence to the map I would be very glad
to trace my travel. I don’t know the
names of the streets of course.

Q. Perhaps 1 can assist you. I
want you to be where you can make
the convention hear. A. I don't
think they will have any trouble.

Q. Where did vyou Degin? A,
Leaving the railroad station and pass-
ing into Exchange street I visited the
place where your pointer now is, en-
tering and remaining a moment or
two and then passing on and visiting
two or three additional places Dbe-
tween that and the corner of Han-
cock street; passed along from that
point to the place at the corner of
Exchange and York streets, and en-
tered that just a moment or two, and
then went into State street, crossing
over the Thridge there and coming
down into what is marked on the map
as Broad street. Now down this way
_these places that are now in the
naighborhood of your pointer, one or
two, but making especially my visita-
tions along in that neighborhood
where your pointer now is, entering
six or seven of those places, having
in mind espccially the place at the
corner of Proad and whatever street
that is.

Q. Union? This place known as
descrihed locally as the ‘“Devil's Half
Acre”? A. Yes, in that place, and
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having in mind especially the two
places adjoining there just above your
pointer, the one on the corner and the
one above the place on the corner,
making special observations there and
then coming across the foot-bridge

used also by the railroad, crossing
there through the railroad station
again and over into what is marked

and
and

as French street,
visited one or two places there;
that ended the investigation.

Q. Now, having located the places
and having described your itinerary,
can you tell the convention what you
saw? A. In most of the places en-
tered 1 saw a fully equipped barroom,
that is, a bar and an attendant at
the bar, a stock of liquors displayed
back of the bar on shelves, men
drinking and ordering intoxicating
liquors at the bar and being served on
their order; and in a number of the
places, especially in the place known
as the Devil’s Half Acre I saw a con-
giderable number of drunken men or
men in a half intoxicated condition.
In one place, just above the place on
the corner of Broad and Union streets
I saw there a 16-year-old by tending
bar.

Q. And were liquors being served
by that boy? A. They were, upon
order of those who were ordering in-
toxicating liguors.

Q. You didn’t go to Bangor for the
purpose of making an investigation?

on the map

A. I did not.

Q. You were there upon business?
A, T was.

Q. In any of these places, Mr.
Arthers, did vyou find any fastened
doers or any watchers of any sort?
A. T did not.

Cross-Examination.

By JUDGE STEARNS:

Q. T understand yvou too are a clergy-
man? A, I am, sir.

Q. And a resident of Portland? A, I
live in Portland.

Q. And what is your denomination?
A. I am a Methodist.

Q. And who did you visit in Bangor?
A. I didn’t visit anybody in Bangor; I
was there between trains.

Q. How long did you remain? A.
About two hours.
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Q. And did you see all that you have
described in those two hours? A. I did.

Q. And have made no other visit in
Bangor? A. I never have been in Ban-
gor since,

Q. Where was the place where you
found the lad behind the bar? A. Tha
place just above the corner of Broad and
Union streets.

Q. Broad and Union streets? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. And do you know the name of the
lad? A. I do not.

Q. Did you inquire his name? A. I
did not.

Q. Did you make any inquiries of him?
A, T did.

Q. You inquired his age? A.
not.

Q. How do you know his age then?
A. By his general appearance.

Q. HMr., Arters, do you mean to tell
this convention that that boy was 16
yvears old by ‘his appearance alone? A.
Yes, sir; I mean to say that judging
from his appearance he was not over 16
years of age.

GEORGE A. TIBBETTS,
sworn, testified as follows:

By MR. CLEAVES:

Q. Please state your name? A. George
A, Tibbetts.

Q. And you live in Bangor? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. You are a constable of the city of
Bangor? A. I am.

Q. For how many years have you been
such constable? A. I think continuous-
ly for five years; I think there was one
yvear that I was not.

Q. During the present year in the pe~-
formance of your duties or otherwise
have you been in various barrooms in
Bangor? A. 1 have.

Q. And two weeks ago last Saturday
did you go about with Rev. Mr. Carleton
who has Jjust testified? A. How long
ago?

Q. Two weeks ago last Saturday. A.
No, sir.

Q. When was it?
A, Last Saturday.

Q. Two weeks ago last Saturday were
you looking for a particular man? A.
I was.

Q. And in looking for him did you go
intoe a number of these bar rooms? A,
I did.

I did

called and

I may be in error.
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Q. Were you into Holland’s? A. I
was.
Q. Where is that located? A. I am

not quite sure whether it is Mercantile
square or Pickering square, where they

come together, but it was near that
point.
Q. In the vicinity of Pickering square?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. What is Holland's place? A. Well,
it is a very nicely arranged place. I
think they serve food there, although I
have never eaten there, and they have
a fine bar very well fitted up, on of the
best in Bangor.

Q. How many bartenders? A. Three
generally.

Q. And do they have any distinctive .

uniform? A. Generally a white jacket.

Q. Upon this occasion two weeks ago
last Saturday what if anything did you
see in the nature of intoxicating liquors
either being served or in view near the
bar? A. Well, the general appearance
of a saloon bing well patronized and
serving liquors I should expect of all
kinds. I don’t drink, so I don’t know
what they were.

Q. You saw customers there being
served with some liquid refreshments?
A, 1 dia.

Q. And were some of those refresh-
ments being drank oue of small glasses?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did you go into Crowe’s place? A.
I did.

Q. Where is that located? A. The
next saloon below, south from Holland’s.

Q. How many bartenders there? A.
I think there were two that day.

Q. And were they dressed in uniform?
A. I think one was.
Q. What if anything did you see

there? A. The usual intoxicating liquors
‘were being sold and served, practically
the same thing I had been seeing for
years.

Q. And did you go into Cox’s place
Just below? A, I did.

Q. And what did you see in the nature
of liguors being served there? A. The
same condition.

Q. Is there a bar there? A. There is.

Q. Any bartender? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And was he on duty that day? A.
Yes, he was.

Q. Did you go into No. 8? A. I did.

-—HOTUSE, APRIL 10.

Q. Whose place is that? A, I am not
sure of the name.

Q. 'Was there a bar there? A. Yes,
sir,

Q. Any bartender? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Any customers? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see any intoxicating
liquors being served? A. I saw what

I supposed to be intoxicating liquors.
Q. Was there any essential difference
between 'what you saw in that place and
what you had seen in the other three
you have already described? A. I don’t
recall that there was. I wasn’'t thinking
about it at the time, but I should expect

it was practically the same.

Q. Did you go into Slim Jim Mec-
Cann’s? A, I did. .
Q. Where is that? A. Right on a
corner.

Q. On the corner of what street? A.
Corner of Water street and Pickering
square.

Q. And in the neighborhood of these
other places that you have described?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. Was there a bartender there? A. I
didn’t go go into the bar; I just simply
went into the front part; I was looking
for a man and I didn’t go into the place.

Q. Perhaps you didn’t observe any-
thing in there? A. I didn't that day;
no, sir.

Q. Do you know of any people being
in the barroom? A, I didn’t think
there was.

Q. Did you go into Haymarket square
and call upon any places? A. I did.

Q. Name them? A. The Corner
shcp—I don’t know who keeps that.

Q. What did you find in there? A.
I found I should say a dozen men in
there.

Q. What were they doing? A. Well,
some of them were drinking and some
of them were getting rid of what they
nad drank, and most all sorts of bus-
iness.

Q. Was there a bartender on duty
there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What other places did you visit
in that lccality? A. I visited the place
where the angle comes, where I think
Jacch Bartlett used to have a meat
market I presume when I was black-
smithing on the square.

Q. Was there a bar
bartender? A, Yes.

there with a
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Q. Did you see any intoxicating li-
quors being served? A. T did.

Q. Any display of hard liquors? A.
Yes.

Q. Visible from the front door? A.
Yes, on the shelf the usual display.

Q. Did you vigit any other places in
that locality¢ A, I did.

Q. You may go on and name them?
A. There was a bhar down in the brick
building that was built originally, 1
think for a bakery, a brick building,
and cne of the maost southerly in that
line.

Q. (Indicating on plan with pointer)
Right there? A. That was the one.

Q. Is that known as No. 1242 A. T
don't know.

Q. Whose place is it? A, 1
know; I don’t knoew who runs it

Q. And did vou observe in there the
same evidence you have spoken of in
other plices? A. Yes, sir; only more
8G.

Q. Where next did you go? A. I
was down around on Broad strect.

Q. Down in the Devil's Half Acre lo-
cality? A. Yes, =ir.

0. Did vou see any evidence or signs
of sales of intoxicating liquors down
there? A. VYes, sir.

Q. Where else did vou go? A. 7T
fook in—1 am not sure whether I wus
in all those places on Broad street—I
went over to a place on Union street,

Q. One of these places? (Indicating
on plan) A. On the other side, that
place there.

Q. Did you see there the same things

,tlmt vou have described? A. No, sir:
that is not a regular bar; T should pre-
sume you might call it a kitchen bar;
it was run by a lady——

. Where else did you go? A, Lo-
zier, I think her name is. T collected
an execution there.

Q. Where else did vou go, that day?
A. T put in the entire, practically the
entire day trying to get service on a
man, I had been trying for a week or
14 days to find him and so I was in
a1l those places.

Q. That is, you were tryving to find
a defendant upon whom vyou were to
make service of a eivil process? A, Yes.
sir.

Q. And you rather esgpected to find
im at some of the barrooms? A. Yes,

BIT.

don’t
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Q. And so you made the rounds and
the cearch for that purpose? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Calling your attention to the lo-
cationn upon the face of the earth of
the county jail as indicated on this
plan, from the steps of that building
what, if any, of these places that have
been mentioned could be seen? A
A, From the county jail?

Q. Yes. A. I should say mnone of
them.
Q. Irom the immediate locality of

the county jail? A. From the street,
fronl Iammond street at the entrance
to the county jail I should say this
place down there of Jameson's I should

ithink would he—I am not absolutely
gure that could be seen bhecause there
is a little bhit of a crook there in the

strect, and T am not sure whether it
could he seen.

@. Where is the municipal court
room? A, It is in the ity building.

G. In the City hall? A, Yes, in City
hail.

Q. And where is vour post office at
the present lime located? A. Over on
Centiral street, just across the bridge
on Central street, on the north side of
Centrall

Q. And are Exchange and Broad
streets two of the principal streets in
Bangor? A, They are.

Q. To get to the railroad station
vou hiave to go down Exchange street?
4. Yes, or go across on the railroad
hridge dewn by the river.

Q. And to get down to that point
vou ccme down Broad street the other
nrincinal street? A, Yes, sir.

'Q. Necw tpon  Saturday last vyou
made a trip around with Mr. Carleton?
A, [ did

. For the purpose and at his re-
quest to show him these places? A. 1
did.

Q. Did you and
places? A. We did

Q. Did vou go into practically the
places that you have just testified
abeut? A. Yes, and several others.

Q. ‘What change or difference did
you notice in any or ail those places
gpon Saturday last from what you ob-
sarved and have testified to was the
condition two weeks ago? A, An ab-
sence of the display upon the shelves
goenerally quite largely reduced.

he go into any
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Q. The supply had been reduced? A.
Yes, sir

Q. And the display openly upon the
shelves had been abandoned partially”
A, Partially, and in some places———

Q. Did you notice any other differ-
ences? A. No, sir; in some places 1

should say I didn’'t see any hard li-
quaors.
Q. Thcse were the only changes you

noticed? AL
Cross-Examination.

By Judge STEARNS:

Q. How long did I understand you to
say you had lived in Bangor? A. This
last time?

Q. Yes. A, Eight

Q. How long have vou been a con-
stable of Bangor? A. I think for five
consecutive years.

Q. The last five years? A. I
s0.

Q. Have you taken an oath of of-
fice every year? A. I think so.

Q. Taken an oath, this year? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Do you know what your duties
are as constable? A, Well, T have a
general idea.

Q. Have you ever read the statute
of your State pertaining to your duties?
A. I learned to read from the first
statute that was ever published.

Q. FHave you read it? A. Yes, sir

Q. Did you know that the statute
contained this provision: ‘“The may-
or and aldermen, selectmen, assessors
and constables in every city, town and
plantation shall make complaint and
prosecute all violations of this chapter
and promptly enforce the laws against
drinking houses?” A. 1 should expect
it was there, yes.

Q. You Kknew

Practically.

think

it was there, didn’t

vou? A. I think I do.
Q. Now, have you sworn out any
complaints against these places that

yvou have visited? A. I mnever have
one, I think not.

Q. Have you discharged any of the
duties imposed upon you by that stat-
ute? A. Yes, I think I have.

Q. What? A. I have attended to
the business for which I was made a
constable, as I understand it.

Q. Isn't that part of yvour business
under the statute? A, I presume it

may be.

RECORD —HOTUSE,
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Q. XNow, what fellow were vou hunt-
ing for in these places that you visited?

A. I was hunting for a man by the
name of James S. Cox.
Q. When did you find him? A. The

last time.

Q. You did find him? A. No, I say
the last time I was looking for him I
had an execution and a writ.

Q. Who was that man? A, That
was James 8. Cox, last Saturday.

Q. Both times? A, No, sir.

Q. Who was the fellow you were
hunting for when you had the writ?
A. His name was Woodbury.

Q. Did you find him? A. I didn't
find him there but I did later after we
took his horse and put it in the stable
we found him.

Q. You found him?
served it on him.

Q. Now, Mr. Tibbetts, you have been
a candidate for sheriff yourself? A. I
have.

Q. You run against Major Emerson
as a candidate for sheriff, didn't you?
A. I did in the primaries.

Q. And you have been a candidate
for deputy sheriff since, haven't you?
A. I don’t think so in the general ac-
ceptance of the term; you should know
more about that than I.

Q. Don’t you know whether you have
been a candidate for deputy sheriff or
not? A. I have not, unless at the time
you and the B. & A. were asking that
and I had absolutely nothing to do with
it.

Q. Didn’t you request the sheriff to
appoint you a deputy? A. What sher-
iff? )

Q. Major Emerson. A. What time?

Q. At any time? A. Never at any
time, except on that B. & A. Railroad
matter.

Q. Are you a candidate at the pres-
ent time for appointment? A. Not that
I know of.

Q. To the office of sheriff in case
these proceedings are followed by the
removal of Major Emerson? A. Not of
my own knowledge or consent.

Q. Have you circulated a petition?
A. I have not.

Q. Have you asked men to support
you? A. I have not.

Q. You are still a constable? A. I
am.

A. Yes, and [
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Q. And you were a constable, last
Saturday, when you visited these places?
A I was.

Q. And the other times? A.
TS,

Q. Did you arrest anybody? A. I
did not.

Q. Did you seize any liquors? A. I
did not.

Q. Did vou expostulate witn anybody
for selling them? A. I did not.

Q. Did you call the attention of any-
body to the fact that he was violating
the law? A, I did not.

Q. You made no attempt whatever to
enforce the law? A. I did not.

Mr. CLEAVES: A question or two I
neglected to ask you. Two weeks ago,
last Saturday, was there any ale on
draught 1in any of these places?
A Yes, sir

Q. When was ale on draught shut
off? A. Well, very largely, on Fri-
day night, a week ago last Friday night.

Q. After the publicity had been
given to the GGovernor's message?
A, Yes, sir

Q. And did you see any

I was,

et

barrels of

beer being moved out of these places
where recently before that you had
seen ale being served on draught?

A. Isaw what I supposed was the mov-
and my attention was called
some demonstrations of that

ing of it,
to it by
kind.

Q. You saw bharrels being moved out
of those places? A. I saw them more
particularly on the streets, on teams.

Q. Was that in the daytime or night?
A. That was in the evening.

Q. In the daytime during the present
vear have yvou seen and beer being haul-
ed through the streets of Bangor? A.
Daily occurrence.

Q. How large loads? A. Oh, varying
from a single keg to perhaps four or five
barrels or more on jiggers, partially cov-
ered, sometimes not.

Q. And those during daylight hours?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you seen any of those loads
backed up to any of those saloons which
vou have spoken about? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that a frequent oécurrence? A.
Trequent occurrence.

By Judge STEARNS:

Q. Have you ever made any attempt
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to seize any of these barrels of beer
and ale that have been carted through
the streets? A. I have not.

Q. Have you ever made
plaints? A. I have not.

Q. Never swore out any warrants? A,
I have not. :

Q. Haven't interfered in any way
whatsoever with the traffic? A. I have
not.

Mr. GEORGE F. HILL, having been
duly sworn, testified as follows:

Examination by Judge CLEAVES:

Q. What is your name? A. George F.
Hill,

Q. Where do you live?

Q. What is your
Farmer.

Q. Were you formerly connected with
the gheriff’s office of Penobscot county?
A. Oh, years ago, I was a deputy.

Q. And you come quite often into Ban-
gor and have been so doing the present
vears? A. Well, I average about once
a week.

Q. Now in I'ebruary of this year, did
vou make any particular observatlons in
Bangor in any places? A. I was in Ban-
gor about the middle of February. 1
wanted a glass of beer and I went into a
place on Franklin street and got it.

Q. Was it soft beer or regular beer?
A. Regular beer on draft; they drew it.

Q. What place was that? A. I don’t
know the name, but it is on the further
end of Franklin street before you get
to the bridge. They call it Peter some-
body, I think Peter McAuley. I think
that is the name,

Q. Was there a bar there? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Did you notice any other liquors
besides the kind you had? A, I don’t
know. There were bottles displayed on
the shelf.

Q. There were bottles showing plain-
Iv? A, Yes, sir.

Q. What we call long necked bottles?
A. Yes, sir, as we might call them. They
were filled and resembled whiskey hot-
tles.

Q. About a week later than that, did
you go into the same place? A, I did.

Q. In the meantime had anything oc-
curred? A. The first time I was in there
was before 11 o’clock. I went home on

any com-

A, Corinth.
occupation? A.
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the 11 o’clock train. I saw by my paper
that night that they had made a seizure
there and cleaned out the place.

Q. And then about a week later you
were again in Bangor? A. Yes, attend-
ing court, and going down from court I
went in again.

Q. Who, if anyone, connected with e
department of the sheriff at the present
time, did you see in there drinking? A,
I should say there were eight or 10 people
in there, from court part of them and
among them was a deputy sheriff.

Q. What is his name? A, F. C. Bar-
ker of Exeter.

Q. What was he doing? A. Drinking
with the crowd that was in there.

Q. Have you been in the Bangor House
during the year several times? A. Quite
often.

Q. Have you been in the barrcom of
the Bangor House? A. I think I have
been in there twice. In the month of
March I was in there and got a glass of
whiskey.

Q. What floor is it on? A. On the of-
fice floor.

O. Was there a bhar there? A. Yes,
sir

Q. With the ordinary bar equipment?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see any display of liquor
around that bar at that time? A. Well,
there was a fairly well equipped bar,
very good, and bottles displayed on top.
I think the last time T was in there, there
were two or three men in there.

Q. What time in March was that? A.
That was some time, I should say, along
about the middle of March.

Cross-Examination.
By JUDGE STEARNS:

Q. You live in East Corinth? A, I do.

Q. How long have you lived there? A.
Well, nearly 40 years.

Q. But not all the time during that
40 years? A, No, sir, T was in Bangor,
I have lived in Bangor twice within that
time.

Q. When did you cease trafficking in
intoxicating liguors? A. When I left
the Penobscot Exchange.

Q. How long ago was that? A.
‘95,

Q. And where else did you sell intoxi-

In
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cating liquor in Bangor as a business?
A Never.

Q. In connection with a hotel? A.
Never. .

Q. Didn’t you keep the Franklin
House? A. Yes, but I didn’t sell any-
thing. We sold under the Bangor plan
when I was in the Penobscot Exchange.

Q. You ere a deputy, were you not,
under Sheriff Gerard? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you removed from office for
a refusal to enforce the law? A, Yes,
sir, T refused to prosecute parties and
he discharged me.

At this point a recess was taken until
2.30 this afternoon.

After Recess.

Convention called to order by the Pres-
ident at 2.30 P. M.

THE PRESIDENT: The secretary will
call the roll of the convention.
PRESENT:—Sen. Allan of Washington,
Sen. Allen of Kennebee, Allen of Ma-
chias, Sen. Bailey, Bass, Benn, Benton,
Bither, Boman, Bowler, Sen. Boynton,
Bragdon of Sullivan, Bragdon of York,
Bucklin, Sen. Burleigh, Butler, Sen,
Chase, Chick, Clark of New DPortland,
Cochran, Sen. Colby, Sen. Cole, Sen. Co-
nant, Connors, Cook, Crowell, Currier,
Cyr, Davis, Descoteaux, Doherty, Dun-
ton, Durgin, Eastman, Eaton, Eldridge,
Elliott, Estes, Farnham, Farrar, kolsom,
Franck, Gallagher, Gamache, Goodwin,
Gordon, Greenleaf of Auburn, Greenleaf
of Otisfield, Sen. Hagerthy, Haines, Har-
man, Harper, Harriman, Haskell, Sen.
Hastings, Sen. Hersey, Higgins, Hutch-
ins, Irving, Jengins, Jennings, Sen. Jill-
son, Johnson, Jones, Kimball, Lawry,
Leary, Libby, Marston, Mason, Sen,
Maxwell of Sagadahoec, Maxwell of
Boothbay Harbor, McBride, McFadden,
Merrill, Mildon, Sen. Milliken, Mitchell
of Kittery, Mitchell of Newport, Mooers,
Sen. Morey, Morgan, Morrison, Morse,
Sen. Murphy, Newbert, Nute, O’Connell,
Packard of Newburg, Sen. Patten of
Hancock, Peacock, Peaks, Pendleton, Pe-
ters, Peterson, Pitcher, Putnam, Quinn,
Sen. Reynolds of Kennebec, Reynolds of
Lewiston, Sen. Ric.ardson of PPenobscot,
Richardson of Canton, Roberts, Robhin-
son, Rousseau, Sanborn, Sanderson, Sar-
gent, Scates, Skelton, Skillin, Sen. Smith
of Penobscot, Smith of Auburn, Smith of
Patten, Smith of Iresque Isle, Snow,
Spencer, Sen. Stearns, Stevens, Stuart.
Sturgis. Swift, Taylor, Thombs, Tobey,
Tryon, Umphrey, Violette, Sen. Walker,
Washburn, Waterhouse, Winchenbaugh,
Sen. Wing, Wise, Yeaton.
ABSENT:—Boland, Brennan, Brown,
Chadbourne, Churchill, Sen. Clark of
York, Clark of Portland, Donovan, Dress-

er, Dunbar, Sen. Dutton, Kmerson,
Emery. Sen. Flaherty, Jardner.
cock, Modsdon, Hogan, Kehoe, Kelleher
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of  Tortland, Kelleher of Waterville,
Leader, LeBel, Leveille, Sen. Mansfield,
Mathieson, Maybury, Metcalf, Morneau,
Sen. Moulton, Sen. Packard of Knox,
Plummer, Price, Ramsay, Ricker, Rolfe,
Sherman, Smith of Pittsfield, Sprague,
Htanley, Stetson, Swett, Thompson,

Trimble, Twombly, Wheeler.

THE PRESIDENT: The roll call dis-
cloges the presence of 135 members of
the convention.

Judge Cleaves,
the case,

Mr. EDWARD H. EMERY, having
been duly sworn, testifiedl as follows:

Examination by JUDGE CLEAVES.

Q. Your name is Edward H. Emery?
A, Yes, gir.

Q. And you live
sir.

Q. You are one of the field secretaries

vou will proceed with

at Sanford? A. Yes,

of the Christian Civie League? A, 1
am.
(. At any time during this year, have

you visited Bangor and other places of
that county to make observations in re-
gard to the sale of intoxicating liquors?
A. I have.

Q. What ‘was the date of your visit?
A. March 14

Q. Will you tell us in your own way,
keeping in mind the location of the
places, a general description of each
place before you leave it, what you ob-
served within those places, and if you
purchased anything, state it. A. On the
suggestion of Doctor Berry, the super-
intendent of the Civic League, I went
to Bangor to make some observations
as to whether the prohibitory law was
being enforced or not, and if it was vio-
lated, to what extent, and how openly.
He instructed me, if I could, in every
instance, to buy liguor, to try a few
places and see what I could do. I ar-
rived there between 5 and 6 o’clock in
the afternoon and started up Exchange
street and turned into the first place,
which I think is 73, It looked like a bar

room. This was P. H. McNarama’'s
place, or at least had his name on the
window. A partition within the room

goes part way across the room, leaving
an opportunity at each side of the par-
tition to pass berind it. On the left hand
side, there was a counter that extended
through the room next to the street, back
to and used on one end as a cigar counr
ter, and behind this partition is a bar.
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Standing in the street, I could look into
the bar, both ways, but could not see
the bar itself. I mean the counter over
which the liquor was served. I couid
see the shelves behind the bar and on
those shelves were arranged various bot-
tles of ligquors. There was a portiere
hanging over this door intended to cover
it, but it was pushed back and did not
cover it. "I went into the place and
around the other end of the partition,
and up to the bar and purchased half a
pint of whiskey for which I paid 25 cents.
The whiskey was taken from behind

that bar where the bottles were piled
up like stove wood, on their sides.
I then went to about 111 ¥Hxchange

street. It was not 111 but near there. I
do not know the number for I ceculd
not see any on the door. This was a
regular barroom arranged as harrooms
are, as they have been described =o
many times here, with a partition back
from the door. I do not remember what
was in the front room, put in the back
room there was intoxicating liquor on
the ghelves. T bought half a pint of
whiskey and breought it away for which
I paid 35 cents. This was put up for
me by the bartender. From there T
wernt to Center street, where I got some
supper and then went to the Winslow
bar, sc-called. This is at the rear of a
barher shep located at 8 Harlow street,
Passing through the barber shop, and
passing gambling machines which were
being operated, I came into this bar-
room which was large and had a nice-
ly furnished bar. There was quite a
stock of liquor on tlie shelves behind
the bhar. Three men were sitting at the
table in this room drinking heer, but
other men were being served at the bar
and 1 stepped up to the bar and called
for half a pint of whiskey for which I
paid 35 cents. The bartender, dressed
in a white coat, put it up, and T left
that place. I went fron: there to the
Young Men's Christian Association
rooms, where I made notes of what I
had doue for fear T would get confused
over s¢ many places. Then I went to 49
Hammond street. This place ig in full
sight of the court house, diagonally
across the street from the jail vard,
and three doors from the City building.
This room had a screen instead of a
partition that hid the bar from the
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view oif those who would come in the
door. Passing around the end of the
screen, I found five men at the bar,
some drinking. I purchased half a pint
of whiskey, put up by the bartender
for which 1 paid 25 cents. T went from
there to Broad street, and turning up
toward Pickering square, next
Durniv’'s Sea Yood store, which is the
cenly way I can locate it for there was
no number on it. I went into Crow’s
place. I do not know Mr. Crow, but it
has been so deseribed. In the rear room,
I found &4 bar and quite a number of
men drinking. After they finished serv-
ing them, I called for half a pint of
whiskey, which was put up for me and
for which 1 paid 25 cents.

QR. Was there quite a display of li-
quor there that you could see opcenly?
A. There was a considerable display
in that place. It was fairly iarge, but
not as elaborately furnished or finish-
ed as some. I went from there to the
Manhattan Cafe at 200 Exchange street.
This is more than an ordinary place
in its furnishings. It has a frosted glass
partition, swinging doors so that you
could keep 1¢ the right and not ob-
struct tratlic. There are two doors. I
stopped on the sidewalk and saw eight
men corme from there in one company.
I dn uot remember how many came
from there in five minutes; four bhoys.
1 saw (wo boys go behind the partition.
I wenl in but they had disappeared.
There was a flight of stairs that went
scmewhere. 1T had been told where therr
go but I cannot testity to it. There was
a nicely stocked bar there iwith three
Lartenders behind it. There was a cash
register which had the name of Jchn
H. Russell on it.

Q. Was it in that place yocu saw a
drunken mean with bilis between his
fingers and a half dollar in his hand?
A, Yes, sir, but it was at another vis-
it. Thicre were scveral men drinking at
the bar this time. I pushed into the
place that opened up at the kar and
asked ftor half a pint of whiskey and
mstead of putting up a half pint, they
put up a pint for whieh I paid 50 cents.
7 went to the corner of xchange street
and Look a car for Old Town, and ar-
rived about 10 minutes past nine. Shall
T teil you about Old Town?

Q. Yes. A. Going down Water

to.
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This was so crowded, I concluded I

would waste time to stay there, and I
only stayed long cnough to see them
serving lieer and what looked like
whiskey. The bottles were marked
“whiskey,” then I went out. I went to
a place two doors from the railroad
crossing of the B. & A. which runs
through the town. I went in there and
Tound, T think, {ive men drinking at
that bar. I called for one half pint of
vihiiskey which was served, the barten-
der taking a bottle from the bar and
filling a hall pint bottle for me. There
was some display of liquors here. Then
I wulked on down the street toward
the railroad station. I passed three or
four more places that tallied with ther
in outward description, but I did not
go into them. Then I went up Water
street to the moving picture show, the
building in which the moving picture
show is conducted. The building north
ol that is the Riverside House or Ho-
tel. Going into this, I went to the bar-
reom and found five men in there and
a bartender, a stock of liquors, and I
becught one half pint of whiskey. 1
went out uand retraced my steps by
the mcving picture show and went into
the next door below. There was a bar-
room and a well stocked bar, eight men
in the front room, five men in the bar-
room. I purchased half a pint of whiskey
and came out from there. The next
door is a barroom, but I did not go
into it, but saw from the street li-
quors upon the shelves and men go-
ing in and coming out. From there I
went to a saloon, but it was so full ¥
did not try to go in. I went away
and waited a short time and thea
came back and saw a company of mea
coming from the saloon and I went
in. I found five men in there. I pur-
chased half a pint of whiskey and
laid down 25c. and the bartender said
it will cost you 30c¢c. and I give him a

nickel. As I came out, another man
asked for whiskey and they served
him as I came away, I went down

to the Commercial House and went to
register for the night, and I remem-
her there were two men registered on
the register. As 1 started to register
my name, they told me they could not
keep me, that the rcoms were all oc—

street, I went to the Eagle House bar., cupied, but the clerk very kindly vol-
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me where I could
stay that night., He took me to th=2
hotel next door. These were both ho-
tels. I think it is called the Crockett
Hotel. It has a large bar which was
well finished and furnished with 1i-
quors. I did not ask to buy anvthing
but went to bed. That is the first trip.

Q. At any of those places whicn
you visited this first time either in
Bangor or Old Town, did you find any
locked doors? A. Xo, sir, they were
invitingly open. -

Q. At any of these that you visited
that first time either in Bangor or Oid
Town, did you meet any locked doors
or fastened doors? A. XNo, the doors
were invitingly open in several places.

unteered to take

Q. Did you sec or ohserve any
watchers of any sort? A. None at
all.

Q. Now when next did you visit
Bangor? A. On the 2nd of April 1

went to Bangor the second time,

Q. That was a week ago, yester-
day? A. Well, I think so, it was the
second of April,

Q. Now you may state what you
did, where you went, and what yon
observed on the second day of Aprit?

A. I went to Bangor arriving about
the same time that I did on the first
irip, between 5 and 6 o’clock; ~went
up to City Hall and started there. 1
visited No. 40 Hammond strecet, th2
second time. There were two men, in
the bar this time, and one man be-
hind the bar—I mean two men in the
room, and one behind the bar. 1 pur-
chased a half pint of whiskey. This
time, however, there was no whiskey
on the shelves. He opened a drawer
in the cabinetwork behind the bar, the
bar being here (indicating) and the
buffet, 1 think they call it, was there
He opened a drawer in there and took
from the drawer a half pint of whis-
ey ready put up. There were numer-
ous other hottles in the drawer from
which he took this. 1 got some sup-
per and went to 17 Franklin streef
This was a rather more than ordinary
bar. It was nicely finished. But
there were no liquors in sight. The
hartender had on a white coat and
was out in the floor fixing the electric
chandelier when 1 got there, but he

1853

went behind the bar and I called for a
half pint of whiskey and he opened
a drawer containing several bottles,
and when I said 25 cent whiskey, he
sorted them over and picked out one
for me. From there I went to the
shack, the building described as thz
shack on Harlow street, near the East
Central Square, I think it is, in Ban-
gor. When I turned into Harlow from
Central street, going toward the
Maine Central Station and probably
40 yards before 1 got to the place I
saw through a window several men
standing at the bar, and going down
to the front of the building, I looked
in through the door, this room hav-
ing a pertition, but the door being
open, saw a company of men in there
and went in. This was the roughest,
poorest finished bar that I saw in
Bangor. The building was made of
plain boards and covered with roofing
paper. It was an ordinary bar thar
they used to sell the liquor over. The
bartender was serving several men
who were there, one of them from a
large bottle which had a white color
like water, and some Kkind of Ii-
quor in a small glass which I
assumed, though I don’t know, hut I
assumed was brandy. He followed this
with some ginger ale. There was beer
on the bar being served. I don’t know
whether iz was drawn from bottles or on
draught. I called for a half pint of whs-
key. It was put up from a bottle that
was set on the shelf with a cigar box
set in front of it. I saw on the shelf
that ran along behind the bar but con-
nected with the bar—perhaps that is not
giving the description right—it would be
here and the bartender standing there
(indicating)—I saw bottles from which he
served the other customers, but mine be-
ing the 2t-cent grade, he took that from
the shelf. From there, I went back up
to the Windsor bar. There had Lecen a
transformation in there since my first
visit. There was beer being served to a
voung man who sat at a table out in the
floor. Thlere were no liquors on the
shelves and when I called for a half pint
of whiskey they opened the docor in the
buffet and took out one of probably a
dozen bottles that stood in there, put it
up for me and T paid them 25 cents {ov
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it. There were four men in this place,
three in there when I got there and one

came in after I got there. Irom there
I went down to the bar which has been
described as Jameson’s bar, next to the
shack. This is a very elaborate bar. The
front room was rigged for the sale of ci-
gars and there seemed to be quite a quan-
tity of cigars in that front room. The
back room was used for a barroom,
nothing else that I saw. Bartender in
a white coat. I called for a half pint
of whiskey. There were two men in this
place. The bartender immediately put
up the half pint of whiskey from a bottle
which he took from the shelf below the
bar. I paid him 25 cents and went to the
next door, repeated the performance.
This was a barroom rigged like the first
one, and I should think fully as elabor-
ate. This is Tony McAloon's place, at
least that is the information that I got.
From there I went to the station and got
my dress-suit case and went to my room
and wrote out what 1 have told you from
notes that I had made along the way.
Then I went back onto the street about
9 o’clock. I went down to the Crowes
place on Broad street, as you turn up
from DIickering square. There were S0
many men in there that 1 had to walit
fully five minutes before I could get mine.
I got a half pint of whiskey and came
out. There were no liquors displayed
there this time, but there was llquor ke-
ing served and they got mine from the
shelf behind the bar, put it up for me
while I waited. From there . went to
the Manhattan Cafe. There were seven
men at the bar here in various stages of
intoxication. One of the men was rather
excited. He was bare-headed. I don’t
know where his hat was. He had money
in his hand, sticking out between each
of his fingers, a roll of bills, 50 cents in
the other hand and he was trying to per-
suade the bartender that he had paid
for the last round of drinks. The bar-
tender denied this. While they were de-
bating it, 1 waited and walked into the
end of the bar because they were lined
up and down the front of the bar, which
was not a very long one. It is a nice
one but not very large. And I stood
where I could see behind the bar. sue
shelf had a number of bottles of liguor
on thig shelf, 'When the bartender could
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wait on me, I called for a half pint of
whiskey. He walked along and picked
up one of the bottles and examined it.
They didn’t have the right brand and he
went to the buffet and opened one of the
doors and took out a bottle from which
he filled a half pint bottle for me.

Q. Now as a result of that dispute as
to whether the man had paid for the last
round of drinks or not, did you notice
the barkeeper take the end of the cash
register and show him the last sale,
which amounted to $1.157 A, I saw it
After they had debated the question
whether he had paid for the drinks or
not, the bartender walked along to the
cash register and in some way unfasten-
ed the castiron cover that is over the
roll of paper that registers the purchases
and removing that, he sald, ““Look there,
$1.15. What in hell do you make out of
that with your half dollar?”’

Q. Upon your visit the 14th of March,
as you went about these various places,
did you see beer on draught, being
drawn behind the bar? A, I did in nu-
merous places. A number of places.

Q. What change did you note from
that practice in March and a week ago
vesterday A. TIn no instance did I see
beer drawn, only poured from bottles.
Going from the Manhattan Cafe to 111
Exchange street, I went in there and
‘when the bartender could wait on me,
he had seven men at his bar, part of
them were playing cards but one man
was very insistent that they should sell
him some ale but the bartender told him
he had ‘had enough—so I thought that
was a good time for me to ask for mine
and I called for half a pint of whiskey
which was immediately put up for me
vy the bhartender and Y took it and went
out. On one side of the room as I was
going out, T saw 2 man sitting in a chair
very much intoxicated. This man who
was travelling up and down by the bar
demanding ale was quite under the in-
fluence of liquor. From there T went
back to P. H. McNamara’'s place and
purchased a half pint of whiskey there,
Then I went down to the Devil's Half-
Acre and looked it over. - I didn’t buy
anything,

Q. TUpon this latter visit, did you find
any fastened doors? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you observe any watchers?
No, sir,

A,
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Cross- Examination.

;v JUDGE STEARNS:

(. This is your constant business, Mr.
Jimery, investigating breaches of the
prohibitory law? A, Not my constant
business, no, sir. When instructed to do
so hy the superintendent, I do.

Q. What other business have you? A,
Well, I am doing the work of the Civic
League as its secretary.

Q. And that has largely to do- with
the watching of the observance of the
prohibitory law, doesn't it? A. No, sir,
“We do observe the enforcement and non-
enforcement of the prohibitory law.
That is only a part of the wvork of the
League.

Q. And do you investigate regarding
the enforcement of all laws? A, I don’t
think they do all laws. Gambling, Sab-
bath desecration, some investigation of
prostitution was made by Mr. Pringle,
some other laws.

Q. But other crimes you don’t inves-

tigate, or you don’t inquire into the
preaches of them except those Yyou
named? A. I don't recall any others
now. The officers usually look after
those.

Q. Now you are a clergyman? A. No,
«ir, never was, never expect to be.

Q. Mr. Berry is a clergyman? A,
He is.

Q. And you are a member of some
church of course? A, I am.

Q. Which? A. Congregational church
of Sanford.

Q. And how many bottles of whiskey
did you buy under Mr. Berry's order
while you were in Bangor altogether?
A. The first trip I bought six, I think
it was, and the second one 11.

Q. And you carried them all away
with you? A. I did.
JAMES A. GIBBONS, having been

duly sworn, testified as follows:

Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. Your name, Mr, Gibbons?
A, James A. Gibbons.
Q. And you are the— A. I am a

freight agent of the Maine Central Rail-
road, in Bangor.

Q. Tave you with you the duplicate
original slips covering January, Febru-
ary. March of this year? A. T have.

Q. Now will you take the month of
March (witness produces slips) Now
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at the suggestion of the attorney gen-
eral, did you, from those of the month
of March separate out the slips which
were undoubtedly intended for individ-
wal use, and take the others and make
some tabulation? A. No, sir, T took
{hose for consignees that had several
shipments, and I have sorted those to-
gether and made a list of the number
and what the commodities were. The
rest of them I have got in the file in
order, and whatever questions you want
to ask in regard to them I can answer.

. And those which you separated
out for the month of March were con-
signed to people who are reputed to be
in the liguor business in Bangor?
A. Well, as a matter of repute, 1 pre-
sume that it means if I had heard peo-
ple say—

Q. Yes. A. There are some of them, a
large number of shipments, that I don’t
know as I have ever heard the names
discussed.

Q. Now will you take some one and
give us the name of the consignee?
A. Here are some billed to—Epstein,
Epstein Bottling Co., E. P. Hpstein—
same concern, [ should say from the
receipts of the truckmen who took them.

Q. What date have you there?
A. T have March 12, all the month of .
March to this consignee.

Q. The one you hold in your hand, is

March 12?7 A. March 12.

. What quantity? A. 21% barreis
of peer; March 11, 12 half barrels of
beer: March 3rd, ¢0 halves; March 13,
b burrels bottled keer: March 28, 20
quarter parrels; March 26, 30 halves
anid & quarters of beer; March 22, 30

halves of beer; Marech 22, 6 half bar-
rols and 6 cases of beer; March 18, 30
halves of beer; March 15, 30 halves of
heer; here ig one that date of delivery
is April 2nd, I don’t know whether that
ig pertinent or not.

Q. What is the quantity? A. 20 hail
barrels of beer. April 1st, 10 half bar-
relg of beer, and that is all.

Q. What is the total of those you
have just read? A. 188 half barrels of
beer, 5 barrels, 2b quarters, 5§ cases.

). The next? A. The next is J. M.
[Ross, and the Ress Bottling Co. On

March 18, 25 half barrels of heer.

Q. Perhaps I can shorten the matter
a little. Mr. Gibbons, will you tell us
what the total receipts of March for
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that concern are? A. For J. M. Ross,
10 barrels beer, 115 halt barrels, 2 guar-
ters; the Ross Bottling Co., 108 halves,
6 quarters beer, 4 barrels of whiskey.

Q. XNow give us the next one, the
totais? A. TPope D. McKinnon, 60 haif
barrels, 16 quarters, 3 barrels of beer,
29 half barrels, 5 barrels ale; 16 kegs,
11 barrels, 10 cases whiskey, 1 kez
brandy, z cases gin, § kegs, 5 cases li-
quor, 1 case of wine.

J. A. Burns, 8 barrels, 10 halves, 8
cquarters of beer; i barrel and 1 case of
wine, 1 barrel, 6 cases of whiskey, 1
case cf ligquor.

Bangor Bottling Coimpany, 133 halves
of beer, 2¢ guarters.

J. I1. Sullivan, 14 kegs, 84 cases, 5 bar-
rels, 11 half barrels whiskey; 56 bar-
rels, ¢ halves, 31 casks bottled bheer; 56

halves, 56 gquarters beer, 129 barrels,
S84 halves, 27 quarters of ale, 1 case

Purter, 7 cases and 1 keg gin; 1 barrel,
10 casks bottled ale; 2 cases and 2 kegs
of rum, 1 barrel, 1 half barrel, 6 kegs
1 case of wine; 3 barrels, 9 cases of li-
guor; 4 cases, 2 half barrels and 3 bar-
rels of brandy; a can of alcohol.

M. J. Buckley, 66 barrels, 75 halves,
14 quarters beer; 7 barrels, 35 cases of
whiskey; 1 barrel, 5 cases of liquor;.

Willinm McGuire, 115 quarters of ale
and beer, 145 half barrels of ale and
beer, 16 casks beer, 5 cases whiskey, 1
barrel, 2 half barrels rum, 11 half har-
rels whiskey.

T. P. McAloon, 73 barrels, 49 half
Larrels, 4 quarters, 11 cases ale, 110
harrels, (5 halves, 8 quarters beer, 313
harrels and 12 cases whiskey, 5 cases
zin, 1 varrel, 5 cases rum, 3 cases wine,
2 cases brandy.

Martin Cex, 72 haif barrels beer, 44
cases whiskey, 9 harrels whiskey, 8
cascs rum, 1 cask whiskey, 12 cases li-
quors, 1 case gin, 8 barrels bottied beer.

R. D. Crowe, 2 cases bottled liquor, 31
half barrels ale, 15 cases whiskey, 23
half barrels of beer, box of wine, 4
quarter barrels ale, 13 barrels liguor, 1
keg whiskey, 10 quarter karrcls beer, 5
harreis beer, 1 can alcohol, 2 cases li-
quor, 2 cases gin.

J. J. McCann, 6 barrels, 20 cases
whiskey, 16 barrels, 5 quarters and 25
cases beer, 2 half Larrels gin and 2
harvel of gpirits.

That takes all that T have enumerat-
ed—totals.
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in the month
Yes, sir.

Q. That is
only? A.

of March

Q. And ycu have also with you the
same records with reference to January

and February, have you? A. I have,
yes, sir.

Q. Will you exhikit them in their
buik form to the convention. A. There

are the receipts for January (produc-
ing bunch of slips); there are the re-
celpts for February (producing bunch
of slivs).

Q. And your examination of them
evidences substantially the same ship-
mernts or shipments of the same kind
of geoods, with approximately the same
quantities to the same people? A. That
is a hard guestion, Judge Cleaves.
There is no question whatever but they
are the same commodities, to the same
consignee, in the same quantities—I
have not gone "nto it in any details,
vou uaderstand.

Cross-Examination.

By MR. THOMPSON:

Q. Mr. Gibbons, can you tell this Con-
vention, if you have any means of know-
ing, what these different kinds of beer
are, that is to say, are any of those beers
Tno beers, or what we call a soft beer?
A. That is a matter that you cannot
tell from the Dbill.

Q. Does the particular name or brand
of the beer appear? A, Not on the
bill, no.

Q. Now in regard to the liquor shipped,
is that also true of the liquors? A. Why,
just what do you mean?

Q. Do the different kinds show? A,
Very nearly all. There is only one or
two that is not specified except as
liquor; nearly all the rest is plain enough.

Q. And have you made any examina-
tion of your records so as to tell this’
Convention the amount shipped in Jan-
uary or February? A. No.

Q. And what will be your judgment
as to the amount shipped in those
nonths in comparison with the amount
shipped in March, would it be more or
less? A. They would run as—why, T
should say that they would not differ to
any great extent.

Q. Now how far back should vou say
that same condition wo.ld exist? A,
As to—
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Q. The amount shipped? A. As far
back as I can remembper,
Q. And that is how long ago? A,

Why, quite a few years.
Re- Direct Examination.

By JUDGE CLEAVES:

Q. 'Those slips, Mr. Gibbons, that you
have tabulated and recad from, will you
leave them so that either counsel can
use them in argument? A. I presume
you have the right to demand that—

Q. I don’t mean your originals, but
thogse tabulations you have made. A,
Oh, certainly.

R. J. PLUMMER called for the prose-
cution, gworn, in answer to questions by
Judge Cleaves, testified as follows:

Q. You live at Old Town? A. Yes, s.r,

Q. What is your occupation? A. I am
agent for the Maine Central Eailroad.

Q. At 0Old Town? A, At Old Town;
ves, sir.

Q. Have you in your possession tue
duplicate original delivery slips showing
shipments of intoxicating liquors to con-

signees at Old Town through tha three
months of the present year? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. And from those slips have You

made any duplicate figures that you can
give the convention? A. 1 have; yes, sir,

Q. Will you give us the totals, men-
tioning the articles and the consignees
for the month of January? A. I have
all three months together, for the entire
period.

«. You haven’t separated them? A. I
haven’t,

Q. You can give it in the form in
which you have it. A. Do you want the
total amounts for the individuals, or the
whole total?

Q. Total amounts for individuals. A.
The first name is A. G. Perro. One hun-
dred and eighteen barrels, 429 half bar-
rels, 44 quarter barrels, 20 cases of beer
and ale, 146 barrels of bottled beer, 11
barrels of whiskey, two barrels of gin, 1
barrel of rum, 8 barrels and 15 cases of
liquor.

P. H. Shea, 83 half barrels and 17 quar-
ter barrels of ale and beer, 5 Dbarrels
whiskey, three barrels gin, one barrel
rum, 20 cases liquor, 34 barrels bottled
beer.
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J. J. Sandell, 1 barrel ale, 6 half bar-
rels ale, 3 (uarter barrels ale, 6 barrels
bottled beer, and 5 kegs of liquors.

Ledger Pepin, 49 half barrels of ale.

Mitchell Goodrow, 4 barrels and two
half barrels of whiskey, one case of li-
guor, and one keg of liquor.

M. Cain, 21 barrels, 19 half barrels, 2
quarter barrels of ale and beer, 10 cases
of ligquor, 9 barrels bottled beer.

. E. Bouchard, 31 barrels, 3 half bar-
rels, and 37 quarter barrels of ale, 3 cases
of ale, 3 barrels of whiskey, 1 barrel of
rum, 1 barrel of liquor, and one Kkeg of
liquor.

Feb. Demo, 13 barrels and 4 quarter
barrels of ale, 1 barrel of liquor, § cases
of liguor, and ¢ kegs of liquor,.

J. Cote, 1 barrel and % barrel ale, 1
barrel whiskey.

J. A. Heald & Company, 2 barrels and
% barrel of ale, one barred whiskey, 2
cases liquor, 3 barrels bottled boor and
three kegs liguor.

P. St. Louis, 1 half barrel ale, 4 kegs
liguor.

And that is all I had tabulated, ex-
cepting our regular druggists.

Q. Will you leave that slip from
which you read so that it can be used
in argument by either counsel? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. You have the slips of which yon
have spoken in your possession, anld
you have personally made this tabu-
lation from those slips? A. Yes, sir.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Thompson.

Q. This covers the three months,
Mr. Plummer? A. Three months, yes,
sir,

Q. You live in Old Town? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. And vou have lived therec how
many years? A. 16 years.

Q. You can’t tell this convention,
or give this convention any idea, as
to the comparison between th:
amounts shipped the past thres
months and some previous time? A.
Previous years, do you mean?

Q. Yes. A. Well, it would be a
pretty hard thing to tell.

Q. Do you do all the freight work

at Old Town? A. I am agent, ves,
sir, with my assistants.
Q. And you do the freight swork
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Yourself? A,
have assistants.

Q. You live up town somewhere?
WAL Yes,

Q. And in coming and going from
the depot from your home regularly,
could you tell the convention anything
about the conditions in Old Town at
the present time, say today, in com-
parison with the first day of January?
I mean so far as the sale of intoxicat

In part, of course I

ing liquor is concerned? A. No, I
<can’t, personally I can’t.
Q. You know nothing about the

the conditions in your town? A. What
do you mean?

Q. I mean the conditions so far as
drunkenness is concerned, comparing
today or the present time with a
month or two months ago. A. I can't
see as I see any difference.

Q. No difference? A. XNo.

Q. Just the same? A, Just about
the same.

Q. Do you follow the records of
the police courts at all? A. XNo sir,
never.

Q. Are there as many drunken men
around vour station as there were twy
months ago? A. Just about the same.

REV. CHESTER J. BROWN, called
for the prosecution, sworn, in answer
to questions by Judge Cleaves, testified
-as follows:

Q. Your
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And over what charge do you pre-

side? A. No charge in the city of Ban-
gor. :
Q. And during the past three months
have you made any investigations and
observations in regard to the sale of
intoxicating ligquor in Bangor? A. No
particular or specical investigation un-
til the present week.

Q. Previous to that a general obser-
vation? A. Yes, sir, it was apparent.

Q. Up to the present week? A. The
present week.

Q. What day? A. Monday evening.

Q. Will you tell the convention
where you went, what you did, and what
you saw, on Monday evening, in Ban-
gor? A. A friend was with me, and
we went over the following streets be-
ginning at one corner of the Devil’s Half
Acre, the corner of Broad and Union
streets. We counted some 10 or a doz-

residence is Bangor?
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en saloons in succession, and then we
quit counting and went around through
Pickering square, and then we went
over across the bridge and down to the
railroad station and stopped a few mo-
ments, and then we went up French
street to Hancock street, and along Han-
cock street back to West Market square.
We returned by the way of Washing-
ton and Exchange streets to West Mar-
ket square. From West Market square
we went around again on Pickering
square, and took one of the side Streets
up Union street from Pickering square.

Q. Now did you go into any place?
A. We went in to only one place, and
we didn't go into that place to see what
was being done there, we could see
enough from the street without enter-
ing any place.

Q. Now going along these several
streets, having had a general observa-
tion of the same places, or a number of
the same places, during the three
months of this year, did you see any of
the barrooms or saloons closed in Ban-
gor, on Monday evening of this week?
A. No, sir, unless there were a few of
the poorer class on Hancock street. I
was informed by my companion that
they were— (objected to) 4

Q. But with the exception of a few
of the poorer clauss— A. There might
have been a few on Hancock street. I
never was on Hancock street before.

Cross-Examination by Judge Stearns.

Q. You live in Bangor, you say, Mr.
Brown? A. Yes, sir.

Q. But aren’t settled
church there? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you minister to any flock any-
where? A. 7Yes, sir.

Q. Where? A. TForty thousand Sun-
day school pupils in the State of Maine.

W. You visit the Sunday schools? A.
T visit them. yes, sir,

Q. And is that your present employ-
ment? A, That is my present employ-
ment.

Q. Do you know the sheriff of Penob-
scot, Major Emerson? A, T am not per-
sonally acquainted with him.

Q. Have you ever met him? A, I
have, sir.

Q. And when? A. I met him in the
court house the first of March.

Q. Have you ever had any conversa-
tion with him? A. I have, sir.

over any
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Q. And do you remember of having
conversation with him the last of Febru-
ary? A. 'The last of February or first
of March?

Q. And at that time did you congratu-
late him on his efforts in attempting to
enforce the prohibitory law? A, I con-
gratulated him on the step that he had
taken at the beginning of the year.

Q. That meant an attempt to enforce
the prohibitory law in Bangor, didn’t it?
That was what you had in mind? A. I
had in mind—you can call me down if 1
g0 too far.

JUDGE STEARNS:
far, Mr. Brown,

WITNESS: 1 had in mind simply this.
I suggested that if he would enforce the
law, I would see that the religious hodies
of the State supported him.

Q. And you congratulated him on the
efforts he had already made? A. That
one effort, that is all I know anything
about.

. That was about the last of Febru-
ary? A, It was, sir, I don’t recollect
the exact date, either the last of Febru-
ary or the first of March.

Q. How long did you say you had
lived in Bangor? A Since August, 1909.

W. About four years? A. Nearly, sir.

ROBERT B. COOKSON, called for the
prosecution, sworn, in answer to ques-
tions by Judge Cleaves, testified as fol-
lows:

Q. You are recorder of the municipal
court of the city of Bangor? A. The
clerk.

Q. T hand you a package of papers,
and ask you if those are the original
complaints and warrants sworn out from
the Bangor municipal court during the
montn of January Dby Sheriff Emerson
or any of his deputies? Will you see if
they consist of 26 in all? A, It did
when 1 delivered them to you.

Q. You can count it and see if we
are honest. A. ‘"I'‘wenty-six.

Q. Have you any opinion now to ex-
press as to our honesty? A. Not any,
I know the society you belong to.

Q. You find 26 there? A, Twenty-six,

You :won't go too

yes, sir,
Q. And after going over the matter
are you able to state from your in-

vestigation whether in 14 of thosec
cases o fine and costs were paid? Al
I think so, ves, sir. You didn't take
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this from me. Yes, there were 14 of

those paid.
Q. I hand you another paQckage
of papers, and ask you if those are

the original complaints and warrants
in the same kind of matters sworn
out by Sheriff Emerson or any of his
deputies during the month of Febru-
ary of this year, and if you find that
they are, see if they consist of 18 in
all. A, 18 is correct.

Q. And will you consult your paper
and see if in nine of those cases fine
and costs were paid? A. Nine, yes,
sir.

Q. I hand you another package,
and ask you if those are the original
complaints and warrants issued from
the Bangor municipal court upon the
complaint of Sheriff Emerson or his
deputies for liquors for the, month of
March, and if you find that they con-
sist of 63 in all? A. Yes, 63.

Q. And of those 63 did 32 result in
payment of fine and costs? A, Thir-
ty-one and a half.

Q. There was a woman that give
$50 and that was all that she had, was

it? A This woman was arrested on
the complaint of the sheriff and
brought into court. She had been

running a place denominated there as
a ‘‘shebang”’—I don't know what that
means exactlyv—and they brought her
in there and had her arraigned, and
they summoned thie chief of police in
therc—

Judge CLEAVES: I think perhaps
we needn’t go into that.
WITNESS: She promised to go out

of the husiness and leave the city, and
$60 was all she had, so the court ac-
cepied that wunder lier promise to
j=ave and go out of business.

Q. And that was one of the sheriff's
maiters? A Yes, sir, and since then

she has been arrested and sent to
prison.

Q She is in jail now? A. Yes, sir.
Q. Waiting for trial? A. Bound
over.

Q. 'Within the last few days? Al
Yes, sir.

Q. Will you leave these original

warrants in the custody of the secre-
tary of the Senate to be returned to
vou after this case ig concluded? Are
vou willing to do that? A, I wilt
will hecome responsible for them.
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Cross-examination by Mr. Thomp-
‘son.

Q. Mr. Cookson, does your office
keep a record of all warrants issued
for infringement of the prohibitory
law? A. 1 think they do, yes, sir.

Q. Don’t you know whether they do
or not? A. You know they come in
there and swear out a warrant for par-
ties unknown,

Q. You mean the sherift’s depart-
ent? A. The sheriff’s départment.
Tiney have done it, and they go out and
search and find nothing, then there is
a small fee coming to them, and 1
think iliail goes up to the county com-
missioners. ’

Q. Wthat becomes of those warrants,
do they go to the county commission-
ers? A. Yes, sir.

Q. According to your tabulation
here, there were 107 warrants, or yomn
have 107 warrants here, is that right?
That is to say, it is 26 and 18 and 63?
Ao If that is the addition, ves, sir.

Q. Now then, how many more war-
rants were called for by the sheriff’s
department than that 1072 A. I can’t
te!l you. I didn’t think that would be
hecessaiy.

Q. Were there more? A. Do you
mean of the search and seizures whers
they were unsuccessful?

Q. For any violations or infractions
of tie prohibitory law? A. Yes, I
don’t kriow how many. '

Q. There were some more? A. Oh,
yes.

Q. Now these particular search and
<seizure warrants that you have here,
or illegal keeping, or illegal franspor-
tation—they are all from the sheriff's
departinent? A. Every one of them,
yes.

Q. And are they all confined to the
city of Bangor? A. I think so.

Q. Were there any search warrants
issuad for parties in the city of Brew-
er in thiz package? A. Well, 1T think
s0. Upon reflection I . think that we
have jurisdiction there and a deputy
was down there, went in to get a
match, and ran into a barroom.

Q. Did he make a seizure there? A,
Yes, sir.

Q. Does your court have jurisdic-
tion in Orono? A. 1 think so.

Q. Are any of these cases from Oro-
©w0? A. I don’t remember.
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Q. As far as you can remember, Mr.
Cookson, these cases are either from
Bangor c¢r Brewer? A. Every one of
thiem.

Q. Could ycu give this convention
any information as tc how many war-
rants were called for by the sheriff's
department that are not given here? A.
Neo, I could give it later, if necessary.

Q. According to your tabulation
nere, it 1 have added correctly, there
are 55 sentenced by the court, ¢r as vou
suggest, fine and costs were paid. What
Yecame of the others? A. Those must
have been cases where they found
nothing.

Q. Those were returned into court?
A. Yes, sir.

AMBROSE F. PENDLETON, called
for the prosecution, sworn, in answer to
questions by Judge Cleaves, testlfied as
follows:

Q. You live in Brewer? A. I do.

Q. And have been mayor of the city?
A. I have.

Q. Have you business
1 have,

Q. What is your business? A. Real
estate and fire insurance.

Q. Now during the last three months
have you made any observations in re-
gard to any places in Bangor with refer-
ence to the sale of intoxicating liquor?
A. My knowledge of the sale of intoxi-
cating liquor in Bangor is very limited.
I have some knowledge.

Q. Now at one place in Haymarket
square, at the Cox place, have they put
a steel ceiling in there in that barroom
since the first day of January? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Have you been in the place since
the first day of January? A. 1 have.

Q. What did you observe with refer-
ence to any display of liquors? A.
‘Well, at the time I was in there they
hadn’t got this steel ceiling in. In the
main part of this place was a lunch
room, and in the rear was the bar,

Q. After they got the ceiling in, did
you go into the place? A. No, sir. I
haven’t been in since the put the ceil-
ing in.

Q. Have you been
Oak? A. I have.

Q. Were you in there last Friday? A.
I was,

Q. You take your meuls there each

in Bangor? A.

into the Golden
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noon day, do you? A. I do four

out of the week.

days

Q. Is there a bar at the rear of the
eating place? A. There is.

Q. How long were you there every
day eating your mnoon day meal? A.

Alout 15 minutes.
Q. During that time did you count the
number of people who went through the
dining room out into the bar? A. I did.
Q. How many were there? A. Twen-
ty-two.
Q. Did you
there yesterday? A.

take your noonday meal
I did.

Q. And how many did you count then
going through the dining room part and
into the bar? A. Thirteen.

Q. What have you observed during the
last three months in regard to loads of
barrels, beer barrels, being hauled
through the streets of Bangor, principal
streets, in the daytime? A. It is a very
frequent sight to see them hauled
through the streets, loads of six and sev-
en bharrels at a time.

Q. Now have you Sseen any such
loads back up to any of these places
that have heen deseribed as barrooms?
A, T have,

Q. How frequent an occurrence is
that in the daytime? A. I have only
scen that at one time.

Q. But the carrying or hauling of
loads of barrels through the streets ot
Rangor in the daytime is a common
occurrence? A, Yes, sir, and in Brew-
er also.

Cross-Examination by Judge Stearns.

Q. You have been majyor of Brew-
er? A. I have, ves, sir.

Q. For how long? A, For the
yvears 1909 and 1910.
Q. Well, I supposed they hauled

beer harrels through the streets then?
A, They didn’t haul very much there
in the vear 1910.

Q. They didn't. A. No, sir.

Q. That was the year we had th2
Sturgis deputies? A, We did.

Q. And you were mayor that year?
A, I was.

Q. You aren't mavor now?
sir.

Q. Now what did you go down to
this (fox's place for? To see about in-
suring it? A. Xo, sir.

A. No,
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Q. Did you go there for a meal?
A. No, sir.

Q. Did you
thcre? A, No,

Q. Went to
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And where is this Golden Oak
that vou talk about? A, Well, 1|
can’t give you the number, but it is
on the cast side of Exchange street,

have business

sir.

any

make an observation?

going down, just as you turn from
State street to go down Exchange
street.

Q. That is on Exchange street? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. Who occupies it? A. MclIntire,
I think. ’

Q. How long has that been in ex-
istence and called the Golden Oak?
A. I couldn’t tell you Judge, I am sure.

CHARLES W. MULLEN, called fo»

the prosecution, sworn, in answer tu
question by Judge Cleaves, testified
as follows:

Q. Your residence is Bangor? A,
Yes, sir.

Q. Up to how recent a period were
vou mayor of Bangor? A. Until the
17th day of March, in the morning, 10
o’clock, and a little after.

Q. During the early days of the pres-
ent year, did you write a letter to Sher-
iff Emerson? A. I think it was in the
very latter days of the last year.

Q. You have a copy of the letter,
have you not? A. In substance, yes,
sir. Ithink I have a copy.

Q. You made that letter an official
document, did you not? A. did.

Q. Had it recorded upon the books
of the ecity clerk? A. It is copied in
the letter book that belongs to the city
of Bangor, where T keep all of my rec-
ords, letter copies.

Q. And have you recently made a
copy from that letter book? A. Yes, I
have.

Q. Will you read that copy to the
convention? A. I wrote this letter to
Mr. Emerson and addressed it to Hamp-
den. It was dated, I think, on the 30th
day of December, 1912. (Witness reads
letter ag follows):

“My dear Sir:

Now that you are about ready to start
on the administration of your office as
sheriff of Penobscot county, I would
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like to know from you, and I ask the
question in all sincerity, both as a citi-
zen and a public official, what your pol-
icy is to be in relation to the enforce-
ment of the liguor laws in this coun-
ty. As chief executive of this city it
seems to me that I will be better able
to co-operate with you if I know what
yvour plans are. I am,

Very truly yours,

CHARLES W. MULLEN.”

Q. Now the original of that letter you
mailed? A. The original of that letter
I mailed.

Q. Did you ever receive any reply
from Mr. Emerson, either written or
oral? A. T received no written reply,
but I received an acknowledgement oral-
ly day before yesterday.

w. And up to day before yesterday,
Mr. Emerson had never acknowledged
the receipt of your letter? A. No, sir,
mnz never had, that is, I never had re-
ceived it.

Q. And in 'what language did he ac-
knowledge it day beiore yesterday? A.
‘Well, Mr. Emerson told me that he in-
tende. to have acknowledged the receipt
of the letter, but it was laid aside and
escaped his attention. I think that is
practically what he told me.

Q. When he saw you the day before
vesterday, where were you? A, I was
in the lobby of this building.

Q. In Augusta? A. In Augusta, yes,
sir.

Q. And did he mention the matter to
you or you to him? A. He mentioned
it to me.

Q. So that you didn’t call his attention
to the matter; he mentioned it first to
you? A. He mentioned it first to me.

Cross-Examination.

By Judge STEARNS:

Q. What did Major Emerson say to
you in this letter, what was his first
mention? A. Well, practically what
I have stated.

Q. I mean, didow’t he lead up to it
in some way? A. Onh, he said that
one of the young men from Bangor,
I think Mr. Read had called his at-
tention to the fact that I had said
to him that I had written Mr. Emer-
son a letter and had not ever received
any reply to it.

Q. And thereupon he

made the
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apology to you that you have testi-
filed to? A. He did, yes.

@. That he had understood from
the young man that you had com-
plained of his not answering your let-
ter? A. He didn’t say that.

Q. I don’t mean in those words,
but that was the substance of it, the
voung man had told nim that you had
said that vou had nct received a reply
to your letter? A. No, there was no
complaint.

Q. T suppose that would imply a
complaint, wouldn’t it? If you had
said to somebhody that you had writ-
ten him and he had not deigned a
reply? A. No, I wish to insist that
there was no complaint made and no
complaint intended.

Q. That may be,
intend to complain, but doesn’t it
amount to a complaint when you
state to somebody that he has not an-
swered your letter? A. I don’t think
s0.

Q. It is not very material, any way.
How long were you mayor of Bangor?
A. Two years.

Q. Commencing two
March? A. Yes, sir

Mr. CLEAVES: We offer at this time
the examined list of payments of inter-
nal revenue taxes that was read, and
with that the prosecution rests.

On motion by Senator Morey of An-
droscoggin the convention took a recess
for 10 minutes.

After Recess.

The following opening remarks were
then addressed to the convention on
behalf of the respondent by Mr. DUNN:

Mr. President and gentlemen of the
convention: The duty I am now about
to attempt to perform has been rather
suddenly put upon me; I feel unequal
to its proper discharge. On the first
day of January of the present year, with
upraised hand in the presence of that
God whom he Dboth worships and rev-
erences, Wilbert W. Emerson of Hamp-
den made solemn oath that he would
faithfully and to the best of his abilities
discharge the duties incumbent upon
him in the office of sheriff of the county
of Penobscot. He had not before occu-
pied that official position, albeit some
vears previous he had been a deputy of

that you didn’t

years ago last
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the sheriffi of that county. Upon his
induction into office he found the liquor
evil or the liguor traffic, class it as you

will, firmly emplanted; for more than
50 vears, with brief exceptions, it had
becn tolerated, ayve, T may say it had

almost been recognized as a legitimate
traffic throughout the length and breadth
of that great county. Conditions as he
found them were deplorable; conditions
now are bhad, but under his administra-
tion of the affairs of that high office
conditions have improved, conditions are
improving and conditions will continue
to improve, because he believes, as I
firmly believe, that the solemn oath
which he took and subscribed to qualify
him to enter upon the dixcharge of the
duties of the position was of valid and
of binding force.

ITe had duties other than those con-
nected with the enforcement of the pro-
hibitory liquor law to discharge. Com-
ing., as I have said, into office on the
first dayv of January, last past, a new
man to an almost untried position to
him, he soon had the supreme judicial
court convened in session in that coun-
tv. That session was convened on tne
first Tuesday of the month of January,
upon which he was required by law to
give attendance, and upon which he
did attend from the time it convened
on the first Tuesday of January until it
adjourned without day some time
the month of February following. Not
alone that beset him during the month
of January. On the 18th day of that
month, as memory now serves me, a
strike among the engineers and firemen
employved upon the line of the Bangor
& Aroostook Railroad, and that strike
occupied for a considerable period of
time—1I don’t know but what it may still
occupy certain of the attention of the
sheriff of the county and of his depu-
ties, aye, life and limb on the part of
passengers upon that railway was in
dange=r because of the lawless acts of
some  persons, whomsoever they may
have been, sympathizing with those men,
or presumably sympathizing with those
men who had gone out upon strike upon
that railroad.

Ayve, more; on the first Tuesday of
February, the second month of his oc-
cupancy of the position of sheriff of

the county of Penobscot, the supreme
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court convened at Bangor for its crim-
inal session, and upon that term too,
first, upon the grand jury, and more re-
cently upon the traverse jury’s being
in attendance, he was required to give
attendance and he did give attendance.
At that term he had many duties to dis-
charge and to perform. There had oc-
curred after the criminal term of court
adjourned, in February, last, before that
and before the Ifebruary term of court
in that great county of Penobscot as
many as four murders; and those four
murder cases coming to the attention
of Major Xmerson, as sheriff of Pe-
nobscot county, required and received
his care and attention. He had more
than that; he had an arson case in which
much time and thought were involved.
Aye, but notwithstanding the fact that
he had those murder cases, notwiTh-
standing the fact that he had the ar-
son  case, notwithstanding there were
other persons charged with the viola-
tion of other laws of the State, he
found time and he gave attention at
that time faithfully to all the cases
known to him of violation of the pro-
visions of the prohibitory liquor law;
and he was instrumental in presenting
for the consideration of that grand jary
then in scsgion evidence against every
man in the county of Penobscot known
to have paid and to hold an internal rev-
enue tax receipt.

A long list of the names of persons
resident at Bargor, Drewer, at Old
Town and at various points and places
in that county has been introduced
in evidence before you here, today;
and I think I am same in saying that
inspection of the records of the last
criminal term of court in Penobscot
county will show that an indictment
has ieen returncd as against each
and every man who name appears up-
on that list: aye, and as against men
whose names do not appear upon that
list.

But he stopped not there, bhecausc
this man during his campaign for his
nomination, in the first instance, for
the office of sheriff had =aid to the
electorate of Penobscot county, I he-
Heve, T firmly believe in the beneficent
provisions of the prohibitory liquor
law. There were those of his own
political faith who differed with him
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as to the wisdom of his making that
proclamation at that time, but to
them one and all, so far as my know-
ledge has ever extended in the pre-
mises, Major Emerson said, “I be-
lieve it, and believing it I shall say
it here and say it everywhere.” That
nomination he gained in the primaries
of Penobscot county, and he went to
the electorate again as candidate for
election to the office; and up and
down that great county more than
200 miles in length, from Newport on
the south to distant Patten on the
north, he travelled seeking support for
his ambition, and in his travels he dec-
clared everywhere publicly when he
had an oppoertunity, through the
columns of the press and in other
methods, that he Lkelieved in, and if
elected to the office of sheriff he
would to the very best of his ability
enforce the provisions of the prohibi-
tory liguor law; and upon those de-
clarations and upon that platform he
was elected to that position.

Coming then, as I have said, to that
cffice, and with the duties devolving
upon him of appointing subordinates
or deputies or agents, call them as
vou will, he told them each and all,
as they qualified to discharge the du-
ties involving upon them ctf the office,
that he would exact of them, each
and every one of them, the enforce-
ment of the provisions of that law
to the end.

Now, what has he done? He has, as
I have already said to lou, caused to
be indicted at that February term of
court all those persons reported to
him as having paid to the Federal
‘Government a tax upon the business
of liquor dealing. Aye, he has done
more than that. In the Bangor muni-
cipal court alone, it developed here
by the testimony for the State, that
during the months of January, Febru-

ary and March now last part, 107
different prosecutions have been in-
stituted through the instrumentality

of the sheriff of Pecnobscot against
persons suspected at least of being
engaged in the illegal traffic in intoxi-
cating liquors. Now these searches
were not conducted solely and entire-
ly by his deputies, three cr four of
whom he had appointed for no pur-
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pose under Heaven than to enforce
particularly the provisions of this spe-
cial statute, but in many of those
raids Major Emerson, high sheriff of
the great county of Penobscot, himself
participated. Nor were those seizures
and those searches confined to the ob-
scure fellow on the back street, the
little fellow dcing business as best he

might in some dark, out-of-the-way
place, the fellow looking upon the
prosperity of some other man, at

some more prominent spot saying un-
to himself “I have the same right to
engage in this traffic as that man
has,” but he went ahead as he should
have done, and proceeded against
those engaged in the trac anywhere to
his knowledge He went to the Ban-
gor House, quoted here, and search
was there made: he went to that
great hotel, the Penobscot Exchange,
allusion to which has been made here,
today, I think in that instance in per-
son, and cleared from its well-stocked
and its well-equipped and well-fitted-
up bharroom all the intoxicating
liquors and all the paraphernalia that
usually goes with such a bar as he
found there, and he instituted appro-
priate proceedings for its confiscation,
upon which it was subsequently confi-
cated

But the violation of the liquor law
is not confined and has never been
confined in the county of Penobscot
to the city of Bangor alone. Deplor-
able as it was a little while ago, aye,
more than deplorable, Mr. Emerson
upon coming into office found condi-
tions there; conditions there were per-
haps worse than in some other section
of the county, but they were bad
enough in many other places; they
were bhad at Brewer; they were had
at Old Town; they were had at Milli-
nocket; they were bad at Magic City,
recently sprung into existence up
about that grea paper mill; they
were bad at Dexter, and they were
had in other places; and as hest he
could during the three previous
months, during which he has been the
incumbent of the office of sheriff over
thiere, he has endeavored not to regu-
late that traflic because he did not
start cut with that purpose or with
that intention, but to eradicate if he
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could that evil from the county of
which he Is the sherift.

He has not succeeded in three months,
gentlemen, and the man does not live
who can eradicate that traffic in threc
montus. I question if the man lives who
can completely eradicate that traffic in
thiree years, or even a longer period of
time, and 1 think I know from my own
experience in the past whereof I speak
with some degree of certainty. But he
has done all that he could do with the
limitations and infirmities that the Al-
mighty has laid upon him as well as
upon the rest of us. In that particular
direction bear in mind always, gentlemen,
that he had other duties and other cares
and other concerns to discharge quite as
important perhaps to the welfare of so-
ciety as the enforcement of the provis-
jons of this particular section.

This sheriff went up to Old Town, and
T hold here in my hanu a transcript from
the recorder of that court—and comment
may be made, and I expect it will be
made, that thus far it has simply de-
veloped that in the liguor prosecutions
instituted by the sheriff of Penobscot
county fines only have been imposed.
‘With the matter of the imposition of
sentence upon a plea of guilty and con-
viction in any of these cases, the sheriff
of the county of Penobscot had naught
to say; that is a judicial function to be
exercised by the court or magistrate be-
fore which the process was returnable,
and if i.at court in the exercise of the
discretion vested in it by the statutes
of the State saw fit, as it did occasionally
in certain instances see fit, to impose a
fine and a fine only, anu not a fine and
imprisonment, of that Mr. Emerson could
not and might not complain.

But all ithe prosecutions instituted by
him and upon which convictions have
been had ‘have not so resulted. I hold
here a certificate bearing the signature
of the recorder and the seal of the court
up at 0ld Town, and thereon it appears
that since January 1st, and down I
think to within a day or two, that a
prosecution was instituted as against one
George St. Louis and intoxicating liquors,
No. 987 on the docket of that tribunal;
against one Z. Dumont and intoxicating
liquors; against Mitchell Goodrow, Jo-
seph Heald and another; against Augus-
tus G. Perow, whose name appears here
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so frequently in the testimony of one
of these witnesses as a consignee of cer-
tain intoxicants; against Charles Perry,
and against Eugene Buchaud; and going
on, the recorder says that in the fore-
going cases liquors were found and li-
beled and the respondents in all said
cases except that of Z. Dumont, No. 1003,
was given $100 and costs and 60 days in
jail and in default of payment 60 days
additional, from ‘'which sentence each
duly appealed. But those are mnot the
only searches instituted through the in-
strumentality of the sheriff’s office up
in that little city. The following war-
rants were issued in which no liquors
were found: State against Boulier; State
against Langley; State against Michael
Keene; State against St. Louis; State
against Theodore Boulier; State against
Frank Miller; State against Louis Char-
rette; State against Louis Charrette,
search dweliing house; State against Al-
fred Langley; State against Paul Thibe-
deau; State against Fisher; State against
Frank Miller. Each of said cases have
a search for intoxicating liquors re-
turned but nothing found. And he went
up again to Millinocket, and I have here
a transcript from the records of the mu-
nicipal court up there with case after
case and its disposition wuntil the re-
corder finally says that 45 liquor cases
in the town of Millinocket alone, be-
cause Millinocket as you may know has
no surrounding country and its business
originates within the confines of the
town itself, 45 liquor cases in that town
in January, February and March, 1913.
I know not in detail how many cases
may have c¢riginated before our court
and other tribunals in the county. Much
has been stated to you as to the great
quantity of intoxicants shipped into the
county of Fenobscot during the three
months last past, but nothing has been
said to you as yet, at any rate, as to
the great quantity of that liquer so
shipped into that county for illegal sale
in violation of the laws of this State,
which were seized by the sheriff of our
county, either personally or by deputies
and confiscated, or of the indictments.
something like 150 in number, found by
the grand jury at its last sitting in that
county, all the respondents having been
apprehended and given bail for their ap-
pearance before the supreme judicial
court when it next convenes in session



1886 LEGISLATIVE RECORD
over there during the month of August.

Now, then, gentlemen, without recital
further from me, and without a detailed
designation by me, as to particular
places which he searched or caused fio
be searched, let me say to you that he
has suppressed in some degree the sale
of intoxicating liguors in the county o
Penobscot. Let me say to you that I
believe that he has done more for the
waree months that he has been sheriff
to suppress the illegal sale of intoxicants
in the county of Penobscot than have
any of his predecessors during the same
period of time, Aye, during a much
longer period of time. Aye, far morc
than they ever did or thought of.

Let me say to you further that it
is the honest intent, that it is the hon-
est purpose of this man to obey, yes,
to faithfully obey his oath of office
which he regards as binding upon
him. And he will tell you so when
the time comes for him to take the
stand and tell you in detail the man-
ner in which he acguitted and con-
ducted the affairs of his office.

And then I submit to you to tell us,
divested of bhias, divested of any preju-
dice, divested of any partisanship,
meeting the issue fairly and square-
Iy whether in view of his record dur-

ing the short three months that he
has bheen there—a period no longer
than you have been here in this

House—whether under these circum-
stances yvou may say conscientiously
upon your caths that Wilbert W, Em-
erson, sheriff of the county of Pe-
nobscot, has been guilty or is not guil-
ty of wilfully or corruptly neglecting
and refusing to discharge his duties
imposed upon him by the particular
provisions of the Statutes of the State
of Maine. I thank you.

Mr. Emerson and the witnesses for
the defense, sworn.

Mr. WILBERT W. EMERSON, hav-
ing been duly sworn, testified as fol-
lows:

Examination by Mr. Thompson.

Q. What is your name? A. Wil-
bert W. Emerson.
Q. And your residence? A. Well,

my residence is Hampden although I
am living in Bangor at the present
time.
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Q. How old are you? A. Fifty-
three.

Q. And you are the high sheriff of
Penobscot county? A. 1 am, sir.

Q. Whether or not you have ever
held a position in the sheriff’s Jdeparl-
rment of the county before? A, I
have,

Q. And kindly tell the convention

what these positions were? A, I was
appointed deputy sheriff under the for-
mer or ex-Sheriff Gilman in 1903, and
served until 1909,

Q. How long were you a liquor dep-

uty? A, About three and a half
years.
Q. Wiil you repeat again the tim?2

you were a liquor deputy? A. As 1
remember it, in June, 1905, until the
expiration of the term of office of
Sheriff Gilman.

Q. And the sheriff at that time was
Leslie W. Gilman? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he was succeeded by Mi.
White, whom you succeeded? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. As a liquor deputy, Major, did
it become necessary for you to get
acquainted with the different saloons
in the city of Bangor? A. It did.

Q. Whether or not you are familiar
with the different places where liguor
was sold in the city? A. Quite.

Q. And did you at that time visit
them very freguently? A. I have.

Q. Have you ever done any work or
had vou ever done any work outside
the city of RBRangor? A. I have.

Q. In the enforcement of the liquor
law? A. I have.
Q. And kindly tell the convention

where that work was done? A. NOW
pardon me, sir, do you mean of the
present yvear? )

Q. No, prior to your present office.
A. When I was engaged as a liguor
deputy, I was sent to various places
in the county outside of Bangor, but
spent the most of my time in Bangor

Q. Then you are acquainted with
the conditions or places in Orono? A.
I am.

Q. And places in 0ld Town? A. 1
am.

Q. In Brewer? A. 1 am,

Q. Have you bheen across to Dex-
ter? A. Yes, sir, I have,
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Q. And Newport? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now are there any other towns
of the county that vou have visited ov
had visited prior to your bresent of-
fice ayg sheriff? A. I have in damp-
den, my native town.

Q. Prior 1o your election as sher-
iff and after the primaries, did you
make any public announcement as to
what vour policy would be in regard
to the enforcement of the prohibitory
Jaw? A, 1 did.

Q. What was that announcement? A,
As near as 1 can remember it, I prom-
jsed the people of Penocbscot county, it
1 was elected sheriff of that county, 1
would enforce the prohibitory law to the
pest of my ability.

Q. Whether or not, Mr. Sheriff, you
wirote to the various papers in Bangor
and gave them information to that ef-
fect? A, I did.

). Was that published in the daily
press of Bangor? A. It was.

Q. Did you run upon that platform?
A, T did.

Q. Coming down to prior to your tak-
ing the office, can you tell thig conven-
tion as to whether or not yau had an
conversation with your deputy or those
who would be yvour deputies as to their
position as liquor deputies? A. I did.

Q. Take a specific case, Mr. Gates of
Millinocket, did you have any conversa-
tion with him or give him any insiruc-
tions? A. At that time I did not give
him any instructions because I was not
in a position to do so, but I did say to
him, “If T appoint you’—I beg your par-
don, that was after election.

Q. What did vou say to Mr. Gates in
regard to the enforcement of the prohibi-
tory law prior to either your election ovr
to your taking your oath of office? A.
Mr. Gates came to Hampden and called
on me at my store and I talked with
him about his appointment—he talked
with me about his appointment as a dep-
uty sheriff in Millinocket. 1 said to Mr.
Gates, “If I appoint you sheriff of Penob-
scot county, will you enforce the prohib-
itory law?”

Q. And his
would.

Q. That was as I understand you prior
to your election? A. No, I did not wish
to say so.

reply? A. He certainly
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Q. Prior to your taking your oath of
office? A. Yes, sir

Q. In the interval between the time of
clection and your induction into othce?
A, That is right.

Q. Whether or not you appointed Mr.
Gates and he is your present deputy at
Millinocket? A. He is.

Q. Whether or not you had any further
instructions given to him or gave them
vourself? A. I did.

Q. What were those instructions? A.
On the first day of January of this year,
When Mr., Gates with other deputies
came to officially quality, I talked with
him in relation to the situation in Milli-
nocket as it was at that time, and I
said to him that I hoped he would go
right ahead and enforce the prohibitory
law, and any time that he needed any
assistance I would be glad to send it to
him.

Q. As to whether or
given Mr. Gates any assistance in Milli-
nocket? A. I have not, because he nas
not asked for it.

Q. And has he asked for any assist-
ance in the enforcement of the prohibi-
tory law in KEast Millinocket? A. o,
sir,

not you have

Q. You say that you gave him some
instructions in regard to the enforcement
of the prohibitory law about t..e first
of January. Were there any other dep-
uty sheritfs present at that timer A. I
think there were several at that time.
As I remember it, after they had gone
before the clerk of courts and had qual-
ified, they came to my office at the jail
and I think there is where the conversa-
tion took place.

Q. Can you remember, major, at this
time, how many sheriffs were there pres-
ent when those instructions were given,
how many deputy sheriffs? A. I think
that Sheriff Trask of Hampden, and
Sheriff Spratt, Kenduskeag, and Sheriff
Rackliff of Old Town, and Sheriff Mc-
Kenney of Dexter, were present, al-
though I am not certain about McKen-
ney.

Q. Whether or not prior to January 1,
1913, there was an assistant turnkey at
the jail? A, There was.

Q. Whether or not prior to January
Ist there were any liquor deputies during
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Mr., White’'s administration? A. Not to

my knowledge.

Q. Did you appoint any liquor depu-
ties? A. I assigned three of my regular
deputy sherifts to the duty of searching,
if T may use that word, for liquor cases.

Q. You mean that under that statute,
you assigned three deputies to look after
the enforcement of the liquor law? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. Who were those deputies? A. Dep-
uty Spratt of Kenduskeag, Deputy Trask
of Hampden, and Deputy Wood of Or-
rington.

Q. Whether or
had experience in this work
Vour administration? Al
Spratt only. He was a deputy
under Sheritt Gilman.

¢. Did you appoint any other depu-
ties whom you term liquor deputies?
A. Not at that time.

Q. Did you later? A.

3. Who else did you
Sheriff Davig of Oraho.
Fred T. Davis of Orono? A. Yes,

not those deputies
prior to
Deputy
with me

1 did.

appoint? A.

Q.
sir. ) )
Q. Is he now serving as ua liguor

deputy? A. He is.

Q. And has been since the Febru-
ary term of court? A. Yes, sir,

Q. When does thhe supreme court
convene in Penobgcol county’ A, The
first Tuesday of January.

Q And was that a long term? A.
1t was unusually so. )

(). ‘When did it end? A. Some tim=
in February after the criminal term

was convened.

A. The first

Q. When was that?
Tuegday in February.
Q. How long did that 1last? A. I

think 23 days.
And has there been another term

Q. . erm
of court since you have been in office?
A Yes, sir. . ,

. When was that? A. The present
term, the April term. )

Q. How long did the grand jury stio )/:
in sessicn at the February term of
court? A. 13 days.

Q. And how long did the trials last?

A. Nine days. )
Q. After the grand jury had report-
ed? A, Yes, sin ]
Q. Were you in attendance upon
court at the January tert‘{l? A. All of
the time with the exception of two

aays.
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Q.

vou?

Q.

And those two days where were
A. I went to Dover.
On official business? A, 1 did.

Q. And at the February term of
court, were you in attendance? A.
Pardon me, this was the February
term.

Q. I mean the January term. A. I
did nor understand the questicn. At the
January term of court, I was in at-
terdance all the time.

Q. And the TFebruary term? A. I
was in attendance all the with the ex-
ception of two days that I have spok-
en of.

Q. And those two days you were
where? A. In Dover.
Q. At whose request? A. The coun-

ty atiorpey’s.

Q. At the February term of court
will you tell this convention, if you re-
meniber, how many murder cases yon
had to leok after? A. Four.

Q. And those were where? A. Two
in West Enfield, one in Millinocket and
one in Passadumkeag.

Q. Whether or not there was an ar-
son case from Garland? A. There was.

Q. Did that require a good deal of
attention? A. It did.

Q. Whether or not you were called
away to look after another important
case”? A. Yes, sir.

Q. During that February term of
court? A, No, that other case where [
went into the Provinces, that was in
January after the closing of the Feb-
ruary term.

Q. Wliether there was a strike upen
the B. & A. Railroad? A. There was.

Q. And at what time did that strike
comimence? A. The 18th day of Jan-
uary.

Q. Is that strike still in existence?
A. T don’t know, sir.

Q. Have vou any deputies doing
doing special work for the B, & A.
Railroad at the present time? A, Two
specials.

Q. In connection with the sirike? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. Whether or not you were called
upon after that strike started to as-
sist the railroad officials to preserve
crder and look after their property?
A. I was.

Q. What did you do in that connec-
tion? A. May I tell the story?
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. Yes. that is just what we want.
A. President Tcdd of the B. & A, Rail-
road telephoned to me that he wished
to see me on the morning of the 18th
day of January. I went to his office
and he asked me for deputies to pro-
tect the property of the B. & A, Rail-
road. I at once supplied him, beginning
that day, with 12 of my regular dep-
uties that I had appoirted at the be-
2inning of my administration. Aside
from that, I appointed seven specialg,
so that I had on the B. & A. Railroad
19 deputies regular and special.

Q. How long did they stay on the
road? A. The last regular deputy
came bhack and reported to me on the
ara day of this present month.

Q. Did vou find it necessary to take
any of vaose deputies whom you desig-
nated as liquor deputies from their work
and put lhem on the strike? A, Mr.
Davis of Orono and Mr. Rackliff of Old
Town, who were looking after the af-
fairs of Old 'Town were engaged with
the B. & A. Railroad.

Q. Now during those threc months
was there any disease of any kind that
caused quite a lot of your attention in
the jail? A. Yes, sir

Q. 'What was there? A. One Stan-
jev Teplep was taken with typhoid fever
and we nursed him for four weeks. The
doctor afterwards put in a regular nurse
and she nursed him for three weeks
and three days after that, making in all
seven weeks and three dayvs.

Q. Now coming down to the Febru-
ary term of court, did you send any of

vour deputies to Portsmouth? A, T
did. )
Q. What deputies? Al Deputies

Spratt and Trask.

Q. How long were they gone?
A. Spratt four days and Trask two
davs.

Q. For what purpese did you send

To get a list
revenue

them to Portsmouth? A,
of the stamps at the internal
office at Portsmouth.

Q. Now when the grand jury
vencd, did you cause a record of those
stamps to be presented to the grand
jury? A. I did

Q. Do you remember how many in-
dictments were based upon those lists
violation of the prohibitory law?

COn-

for
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A. T think 150 odd.
exactly now.

Q. After those stamps were produced
before the grand jury, and indictments
were obtained on them, did you receive
from the clerk of courts some capiases
for the arrest of the respondents at that
time? A. 1 did,

Q. What did you do with those cap-
iases? A. 1 immediately turned them
over to the deputies.

Q. Can you tell this convention how
many respondents were arrested upon
those capiases? A. I think about 10.

Q. What became of those 10, if you
remember? Were they taken to court?
A. They were.

Q. And tried? A. They were.

Q. And as a result of those 10 cap-
iases, how many respondents did you
have to board with you in the county
jail? A. 1 think six. sir, possiviy more.

Q. After the term of court had ad-
journed, did wou have other capiases
given to you? A. I did

Q. THow many of those were given
to you and what became of those cap-
iases after the court was adjourned?
A. They were turned over to the depu-
ties.

I could not tell

Q. All of them? A, All of them
with the exception of 21.
Q. What became of those 217

A. They were given to the county at-
torney.

Q. And he has them now
fice? A. T think he has.

Q. When those capiases were turned
over to you after the indictments had
been reported by the grand jury, what
instructions, if any, did you give to your
deputies about finding the respondents?
A. My instructions were to go out and
find those fellows and bring them in as
soon as they possibly could.

Q. Why were there not more, if you
know, apprehended; could not your offi-
cers find them? A. 1 am frank to say
to you that I am confused.

Q. I was speaking about the Feb-
ruary term. I mean the February term
of court. A. am going back. Those
capiases were turned over to deputies
and they went out with them and they
brought in every man that they found.

Q. And did you cause diligent search
to be made for those respondents dquring
that term of court? A. I did.

in his of-
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Q. Now to g0 back again to these
capiases: After court had adjourned,
You say all were turned over to you?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you gave
deputy sheriffs? A,
of the 21 that T have

Q. And those you
the prosecuting attorney? A,
were,

2. Now if youremember Mr. Emer-
son how many of the respondents
have been arrested on those capiases?
A. One hundred and sixteen.

Q. And thev have either given bail
or gone to jail, have they? A. They
have.

Q. How
the oath
commence to
under the
Four days.

Q. Four days. That is, on January
4th, your men commenced to work did
they? A. They did.

Q. In the city of Bangor. Now,
Mr. Sheriff, confine yourself entirely
to Bangor. How many searches were
made on the fourth day of January,
if yvou rememblier? A. There were six
warrants sworn out at the time. I
didn’t have men enough to go around,
as it required two men at one place
and there were only seven deputies
present, was all I could muster at
that time, and I went with them to
make the eighth man. We searched
in four places and we had six war-
rants. We precured liquors, in four
places and we had six warrants. We
procured liguors, in four places and
when we got to the other two places
they were locked up and the respond-
ents had gone.

Q. Ncw whether or not Mr. Sher-
i from the first day of January un-
til the present time you have caused
. to be made searches for intoxicating
liquors in the city of Bangor? A. I
have. All of the time with exceptions
of perhaps a few days that my depu-
ties were busy in court.

Q. What instructions, if any, have
vou given those liquor deputies in re-
gard {o the enforcement of the law?
A. Their instructions were and al-
ways have bheen to enforce the law.

them to youn
With exceptions
spoken of.

turned over to
They

soon after you had taken
of office did your deputies
work, to seize liguor,
viclation of the law? A,
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Q. Have vou been with them your-
self on many occasions? A. Nineteen
times.

Q. During this prescnt year? A. 1T
have.

Q. Now, Mr. Sheriff, do you know
of any place or places in the city of
Bangor where it alleged or ever
rumored that liquor is sold that you

haven’t raided? A, Not one.

Q. Have you ever left the city
yourscif to assist in raids? AT
have.

Q. And where have you gone? A.

Cnce to Enfield and once to Newport.

Q. Did vou assist the deputics in
those places? A, I did.

Q. Do you remember, Major Emer-
son, how many warrants that your
liguor department had secured in the
city of Bangor from the first of Jan-
vary to the first of April? A, One
hundred and three.

Q. And do you know in how many
places they have heen succeessful in
the search, in getting liquors? You
may refer to vour memoradum if yvouw
desire. A, According to this list that
I hold in my hands which is a true
one, up to the first day of this present
month,~—I have not gonc into this
month or even attempted to—61 seiz-
ures; 25 unsuccessful searches, 17 war-
rants after seizures, total, 103 ~war-
rants issued in January, February
and March, 1903.

Q. 19137 A. Beg your pardon, 1913.

Q. Now have you instituted any
searches in the town of Orono? A.
I have.

Q. How many have you had up
there? A. 1 didn’t take part in them.

Q. But if vou remember, Mr. Emer-
son? A. T am going to say two and
there mayv be more, Davis will know
when he testifies.

Q. How many respondents, if you
remember, have yvou at the present
time, or have vou had in the county

jail this year tor violations of the pro-
hibitory law? Just estimate Major.
A. I am sorry to say, for fear that I
shouldn’t remember them, there are
certain things in relation to the num-
ber that have been committed. I
nave left to my turnkey who has
charge of the books. He could tell
vou at once and wmore correctly than



LEGISLATIVE RECORD

1 could possibly do. I would simply
have to guess, but I am willing to
guess if yvou wish me to.

Q. Mr. Sheriff, have you there a list
of ligquer seized in January, February
and dMarch? A. T have,

Q. Will vou refer to it, pleage? A,
A. This list is a list of Hqucrs seize:l
in January. Fc¢bruary and  March in
Bangor and Brewer only.

Q. Will you kindly read that list,
Myi. Sheriff? A, 510 quarts of whiskey,
229 pints whiskey, 1354 pints of whis-
key, 68 quarts of gin, 67 pints of gin,
28 pints of gin, 874 pints of beer,
quartg of rum, 32 pints of rim, § one-
halt pints of rum, 47 quarts of brandy,
18 pints of Hrandy, 4 one-half pints of

wine, 6 pints of champagne, 2 quarts

oo
o

of alcohol, 4 quarts of alcohel, 2 gal-
lons of alcohol. 118 pints of ale,——
Q. That is 1013, ign't it? A. I bezg

vour pardon, 1013 pints of ale, 24 barrels
of ale, 47 cne-halt barrels of wle, § one-
quarter barrels ol ale.

Q. Now that is the amount of li-
qucrs which has been turned over to
the county which you have confiscated
into the county during the first threce
months of the year, taking only Ban-
gor and Brewer? A, Bangor and Brew-
er. It is.

Q. Now, Mr. Sheriff, what is your
custom in regard to taking liquors from
any place? T mean to say by that, do
you take enough to gecure a conviction,
or what is yvour custom? and what are
vour instructions to your deputies?
A, Teh instructions to my depud
has always been, and the cusiom has
always bcen carried out to take and
seize and carry away all of thie ligquors
that they found.

Q. Do vou know of any instances,
Mr. Sheriff, where these fnsiructions
have not been carried out to the letter?
A. I do not.

Q. You heard a minister of the
Gospel testify, this morning, in cegard
to meeting you in your office. Do you
remember that incident? A, What
was his name? Pardon me.

Q. 1 have forgotten his name. A.
Rev. Mr. Brown?

Q. Yes. Do you remember as t»
whether or not he spoke of the good
work you were doing? A. I do. May
i1 tell the story?
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Q. You certainly may, sheriff. A.
He says on the first day of March, but
as near as I can tell from memory,
on the 27th day of February, just aft-
er the close of the Tebruary term,
someone came and told me that there
was a gentleman down in the corrider
who wished to see me. I went in and
met him and he introduced himseif
as Rev. Mr. Brown, the secretary of
some Bible society of which name ¥
do not remember at present. He said
he came in to have a talk with me
and by his request, we went up into
the upper corridor of the court house
and sat down in two chairs. He drew
his chair up near mine. He express-
ed his congratulations on what I hard
done and wished to give me all of the
encouragement possible, and said to
me, “You not only have our bes”
wishes, but yvou have our prayers as
well. T am not here to find any fault
with what you have done, I am here
to encourage you. And all we ask of
vou is to keep on with the good work
that you have already begun.” And
he talked for some length along those
lines. As we came down the stairs
from the upper corridor, he put his
arm around me and we walked down
together and as we shook hands he
said again, “Sheriff, T want to con-
gratulate you and may God bless you
in your work.,”

Q. That was at what time, Mr.
Sheriff, what time in March? A. As
I remember it, the 27th day of Feb-
ruary.

Q. Now whether or not, Mr. Sheriff,
vyou have a civil suit pending? A. I
have.

Q. And for what is that civil suit
pending? A. May I—

Q. Tell the story in your own way.
A. Tt has been the custom, and I am
sorry to say that it is, to cart liquor
from storehouses and cart liquor from
freight houses of certain railroads and
certain steamboats in the city of Ban-
gor. Teams take barrels of beer and
ale and half barrels of beer and ale and
cart them through our strecets in broad
daylight. Two certain teams with red
«leds make a business In winter time
of hauling liguor through the streets of
Bangor. I had seen one of these sleds



1872

passing along the street from a dis-
tance. I called the attention of my dep-
uties to the fact that they were haul-
ing liquor through the streets of Ban-
gor and said to them, and instructed
them that if they saw teams passing
along with liquor on their sleds to seize

it and bring it to the court house. One
of my deputies, whose name is Mr.
‘Wood from Orrington, who is a new

man and never had any experience in
this line of duty before, knew nothing
about it before and went on as a new
man; about 4 o’clock in one afternoon
in January a team came down the main
street. 1 saw the team coming. I was
further up the street than he and from
the instructions that I had given him,
this boy, this young man was driving a
horse with a red sled, very similar to
the sleds that I had called their atten-
tion to, this sheriff of mine dodged out
from the street and got into the sled.
The sled proved to be—the team proved
{0 be a laundry team and not a ligquor
team, very much to my regret. In con-
sequence of that there is a suit pend-
ing in this present court in Penobscot
county where I am sued for $500 for
my sheriff holding up that team as they
claim, or my deputy.

Q. Now, Mr. Sheriff, possibly
convention understands—I want you to
tell them even if it is a reiteration—I
want to ask you if you have not in-
structed all of your deputies to enforce
the law at all times? A. I certainly
have.

Q. That is the general instruction giv-
en to all of them, is it? A, It is.

Q. Now I wish you would describe,
Major Emerson, some of the seizures
vou have made yourself. Tell the differ-
ent places you have been to, and what
you have found there and what you have
done—those you were personally present
at. Take the first one if you remem-
ber it. A. I went with my deputies and
searched the place called the Central
House on Hancock street. The Central
House is a very large house with a sta-
ble with it. It is a boarding house, After
we had searched the house thoroughly
and the stable and the shed and were
about to leave, I opened the door where
there was a pair of stairs which might
be called the back stairs of the house,

this
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leading from the Kkitchen to the floor
above. In these stairs, or under one of
the treads of these stairs was a hide. In
that hide was a small amount of bottle
beer.

I went one night with my deputies
down on May street, at a house No. 44
on Main street and kept by one Andrew

Erickson.  The deputies went into the
house and I went into the stable, ac-
companied by Deputy Sheriff Wood. As

I passed into the stable a man came
down from the stable chamber and there
was a door at the head of the stairs
which shut down after he had passed
down. In the stable, in the hay in this
stable loft, I found a 10-gallon keg about
half full of whiskey.

Deputy Sheriff Spratt and mysef—in
company with Deputy Sheriff Spratt, I
started out one afternocon.and we visited
five places without warrants and in ev-
ery one of those five places we found li-
quor of various kinds., Do you wish me
to describe them all?

Q. Yes, tell all the places you have
been to personally, yourself I mean.
A. On Sunday, I went in  company
with my other-—my deputies, and we¢
searched at that time three places. [
went to the Waverly house on French
street and there Sunday found a well
edquipped bar with liquors of all kinds
and draught ale and in the cellar was
two half barrels of ale that had not
been put on.

Q. Now did you take all that?
Most certainly did.

Q. Did you go anywhere else your-
self, Major? A. Yes, I went 19 dif-
ferent times but I can’t seem to—in
company with Deputy Sheriff Spratt 1
went to Enfield and assisted Deputy
Sheriff Gillis of Lincoln in a search nf
the house at Enfield. There we founa
and procured two barrels of bottle l1i-
quors of various kinds, including whis-
key, rum and gin. The search at New-
port was unsuccessful,

Q. Well, now, what do you mean
by that? Did you go yourself person-
ally to the town of Newport? A. I
certainly did.

Q. And how far is Newport west
of Bangor? A. Why, I think 27
miles, something like {hat.

A.
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Q. And right there, Major, how far
is Enfield above Bangor? A. 33
miles.

Q. Now what did vou do in the

town of Newport? A. We sgearched
the hotel there called the Sebasticook
House.

Q. What did you find? A. Noth-
ing in the way of intoxicating liquors.

Q. Where else did you go? A. On
the 4th day of January, the day of the
first raid that has been spoken o1 uecre,
today, and designated as the dJday uf
raid, I went to one Peter McAuley's
on Franklin street in company with
Deputy Sheriff Mullen of Corinna.

Q. He is not cne of your reguler
liquor deputies, is he? A. He is not.

. You called him in for that par-
ticular purpose? A.. 1 did for that
purpose.

Q. Ge on, describe what vou did
that day, Mr. Sherift? A. T went into
Poter McAuley’'s place on  Franklin
sirect and found and seized and carried
away a large amount of liquors of va-
ricus kinds.

Q. Now on that particular day, Mr.
Sheriff, did vou have any other depu-
ties in Bangoer other than your regular
liquor deputies in addition to Mr. Mul-
len whom you have already testified
to? A. Yes, I at that time only had
three regular deputies, and I called in
four more.

Q. So that there were eight of you
working that particular day? A, Fx-
actly, yves, sir.

(. Now what other raids did yon
malke, thut day? A. After we had piro-
ciured and sent to the storehouse the
liquors that I had seized at Peter Me-
Aulev’s, T went down to the Joe Crowe
place, so-called, and assisted in pack-
ing up and lugging out the liquors that
had been seized there during the time
that T was making the geizure at Muo-
Auley’s place on Franklin street. Aft-
e¢r the liquors had been procurcd, pack-
¢d in boxes and carried out and cart-
ed away to the storehouse, T then went
down to the place of Martin Cox; fur-
ther down the street and assisted in
packing and lugging out and carting
away the liquors that the deputies had
seizea who had gone down there prior
to my geing down.

Q. Now thig McAuley place is the

1873

place designated, this morning, as the
saloon on Franklin street? A. Tt is.
Q. And do you know as to whether
or not he is at present in business, or
do vou know of yocur own knowledge?
A. Not of my own knowledge, no, sir,
Q. Now this Cox place you speak of
on the snuare, that is the restaurant

that has been spoken of here, this
morning? A. It is.

Q. What other places did you
search that particular day? A. Two
of the other deputies searched Joe

Jameson’s place, this place near the
City hall of Banger, but I didn’t assist
in that personally

Q. Anad they were successful in
those four places? A, They were.
Q. Now, Mr. Sheriff, I want you to

explain to this counvention what con-
versation you had, if any, with Mr.
Justice Cornish, in regard to deputies

at the February term of court. A,
We had then, as I remember, 24
bound over prisoners, bound over to

the February term. One of the first
things that Judge Cornish said to me
after I was introduced to him was
“Sheriff have you goi a plenty of
deputies?” I told him that I had. He
said to me “IL is necessary that we
have a plenty to take care of thesc
bound over men.”

Q. Now, Mr. Sheriff, is the jail sorne
little distance away from the court
house? A, A short distance. Yes, sir,

Q. And it is necessary, Mr., Sheriff, is
it, to have some deputy sheriffs to take
the prisoners from the jail into the court
room to he arraigned? A. It is,

Q. And back and forth as they are
tried? A, Tt is.

Q. Arraigned, tried,
sentenced? AL It is.

Q. And that takes a great deal of your
times, does it? A. It does.

Q. Now during the time that the grand
jury was in session those two weexs, did
vou have a number of deputies in attend-
ance upon that? A, I did.

Q. Was it necessary for you to Kkeep
your liquor deputies in attendance upon
the grand jury the greater part of the
time? A. It was.

Q. In other words, did your liquor
cases fit in whenever the county attorney
wanted them? A, They did.

and  afterward
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Q. And so that took up part of that
time, did it? A. It did.

The PRESIDENT: Before announcing
the recess the Chair desires to state that
the House is to hold a short session im-
mediately after the recess is announced
and the Senate will retire to its own
room.

Un motion by the senator from Somer-
set, Senator Walker, the convention took
a recess until 8 o’clock.

Thereupon the Senate retired to
Senate chamber.

wle

IN THE HOUSE.

On motion by Mr. Marston of Skowhe-
gan, the rules were suspended and that
gentleman introduced out of order bill,
An Act to amend section 11 of chapter
116 of the Revised Statutes, as amended
by section one of chapter 53 of the Pub-
lic Laws of 1905, as further amended by
chapter 183 of the Tublic Laws of 1907,
relating to salaries of officers of the
Senate and House of Representatives.

On motion by Mr. Newbert of Augusta
the bill was tabled for printing.

Passed to Be Enacted.

An Act amendatory of and additional
to chapter 37 of the Public L.aws of 1909,
relating to the issuance of mileage bhooks
by railroad corporations.

An Act to amend sections 13, 14 and 15
of chapter four of the Revised Statutes,
relating to appointment of road commis-
sioners by the selectmen.

Finally Passed.

Resolve amending chapter 235 or the
Resolves of 1913, being a resolve for the
laying of county taxes.

On motion by Mr. Cook of Vassalboro,

Adjourned unti] tomorrow morning at
nine o’clock.

After Recess.

Convention called to order

President.

The PRESIDENT: The gecretary will
call the roll.

PRESENT:—Sen. Allen
Allen of Machias, Austin, Bass, Benn,
Benton, Bither, Boman, Bowler, Sen.
Bovnton, Bragdon of Sullivan,, Bragdon
of York, Bucklin, Sen. Burleigh, Butler,
Chadbourne, Sen, Chase, Chick, Church-
ill, Clark of N. Portland, Cochran, Sen.

by the

of XKennebec,
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Colby, Sen. (ole, Sen. Conant, Connors,
Cook, Crowell, Currier, Davis, Desco-
teaux, Doherty, Dunton, Durgin, Eaton,
Elliott, Estes, Farnham, Farrar, Folsom,
Gallagher, Goodwin, Gordon, Greenleaf
of Auburn, Greenleaf of Otisfield, Haines,
Hancock, Harman, Harper, Sen. Hersey,
Higgins, Hogan, 1rving, Jenking, Jen-
nings, Sen. Jillson, Johnson, Jones, Kim-
ball, Leader, Leary, Libby, Mavrston, Ma-

son, Sen. Maxwell of Sagadahoe, Max-
well of Bar Harbor, McBride, McFadden,
Merrill, Mildon, Sen. Milliken, Mitchell
of Kittery, Mitchell of Newport, Sen.
Morey, Morneau, Morrison, Morse, Sen.
Murphy, Nute, O'Connell, Sen. PPackard
of Knox, Packard of Newburg, Sen.
Patten of Hancock, Peacock, I’eaks, Pen-
dleton, Peters, Deterson, Iitcher, Put-

nam, Quinn, Sen. Reynolds of Iennebee,

Reynolds of Lewiston, Sen. Richardson
of Penobscot, Richardson of Canton,
Roberts, Robinson, Rousseau, Sanborn,

Sanderson, Sargent, Skelton, Nkillin, Sen,

Smith of Penobscot, Smith of Auburn,
Smith of Patten, Smith of Presque Isle,
Spencer, Sen. Stearns, Stevens, Stuart,
Sturgis, Swift, Taylor, Thombs, Tobey,
Trimble, Tryon, Twombly, Umphrey,
Violette, Sen, Walker, Waterhouse,
Wheeler, Winehenbaugh, Sen.  Wing,

Wise, Yeaton.

ABSENT:—Sen. Allan of Washington,
Sen. Baliley, Boland, Brennan, Irown,
Sen. Clark of York, Clark of DPortland,
Cyr, Donovan, Dresser, Dunbar, Sen,
Dutton, Eastman, Eldridge, Emerson,
Sen. Emery, Sen. Flaherty, Franck, Ga-
mache, Gardner, Sen. Hagerthy, Harri-
man, Haskell, Sen, Hastings, Hodsdon,
Hutchins, Kehoe, Kelleher of Portiand,
Kelleher of Waterville, Lawry, LeBel,
Leveille, Sen. Mansfield, Mathieson, May-
bury, Metecalf, Mooers, Morgan, Sen.
Moulton, Newbert, Plummer, Price,
Ramsay, Ricker, Rolfe, Scates, Sherman,
Smith of Pittsfield, Snow, Sprague, Stan-
ley, Stetson, Swett, Thompson, Wash-
burn.

The PRESIDENT: The roll call dis-
closcs the presence of 126 members of
the ccenvention.

Mr. Emerson recalled:

Questions by dr. Thompson.

Q. Mr Shceriff, there was something
said in the opening in regard.  to »a
search at the Penobscot Kxchange. Willt
vou tell us the conditichs surrounding
that search? A. The day this particu-
lar search was made which I think—T
am stating from memory only—was the
Tth day of March, I started out in com-
pany with Deputy Sheriff Spratt. The
first place we visited was the Queen
Cily Hotel, situated on Hancock street.
We went into that place without—
would I be allowed to say it—without
any warrant. We went into the bar of
this Quecn City Hotel and found bot-
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tled goods of various kinds on ths
shelf, and also there was running
draught ale and beer I think., We seiz-

ed everything that was inside, includ-
ing the draught ale and heer, and load-
ed it into a team, and I went to the
telepione and called the office and in-
structed the girl to send another dep-
uty dcwn with a team to take the goods
from the Queen City Hotel to the store
room at the court house, which was
dore. The next place we visited, [
think, was one Leo Buckley, a man by
the same name as the preprietor who
ran Queen City Hotel. Mr. Buckley,
tue proprietor, was away, but his clerk
was there. There were several men in
the bar drinking and goods were dis-
nlayed on the shelves back of the bar,
and they also were running draught
<le and beer, and we seized everything
there that we could find, in the har and
vnder the bar. We didn’t attempt to
make any further search of the prem-
ists, because
search with. I telephoned then to the
office to have the team come right bacik
dowrn on Exchange St. The team came
haclk and we loaded the goods into the
cart and sent them bhack,

The next place, I think, was Victor
Chaison’s hotel on Exchange Street. We
went in there and we found goods dis-
playved on the shelves, as we had in the
other places that we had visited. We
took everything there. The team came
right back and we loaded it into the
same team and sent it to the store
roomnl.

The next place that we visited was
the Eastern Eating House just bhelow
the Chaison place on Exchange street.
We found gocds displayed there as they
were in the places we had visited ear-
lier. We sent those goods on the same
team that held the others.

We then went over from there to the
Penobscot Exchange. We went into the
bar of the Penobscot Exchange ana
found goods displayed on the shelves,
and they were also runming draught
ale or beer, T don’t know which. We
seized everything that they had there,
including the glasses and the pitchers,
and took everything that there was in
that bar and sent it back to the store-
house. T had to be in court that after-
noon at four o’clock on a hearing, and
in censequence of that we didn’t make

the

we had no warrant to
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any further search that afternoon.

Q. Now, Mr. Sheriff, will you explain
to this convention in your own way the
time utilized or used by your deputy
sheriffs when vou have to attend to the
cages in court and libeling these li-
quors? A. The first thing in the morn-
ing, lhe deputy sheriffs, usually M.
Spratt, makes up a list of the warrants
ihat he wishes for me to swear out on
that particular day. In maling up this
list he has to give the street and the
number and the kind of a building,
whether a shop or a dwelling house or
a hotel, as the case may be. He takes
that list down to the court and the
voung lady who is present here makes

up the warrants. When he goes
down he ususally tells me about
what time the warrants will be
ready. 1 go down and swear out

the warrants in the court and take
them back to the court house and give
them to the deputies. They go out and
make the gearch and in all cases whers
liquors are found, the respondent has
to pe brought into court and of course
it is necessary for the deputies who
make the search and seizure t be pres-
cnt.

Q. Do you have any counsel in those
cases before the lower court? A. We
have not.

Q. You do your own work, do vou? A.
Yes sir, we present the c’?se.

Q. Either you cr the deputies? A.
Either myself or the deputies.

Q. Now, Mr. Emerson, do you Know
anyvthing akout Uno beer in the city of
Bangor at the present time? A. I do,
<ir.

Q. Tell the convention. A. I know
that there are three if not four bottling
concerns in Bangor whoe ship goods in-
to the city in kegs and bottle them and
send them out broadcast over the coun-
tv.

Q. Now is this Uno beer put up in
packages, casks and kegs, similar to
the straight lager bheer? A. It is pre-
cizely the same, and no living man can
tell the difference unless he can get
dgown to read the label that is on the
Keg.

Q. Nosv Mr, Emerson, have you caus-
ed to be analyzed any of that beer in
the city of Bangor recently. A. I have.

Mr., Emerson, I hand you exhibit
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marked “Respondent’s A” and ask you
if that is a report from the chemist
where you had some beer analyvzed.
A It is.

Q. How many bottles did vou send to

the chemist and what were they? A.
tenn bottles, {wo of five different
brands.

Q. And what chemist did vou send
them to? A. I sent them to the ex-
periment station at Oronoe. I think Mr.
Guy Durgin was the chemist who made
the analysis.

Mr. THOMPSOXN: I would like, Mr.
Speaker, to read into the record the re-
port on these five different samples
submitted to him.

The SPEAKER: No okjection made,
Mr. Attorney General:

ATTORNEY GENERAIL
I think not, your Honor.

(Anulysis read as follows.)
To whom it may concern:

The results accompanying this pa-
per are a true report of analysis made
on five samples of beer and ale toc me
given by the hand of Mr. Fred 1. Da-
vis, Deputy Sheriff, on March 12, 1913,
at 8.20 A. M. These samples were scv-
erally wrapped in newspapers and were
in a hand bag having attached there-
to a tag with the name W. W. Emer-
son, Hampden, Me., thereon.

A. G. DURGIN,
Analyst.

WILSON:

March 18, 1513.

The analysis of a
Red Star Pale Ale. On the cap there
were no distinguishing marks. Blown
on the bottle was Evans Ale, Hudson,
N. Y. The label was Red Star Pale
(Crest) Ale, Boston, Mass.

In ink on the lahel were the words.
E. Epstein, March 12, 1913.

On analysis the sample was
to contain,

Alcohol by volume, 2.34 per cent.

Alcohol hy weight, 1.82 per cent.

A. G. DURGIXY,
Analyst.
State of Maine, Penobscot county, ss.

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 8th day of April, 1913,

A. J. DURGIN,
Notary Public.

Analysis of a sample marked on
paper label, E. Epstein, March 12,
1912, case.

sample called

foun-l

LEGISLATIVE RECORD —HOUSE, APRIL 10.

Blown on the bottle was, property
of Wm. Albrecht, Boston Mass., regis-
tered.

There were no distinguishing marks
on the cap.

On analysis the following
were obtained, .

Alcohol by volume, 12926 per cent.

Alcohol by weight, 1.501 per cent.

A. G. DURGIN,
Analyst,
State of Maine, Penobscot county, ss3.

results

Subscribed and sworn to this Sth
day of April, 1913. Before me,
A. J. DURGIN,
Notary Public.
The analysis of a sample labeled
March 12, 1913, E. Epstein. Keg

not marked.

There were no distinguishing marks
on either cap or bottle.

On analysis the sample was
to contain,

Alcohol by weight, 1.673 per cent.

Alcohol by volume, 2.144 per :zent,

A. G. DURGINX,
Analyst.

State of Maine, Penobscot county, S3.

found

Subscribed and sworn to this St

day of April, 1913. Before me,
A. J. DURGIN,
Notary Public.

Analysis of sample marked on paper
label. kK. Epstein, March 12, 1913.
Case.

There were no distinguishing marlks
on cap. )

Blown on the glass, Lembpt, =t
Louis. This was enclosed in a shicld.

On analysis the following results were
obtained,
Alcohol by volume, 1.622 per cent.
Aleohol by weight, 1.263 per cent.
A. G. DURGIX,
Anaiyst.
State of Maine, Penobscot county, ss.
Subscribed and sworn to this Sth
day of April, 1913. Before me,
A. J. DURGIN,
Notary Public.
The analysis of a sample of Im-
perial Lager Beer. XNo distinguishing
mark on cabp.

Blown on hottle, Registered Mur-
doch & Freeman Co., Portland, Me,
1902,

The label was as follows, Imperial
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Lager Beer (crest) IBoston, Mass.

Stamped on the label in small let-
ters was Imitation.

Written on the label was E. Epstein,
March 12, 1913,

On analysis the following
were obtained,

Alcohol by volume, 1.646 per cent,

Alcohol by weight, 1.276 per cent,

A. G. DURGIN,
Analyst.
State of Maine, Penobscot counly, ss.

Subscribed and sworn to this Sth
day of April, 1913. Before me,

A, J. DURGIN,
Notary Public.

Q. Now Mr. IEmerson, have you at
all times since the first day of Janu-
ary last done everything that was in
vour power to enforce the provisions
of our prohibitory law? A. 1 most
certainly have. -

Q. Mr. Emerson, if yvou continue in
office until your term expires, will you
do everything in your power to en-
force the provisions of the prohibitory
law? A, T certainly will.

Cross examination by Judge (leaves.

Q. Al the time you entercd upon
the performance of your duty, and be-
tween the time of your election and
that time, I supposed vyou realized
that you couldn’t enforce the prohibi-
tory law as you had promiscd to en-
force it unless you gave some per-
sonal attention to it yourself, did you
not? A, It was my intention to give
my personal attention to the enforce-
ment of the prohibitory law all of the
time that 1 had to spare aside from
the cther duties encumbent upon me
as cheriff of Penobscot county.

Q. And you didn’'t hope to do it un-
Iess yvou did give some personal atten-
tion to it, did you? A. I felt from
the time that I began, with the ex-
perience that I had had as a deputy
sheriff, that I might reap greater re-
sults if T exercised and did all that
1 could personally.

O. Now I ask you again if yvou hop-
¢d to amccomplish much wunless vyou
gave some personal attention to it?
A. T felt that I could do more by giv-
ing personal attention to it.

Q. 1 ask you still again if vou hop-
¢d to accomplish very much unless

results

- gession,
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vou gave personal attention to it?
[ did not.

Al

Q. Now 1 want to inquire just a
moment the reasons why you didn’t
give more personal attention to it

The matter of your high court—I sup-
pose each morning when court came
in vou conducted the judge in, didn’t
vou, from his chamber to the court
roem” A, T did.

Q. Then you have a crier in court
who opens court and stays on, duty
during the entire session, do you not?
A, Yes, sir,

Q. And you have two officers in
charge of the two trial juries? A. 1
do.

Q. And ordinarily another
about the court room as
man? A. I do.

Q. So that the crier or either of
officers in charge of the traverse
ries or this extra man could sit in
Sheriff’s chair while court was
could he not? A. Most

officer
an extra

the
ju-
the
in
as-
suredly.

Q. And did it a great deal of the
fime. A. A good deal of the time.

Q. You never personally had any
charge of any grand jury since you
bave been in office, did you? A. I have
not.

. You have a man for that? A. T
have.

Q. And in conducting the prisoners
from the jail over to the court house,
that is a matter of a few minutes in
the morning, and then conducting
them back at the close, either of the
session or of their trials, that is right,
isn't it? A. While the trials are go-
ing omn, ves.

Q. And when a prisoner’'s trial is
nat going on he ig in jail, isn't he? A;
e is.

Q. Well, now, did it take, should
vou say, more than a half hour at a
time for a couple of men to get a pris-
oner who chanced to be on trial from

the jail over to the court house and
back each day while criminal trials
were going on? A, Not for one pris-
oner alone,

Q. Did you ordinarily, while there
were criminal trials going on, have

more than one prisoner in court at a
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time? A, Not while the trials were
going on.
Q. You would bring tHem all over

in a bhunch and have them arraigned
and then they would go back to jail
and you would bring them over ons
by one? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you personally take any ac-
tive part in getting the prisoners over
from the jail or back to the jail, or
did one or more of your deputies do

that? A. The deputies did the most
of it.

G, Now evenings vou don’t hold
court in Bangor, do you? A. We
don’t sir.

Q. So that after six o'clock at
night, each night while ¢ourt s in
session, you were off duty so far as
court is concerned. That is right,
ism’'t it? A, With a few exceptions.

Q. Occasionally you were around
the court room for a time in the eve-
ning when a jury was out or some-
thing of that kind? A. Yes, sir, and
when the jury had to be fed.

Q. 8o that at any time, except when
the court came in, when the judge
came in, during each day of court,
you could have left and gone away
from the court room if you had want-
ed to, and with very few exceptions
each evening you could have been
away from the court house, is that
right? A. Not in a criminal term.

Q. Did you while the criminal term
was going on, namely for the 23 days
in the month of February, stay in
court each moment of the court dav?
A. T can’t say that I stayed each mo-
ment, but T say that I went into the
court room with the court and didn’t
leave the court room until court ad-
journed for dinner.

Q. But you could have done it and
left a deputy in charge, could you not?
A. Presumably I might.

Q. Now if vou couldn’t find out and
wasn't able to find out where this
quantity of liquor that has been de-

seribed was delivered in the city of
Bangor, without leaving a criminal

session of the court, did it occur to
vou that it might be a good idea to
leave the criminal session, did you
ever think of that, in charge of a de-
puty? A. T am frank to state that if
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I had known that there was such an
enormous amount of liquor being
shipped into Bangor I should have
gone to the lower court during the
day, before court closed, and procured
warrants, but after the court had
closed for the night, there wcre no
more warrants to be had that day.

Q. What effort did you personally
make to discover where these harrels
of some kind of beer that you have
said were continually going through
the streets of Bangor were delivered?
A. T instructed my deputies—

Q. I didn’t ask you that—what ef-
fort did you personally make? A.
Every day that I had an opportunity
to leave my other duties at the court
house, T went upon the streets myself
during the dayv and T went upon the
streets myself during the evening.

Q. Did you ever personally make
any investigation as to where any load
of beer was finally delivered? A. T
did not.

Q. Did you ever see any of those
teams Ioaded with beer back up at
places that you knew from your past
experience as a liquor deputy and
such infermation as you had by in-
vestigation since being Sheriff, to he
liccuor places? A. T have not.

Q. You realized, Mr. Emerson, that
there came into the city of Bangor in
one month, namely in the month of
March, in barrels, half barrels, and
quarter barrels alone, 42,308 gallong
of liquid, that the freight agent says
was ale and lager beer? A. I wasn’t
aware of it until T heard it today.

Q. And it is a matter of great sur-
prise to vou, is it? A. Well, if it was
ale and lager heer it would be.

Q. You said a few moments ago.
in answer to Brother Thompson’'s
question, that a person who saw th-
tag on the keg would be able to tell
whether it was Uno or ale or straight
lager—-that is right, isn’t it? A, T
think so, ves, sir.

Q. And if the agent states as a re-
sult of his observation of shipping re-
ceipts that it was ale and lager, dn
vou feel that from your information
vou are in a position to dispute it? A,
I am not, no, sir.

Q. You realize that that quantity of
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fager and ale having come in to the
city of Bangor in the month of March,
in barrels, half barrels and quarter
barrels—that of that amount you and
vour deputies seized about 520 gallons
of that 42,0007 A, I am aware of it
now.

Q. Do you realize that in barrels
alone there were 68 barrels of whiskey
came into the city of Bangor and were
delivered somewhere in the single
month of March alone, and that the
freight agent testified that that was
about an avergae of the other three
months of the wvear, which if that is
true would make nearly 200 barrels
of whiskey in barrels alone coming
into the eity of Bangor during that
period, and that neither you nor your
deputies ever seized a single barre!
of it? A. T wasn’'t aware that so
large an amount came in, and I am
aware that my deputies never seized
it.

Q. Your deputies did get as 1 re-
member it, a ten gallon keg partly
filled with whiskey hid in a hay mow,
when was that, won’t you tell us
again? A, T got that myself, sir, at
No. 44 Main street.

Q. Was that a shop or a house? A,
‘That was a house, and 1 geized this
in the stable connected with the house.

Q. So that while yvou never got any of
these barrels of whiskey through vour
deputies, you personally did succeed in
getting part of a ten gallon keg of whis-

Key in a hay mow? A, 1 did.

Q. I notice that among other names
of persons upon whom you seized
upon a certain day, vou have
given me the names of Peter Mc-
Auley, Joe Crow, Martin  Cox, and
vou gave me another name of a

place you visited that same day and do
vou recall it or can you refresh your
recollection? A. Joe Jameson, that is
the place, near city hall.

). What day was that? A. I think,
ir, that was tae 4th day of January.

Q. Can you tell me when next, if ever,
vou or vour deputies visited Peter Mc-
Auley’'s place? And if vou desire I will
let vou look through this warrant and
=see if you can find after the 4th day of
January, after yvou had been sheriff three
days and a little longer, this Peter Mec-
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Auley’s place, and I will ask you if you
will Investigate and see if you or your
deputies ever went again or took any
warrant or had any warrant sworn out
against Peter MicAuley? A. I am frank
to state that I never went into Peter Mc-
Auley’s again, I don’t think there has
ever been a warrant sworn out against
Peter McAuley since. How many times
my deputies have been in without war-
rants I can’t tell you.

Q. Now upon that occasion—and I hold
in my hand a warrant dated January 4th,
1913, against Peter McAuley, I find that
it was sworn out by your deputy, Mr.
Cookson, if that is the name, and I find
on this list 160 glass bottles of ale; 120
0f beer; 34 of whiskey; 4 pint bottles of
whiskey; 4 half pint bottles of whiskey;
2 ¢uart bottles of gin; 5 quart bottles of
wine; one quart bottle of brandy; one
three pint bottle of rum; one tin can
with two gallons of alecohol; two jugs
and a quart of gin each; one jug with
two quarts nf whiskey and one keg 15
gallons of ale. Now if it be true that
from that time on neither you nor your
—deputies have evér sworn out any war-
rant or made any search of that place,
I will ask you if you expected that that
demonstration three days after ynu had
been inducted into office at the place of
Peter McAuley would be sufficient to so
impress him that he would never open

up again? Was that your idea? A. It
was not.
Q. You had known that Peter Mc-

Auley’s place as a rum shop back in the
days when you were a liquor deputy,
didn’t you? A. I did not, sir.

Q. Did you know that place as a rum
shop: A. I 4did not, sir.

Q. Did you know Peter McAuley as a
man engaged in the liquor business when
you were a liguor deputy? A. If I re-
member correctly, ;when I was a liquor
deputy Peter McAuley was a bhar tender
for one John Russell on Exchange street.

Q. 8o that you knew him as a man
who 'was in the business? A, I did.

Q. And who continued in business as
long as you were a liquor deputy? A.
My impression is that he did, although
I am not sure.

Q. What personal effort did you make
after January 4th, 1913, to find out
whether Peter McAuley, who in your
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experience as a liquor deputy had been
somewhat persistent, had or not gone out
of business at that place where you made
the sejzure? A. Pardon me, did you say
what effort?

Q. What personal effort? A. Not per-
sonally, I did not; no, sir, only talking
with my deputies.

Q. Did you inquire of any of your
deputies whether Peter McAuley was out
of business? A. I have.

Q. Where is Peter McAuley's place on
this map, Mr. Emerson? A, On Frank-
lin street.

Q. Located where on Franklin street?
A. I don’t know the number,

Q. Is it one of these two places? (In-
dicating on plan.) A. It is the place on
Franklin street, sir.

Q. How far and if this is 40 feet to the
inch +that would be perhaps 400 feet
away from the place where you have
lived all the time since the 1st day of
January? A. Possibly; possibly less; I
couldn’t say.

Q. And have you ever in any of your
trips from the jail down to town taken
any pains or even thought of going up
and personally looking at Peter Me-
Auley’s place and seeing what he was
doing? A. Personally, I have not heen
up to his place.

Q. Have you ever thought of it? A. T
have,

‘Why didn’t you go up? A. 1 instruct-
ed my deputies to go.

Q. Why didn’t you go? A. T well, I
can’t tell you the reason why.

Q. You are the man who took the oath
about which Mr. Dunn has spoken so im-
pressively, aren’t you? A. Yes, sir; 1
am.

Q. A man by the name of Richard
Crowe upon whom you or your deputies
served a warrant upon the 6th day of
January, which warrant was dated the
4th of January—4th day of January in-
stead of the 6th, and you found there a
long list of articles inecluding six bar-
rels containing 30 gollons of ale each;
one barrel containing 15 gallons of ale;
two barrels containing 5 gallons of ale
each; 174 bottles containing one guart of
whiskey each; 19 pint bottles of whiskey;
124 pint bottles of wine, and going down
to 680 pint bottles of ale and 3 bottles of
champagne, How long have you known

I3y
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Richard Crowe, that is, on the 4th day
of January? A. Richard Crowe was in
business when I was a deputy sheriff.

Q. And he showed some persistence in
remaining in business since that time.
hadn’t he? A. He had.

Q. Now, after the 4th day of January,
1913, have either you or your deputies
ever made any complaint whatever or
had any warrants whatever issued
against Richard Crowe’s place? A, I
think so, ves.

Q. If you discover it will you call my
attention to it? 1 say frankly to you now
that T have not been able to. A. I think
s0; I think I can show it by the list I
have here.

Q. Where is Richard Crowe’s place?
A, I think the number is 353 Pickering
square; I think it is 53.

Q. It is one of the three places that
are right snug together and to which
attention was called this morning, is it?
A, Tt is on Pickering square.

Q. (Referring to plan,) If you will
show me 'where it is as I run my pointer
down on the map. A. That is Pickering
square.

Q. 1Is that the place? A. Just drop
your pointer a little bit; I don’'t think
s0.

Q. It is somewhere in Pickering
square? A. It is; I think it is 33.

Q. And where was he when vou
were a liquor deputy? A. He was in
the same place I think.

Q. So that this particular man
Crowe, to your knowledge has been in
the liquor business since the time you
were a deputy sheriff back in 1905 or
1907? A. In 1905; June of 1905 T
think.

Q. So that practically for eight yvears
to your knowledge he has been in the
liguor business in that way? A. No,
I can’'t say so.

Q. Well, several years? A. He was
in the liquor business during the time
1 was deputy sheriff, and he is in the
liquor business now; but during the
four years that intervened, I can't say
for that.

Q. Now, after the 4th day of Jan-
uwary when you were in Richard Crowe's
place and assisted in making the seiz-
ure of the gquantity of ligquor that T
have asked you about, have you since
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that time been into his place? A. I
have not.

Q. Have you personally been by it?
A. Possibly I might have.

Q. But you are not clear in your
recollection as to whether or not you
have been by it so as to be sure of your
statement before this convention? A.
1 couldn’t say as for that.

Q. Now, there is a seizure upon one
Arthur Martin Cox. Is he the one re-
forred to as Martie Cox? A. Yes, the
same.

Q. That seizure shows among other
things 10 cases, 15 gallons of ale, and
various quantities of bhottled whiskey.

Have you been in his place? A. I
have not.
Q. Have you been by it so far as

vou know? A. Not to my knowledge;
it is on the same street and the same
side as the Crowe place.

Q. Now coming for a moment to the
instructions which you gave to your
various officers. You instructed Mr.
Gates, deputy sheriff at Millinocket, to
close up all the liquor places in Milli-
nocket, didn’t you? That is, to enforce
the law? A. 1 did, yes, sir.

Q. Perhaps not in those words, but
that is what you meant, was to close
up the place? A. That was just what
I meant.

Q. And he dia it, didn’t he? A. I
think he did.

Q. And he did it alone?
as far as I know.

Q. How many places were there in
Millinocket on the first day of January
to your knowledge that he has since
closed up alone? A. I can’t answer
that question because I haven’t been in
Millinocket for years.

Q. From your inquiries, if you made
any of your deputy, Mr. Gates, when
vou went into office, did you ascertain
from him as to how many places he
was to close up? A. I don’t think I
asked him.

Q. Didn’t ever ask him about how
many open places there were in Mil-
linocket? A. I don’'t know that I ever
asked him how many open places there
were.

A. He did

Q. These deputies that vyou ap-
pointed liquor deputies, none of them
live in Bangor, that 1is, their home
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wasn't in Bangor, was it? A. None of
them; no, sir.

Q. And during the three months that
you have been sheriff have you had any
liquor deputy whose home was in Ban-
gor at the time of the appointment?

A. Not any; no, sir.

Q. Now you spoke about having
some murder cases which I assume

from the guestion of your counsel he
asked the convention to believe took
some of your time. Take, for instance,
the Enfield case. When did that occur?

A. That occurred before I became
sheriff of Penobscot county.

Q. Back in August, wasn't it? Al
Some time during last fall.

. And the present attorney gen-
eral tried the case? A. I think he did,

sir.

Q. And did you as a result of what-
ever you may have done towards work-
ing it up personally have any informa-
tion at all which you imparted to the
attorney general at the time of that
trial or during its preparation?

Mr. THOMPSON: The case never
has been tried yet.

Mr. CLEAVES: You haven't got
ready to try it?

Mr. THOMPSON: It has not been
tried yet.

Mr. CLEAVES: What was that, a

case where a woman committed some
sort of depredation?

A. What was that, pardon me?

Q. The Enfield case, what was that?
A. It was a case where a woman and
a little child were killed with a club
of wood, as they claimed by one Charles
Smith, who is now in jail.

Q. And has not yet been tried? A.
He has not; no, sir.

Q. Was there another one of the
cases of murder which took some of
vour time where a man killed a con-
stable who was serving a writ on him
and then himself committed suicide?
A. That didn't take but very little of
my personal time.

Q. That was one of the cases which
you spoke about? A. Yes, sir

Q. And the man committed suicide
before the officers could get to him?
A, FHe did; yes, sir.

Q. Now was there another cuase, the
Passadumkeag case? That occurred
hefore your term of office, didn't it?
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A. No, sir; that was one that I
speak of where the constable by the

name of Bean was shot by this fellow.

Q. Was there a Millinocket case?
A. That occurred before I became
sheriff of Penobscot county.

Q. So that of the three matters—
three of the four matters occurred be-
fore you came into office? A. Yes, sin

Q. Has the Millinocket case ever
been tried? A. I think the respondent
in that case plead guilty to the charge
and was sentenced at the Tebruary
term of court.

Q. Now this arson case of which you
spoke. When the man was arrested he
plead guilty by reason of insanity,
didn’t he, and is under observation or
was? A. He is now.

Q. And he has never been tried? A.
He has never been tried.

Q. And didn’t the insurance com-
pany send out investigators to look up
that matter? A. T think they did, sir;
but I went with them to Dover, one of
them.

Q. And how long
A. Two days only.

Q. Now with reference to the strike
on the B. & A. Railroad, at the request
of the President of the railroad you
assigned him a certain number, 12 of
vour regular deputies, appointed seven
others, and did any of those at that
{ime include any of your liquor depu-
ties? A. Two of them.

Q. Two of the 12 were your liquor
deputies? A, Two of the 12; yes, sir.

). How long were they on duty at
the strike? A, Mr. Rackliffe, who is
present I think was on 40 days.

Q. How long was the ouer man on?
A. One of them was on for eight days,
and another one for five days.

Q. And that left yvou with how many
liguor deputies in Bangor? A. One.

Q. And did you know that if you
had taken some of your liquor deputies
and assigned them to other duties that
you had the right to appoint other
liquor deputies to take their places and
perform their services? A. I did.

Q. Did you do it? A. 1 did not.

Q. You knew, didn't you that you
could appoint in yvour county as many
deputy sheriffs as you needed, assign-
ing a certain number for service as

were you gone?
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liguor deputies? That is right, is it?

A. I am aware of that, yes.

Q. And that if your liquor deputies
in making search and seizures and in-
vestigations needed an aid or two or
half a dozen they could put them into
the warrant and they would be paid
for their services by the county. You
knew that, didn't you? A. I did.

Q. So that any one of vour liquor
deputies could start out with several
aids who would be paid for their ser-
vices. That is right, is it? A. I think
%0,

Q. Did you ever know of any of
your deputies doing that? A. I never
did.

Q. Now you sent your deputies, Mr.
Spratt and Mr. Trask, up to Portsmouth
some time in the early part of the year
to get a iist of the persons who paid
internal revenue tax? A. 1 did, yes.

Q. And they brought it back, did
they? A. They did.

Q. Did you look it over with them?
A. T don’t think I did; no, sir.

Q. Didn’t even look that list of peo-
rle over who paid the internal revenue
tax? A. Not to go through the list en-
tirely.

Q. Don’t you apprehend from what
vou have learned since vou came here
that had vou looked it over you would
have found a lot of old friends with
whom you were acquainted while you
were a liquor deputy? A. T haven't a
doubt about it.

Q. But vou didn’t do it? A. I didn’t
do it? A. T didn’t; no, sir; my deputies
@id theat.

;. You had that list sent before tho
grand jury for the purpose of indicting
each cne from that list? A. That is
right, sir.
© Q. Previous to that time had vou made
any efiort either personally or througn
your deputies to seize liquor in all the

places named in that list® A. In all
of them?
Q. Yes. A. Not all of them, I don’t

think so; no, sir.

Q. At what time did that lisi go be-
fore the grand jury? A. 1 think the
last week that the grand jury were in
session.

Q. And that would be some time in
the first part of February? A. Yes, or
tire middle.
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Q. And at that time had either you or
your deputies made over 20 seizures in
the city of Bangor? A. 1 should say
that they had. Q. How many will you
put it at? A. Well, it would be a mat-
ter of guess entirely. T have the lisi
here.

Q. Wasn't that pretty nearly the old
Pangor plan, Mr. Emerson, to go up to
Portsmouth and get a list of those
who paid the internal revenue tax and
take thatr in before the grand jury
without depriving them of any of their
liguors by seizure, and have them in-
dicted and they come in at some term
¢t court when there was not a justice
there who was in the habit of giving
jail sentences and paying their fines,
and do that about three times a veu
Wasn't that the old Bangor plan?
1 never knew anything—

Mr. THOMPSON: I object.

The SPEAKER: This is cross exami-
nation.

Mr. THOMPSONXN: T realize that.

The SPEAKER: I think it is admissi-
ble on cross examination.

A. I never knew anything about the
old Bangor plan. Only what I have
heard about if.

Mr. Cleaves: In accordance with
what you have heard, isn't that pretty
nearly it? A. I should say not, sir.

Q. Wasn’t there some featurs of the
Bangor plan by virtue of which a man
got into court ahout three times a year
and paid a fine, and in the mean time
didn't lose any of his ruim by seizure”
A. I am not familiar with the workings
of the Bangor plan, because 1 never
was engaged in it and never took part
in it and know nothing about it only
what I have been told.

Q. Now, who held court «t vour Feb-
ruary term, what judge? A, Judge
Cornigh, I think, sir.

Q. And he is quite likely to give jail
«entences, isn’'t he? A, Well, T don’t
new, sir, T never knew the geuntleman
until T met Bim in court at the opening
ot court.

Q. Do you know
Hevmon is? A 1 do.
2. And hew far is that from Bangor?
A. About five miles.

Q. Did vou or vour deputies hunt in
the town of Hermon? A. Yes, sir.

(. For any of thise people ¢

where the town of

inas
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whem indictments had heen found and
capiases issued? A. I don’t know that
they did; I never did.

¢. You did not know that your depu-
ties did? A. I did not know that they
aid.

Q. And did not Deputy Gares up at
Millinocket bring in practically all that
there were ever brought in? A. I think
he did.

Q. He is the man that closed up Mil-
linocket? A. He is.

Q. And you sent capiases to him with
mstructions to have them brought in?
A1 did.

Q. And he took you seriously? A. He
br.ught them in.

@. In these various places where yon
have personally assisted in making
seizures, how many of them occured
in the month of March? A. I think, sir,
the seizure that was made of Hancock
at the Commercial House was the first
part of the month of March. The five
seizures I nave spoken of, as made
without warrants, including the Pencb-
scot Exchange, or in other words the
warrant which put the Penobscot Ex-
change out of business, I think were
made in March.

Q. So that as you recall ii, one that
vou assisted in making five seizures,
and another when you made one with
vour deruties, that represents yvour per -
sonal activities in the month of March,
ag far as the liquor matters are con-
cerned? A. I think T went to Hnfield—

Q. 1 mean in Bangor. We will stay
right in Bangor. A. One Sunday after-
nooit in company with some of my dep-
utics we went out to search with four
warrants and procured liguor in thres
different places, and I am not certain
Wwhetber that was in March or the last
part of February.

Q. Assuming that was in March, that
would make three different days when
vou persvnally gave some time to the
enforcement of the liquor law? A, In
Banger?

). Yes, AL @ think so.

Q. On the other 23 days in March,
will vou kindly tell the convention of
the things you personally did to discov-
er what the condition was in Bangor,
and if that condition was bad, to re-
lieve it? A. The only thing I ecan tell
ithisz convention that I did personally
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was to talk with my deputies, have
them make out the lists, swear out the
warrants and travel around the streets
in company with them, aside from
whuat 1 have already told.

Q. You do not think of anything else?
A. At this moment, T cannot.

Q. And did you personally go into a
single one of the open saloons in Ban-
gor to see whether your deputies had
followed out your instructoin or not? A.
I did not.

Q. You did not?
Ver that 1 did.

»ou spoke of a civil suit against
vl account of a deputy seizing a
inundry wagon? A. That is true.

Q. When did that seizure occur?
T think in January.

Q. Now did the fact that one of your
deputies made a mistake and got into
a laundry wagon instead of a boosa
wagon so frighten you that you anAd
your deputies made no further attempt
to get boose wagons? A. That is not
S0.

Q- You did not make any attempt
afterwards? A, I beg your pardon.

Q. Is there a single warrant or a pro-
ceeding against the illegal transporta-
ticn of any liguor? A, Of the 17 war-
rants that T have spoken of here, sev-
cral were made fromn teams, and this
same deputy, Wood, who got into the
laundry wagon, made thie next seizure
made on a team.

Q. Did you get at those seizures
any of those barrels of whiskey, 68 that
in the month of March? A.

A. 1 cannot remem-

Al

came in,
No, sir.
Q. Did any of your deputies get

any of the barrels of beer that wera
coming in that month? A. I do not
recall that they seized any full bar-
rels, but half barrels at times.

Q. If I understood you correctly,
from the list you gave of the number
of seizures that have been made, 107
warrants that we have, there were 81
in the three months? A. Seizures?

Q. Yes. A, Yes, sir.

Q. And 107 warrants, 25 of which
were unsuccessful, and 17 were taken
out after the seizure was made, repre-
sents the total activity of yourself and
deputies during that three months?
A, 'That is true.

Q. How much vour depulies’

of
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time did that take each morning,
when the first thing that they did
was to place the lists of warrants and
places to be searched with you, and
then they would go and issue war-
rants when it does not amount to bhut
a little over one a day including Sun-
davs? A. Not but a very short time
to swear out warrants.

Q. Your deputy, Mr. Wood, he was
a liquor deputy? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And has been during
cumbency? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he ever tell vou anything
about having a complaint from an
attorney in Bangor in regard to Hol-
land’s house? A. I never heard of it.

Q. This attorney went to your de-
puty, Mr. Wood, and made complaint
and had a warrant issued, and Mr.
‘Wood went out and came back with
two or three pints of liquor. Then
the attorney afterwards inquired at
the sheriff’s office as to what had been
done, and found what had been seized,
and then told your deputy that there
was a cart load up there and asked
him why he didn’t take it all. Did
vou ever hear of that? A. At the
house or shop?

Q. Either way. A. I don’t remem-
ber anything of that kind. I do re-
member of my deputies making a
seizure at Holland’s shop on Mercan-
tile street.

Q. And one they did make—A. At
Holland’s house.

Q. In regard to this Uno analysis.
vou were asked in connection with
your knowledge of Uno beer coming
into Bangor, and your statement was
that nobody could tell by the looks of
the keg whether it was Uno beer or
not. I ask you whether in this analy-
sis handed to us by counsel, if every
particle of beer was mnot in bottles
having labels on them indicating that
the beer came from out of the State
of Maine? The bottles themselves and
the labels upecn them indicated that
the bottles and their contents were
not bottled in the State of Maine but
came originally from beyond the lim-
its of the State of Maine. A. T think
this Epstein who runs a bottling es-
tablishment on Hancock street where
these goods were seized, has this beer

your en-
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come in kegs, and bottles and labels it
and sends it out from there.

Q. Do not the labels which I have
shown you in that paper indicate that
every one 9f the bottles came from
beyvond the State of Maine? What
does that paper you have introduced
show? A. One reading the label on
the bottles might think it did come
from out of the State.

Q. When you seized it, it was in
hottles, was it not? A. It was in
bottles.

G. Have your officers ever seized a

of Unc bheer in Bangor in
kegs? A. No, sir, not in kegs.

Q. You heard the bar described,
gaid to be a marble top bar, do you
know what place that is in? A. If
my memory serves rme correctly, it is
Russell’s.

Q. When did you see it
Russell’s?

particie

last? A

(3. Yes, if that is one of the marbic
top bars. A. I have never been in
his place since T have been elected
sheriff.

Q. Dc vou know the Jameson place

with the slate top bhar mnext to the
shack near the court house. A. What
kind of a bar?

Q. A slate top. A. I know where

Jameson's place is. I was in it sev-
eral times when I was deputy sheriff,
but never since I hecame sheriff.

(). The fire has been since vou were
a deputy sheriff? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it is built up new there?
Have you not ever been in Jameson’s
place that a witness described as one
of the best bar rooms in Bangor? A.
Pardon me, but there are two Jame-
son’s in Bangor.

Q. T am speaking of the one that

has @ slate bar and is on Harlow

street. Have you ever been in it since
you were a deputy sheriff? A. No,
sir.

Q. That is one of the new buildings
erected since the fire? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is one described by a wit-
ness as occupying the whole of the
first flocr of the building. Is that
right? A. As far as 1 know, I never
was in the building.

0. How far is that from the court
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house and jail? A. 1t is quite a ways
off.

Q. How far, quite a ways, but how
far? A. It is on Harlow street.

Q. How far from the jail? A, A
thousand yards perhaps.

Q. Ever been by it? A. I think I
have once.

Q. During all that time have you
heard that they were selling rum
there? A. I think so.

Q. Why didn’t you go in and see
whether it was so or not? A. For
the same reason I have given before.
I had deputies, liquor deputies at
work. I had something else to take
my time.

Q. That day when you went Dby
after you had heard they were selling
liquor there what were you doing that
day that caused you to be in such a
hurry that you could not stop a min-
ute and see whether they were sell-
ing liquor or mnot? A. Possibly if [
could tell what day it was, I might.

Q. Do you want this convention to
understand that you were always in
such a rush whenever you got to
Jameson's place that you did not have
time to go in and see whether they
were selling liquor or not? A, No,
s1r.

Q. Why didn't you go in then? A.
That I cannot tell you.

Q. You know about the shack? A.
1 have heard of it,
Q. When first? A. Right away

after the fire.

Q. And when did you first hear of
it as a rum shop? A. Right very
soon after the fire.

Q. When did you first visit it after
you were inaugurated sheriff? A. I
never was in the shack in my life.

Q. How far is it from the last
place we spoke of? A. Right hy the
side of it.

Q. Can you give the convention
any reason why, knowing that as a
rum shop ever since the time of the
fire and all the time you were sheriff,
that you never have been in it? A.
The only reason I can give this con-
vention is that I had other duties in-
cumbent upon me besides the duty of
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the enforcement of the
law.

Q. And you have mentioned to this
convention all those duties to which
you allude? A. I do not know that
I have.

Q. If you think of any more duties
that take any more of your time that
you want to call to their attention, do
s0. A, When 1 became sheriff of
Penobscot county, we had 98 prison-
ers in the jail, and prisoners are go-
ing in and coming out every day and
it requires a good deal of time to look
after them.

Q. You knew, did you not,
your experience as a liquor Jdeputy
back seven or eight years ago that
you had a right under the law to take
out a warrant and search a place anc
finding it is being run as a rum shop,
you had a right to take everything
that in any way was used in that un-
lawful business? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Including bar and fixtures? A,
I canhnot say that I knew I had a right
to take the bar?

Q. Did you ever talk with any-
body about that? A, I don’t know
as I ever did.

Q. Have you ever known of a dep-
uty sheriff in other counmties that
when they made a seizure and meant
pusiness got overything so that they
had to start in all over? A. I never
knew of a sheriff or a deputy sheriff
doing that. I knew the Sturgis Jepu-
ties sometimes did that.

Q. That the way they closed places
up, and you knew it. A. That was
one of their methods.

Q. 'There is another Jameson place
that is nearer the court house than
this one that we spoke of close by the
shack? A. There is this Joe Jame-
son’s place that I spoke of. '

Q. How near is that to the court
house? A. Perhaps 400 or 500 feet
away—>500 yards 1 should say.

Q. When did you last see the in-
side of that place? A. I never have
heen in that place since 1 became
sherift. .

Q. You knew it had the reputation
of being an open bar? A. 1 did.

Q. How near to it did you go when

prohibitory

from
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you left the jail to go down
A. Just across the street,

Q. In all the time that you ware in
that locality, and going by it, did it
ever occur to you that it would be in-
teresting to find out whether they
were selling rum there or not? A.
That might have occurred, but I never
went in.

Q. You do not remember it if it did
oceur? A. 1 can’t say as to that.

Mr. DONALD F. SNOW, aaving
been duly sworn, testified as folows:

Examination by Mr. Thompson.

town?

Q. What is your full name? A.
Donald F. Snow.

Q. What is your profession? A.
Lawyer.

Q. Are you at the present time

county attorney of Penobscot county?
A, T am,

Q. And have heen since the
day of January? A. I have,

Q. Now, Mr. Snow, when you came
into office, how many murder cases
were there awaiting you? A, The
Jacobin, really two, two people wera
killed.

Q. That was at East Millinocket?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And subsequent to your taking
office, was there another murder case?
A. The Beane murder case, Officer
Beane.

Q. The Jacobin murder case hap-
pened during the term of court at Au-
gust previous? A. August, 1912.

Q. And the duty came upon you to
indict him? A, It did. The murder oc-
curred so late.

Q. Now in that case, was it necessary
to employ detectives? A. I do not know
whether it was necessary, but I did em-
ploy some.

Q. Tell just what you did in regard to
those detectives so far as pertains to
the work of the sheriff. A. Before that
I went to Mr. Emerson before January
ist and asked for help on this murder
case. The evidence was very conflicting.
It was really a mysterious case. He
finally made arrangements with Mr.
Gates to assist me in the matter. That
was before January 1st, and Mr. Gates
in company with my brother-in-law and
an interpreter worked in Enfield perhaps
a week after January 1st, About Janu-

first
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ary 10th I had a Pinkerton detective
come from Boston and I smuggled him
into jail. He was put into jail as a
prisoner in the night. He was a Pole,
the same nationality as the prisoner.
This detective stayed in Mr. Emerson’s
jail two weeks, During that two weeks
I was in constant communication with
Mr, Emerson. By that I mean I saw him
in regard to the matter at least every
day and sometimes perhaps twice a day.
It was necessary to have this detective
keep sending out reports and that was
worked by the means of letters to fic-
titious persons. Mr. Emesson and the
turnkey and myself were the only people
at that time who knew of the arrange-
ments we were trying to complete, Mr.
Emerson during that time I think came
up to my house one or two evenings,
when we did not care to have a con-
ference at my woffice. After this Pink-
erton detective came out of jail, T think
he was there about two weeks, the lat-
ter part of January, I made arrangements
with Mr. Havey, the insurance commis-
sioner, as this arson case was disturbing
us very much, and we made arrange-
ments to have another detective come
down and he came from Boston and was
arrested and taken to jail and stayed
in there I think twelve days, inside of the
jail, and during the time he was in
there, T conferred with Mr. Emerson
more than in the previous case. We
were very much in fear that the re-
spondent’s lawyers would see what we
were trying to do, and it was a very
difficult matter to get the reports out.
I had one or two conferences with Mr.
Emerson in his private quarters in the
jail, and at last we decided to take the
detective out. T took him to my house
and he stayed there a matter of ten days,
going out in the night time. During that
time, I think I can truthfully say that
Mr., Emerson came up to my house twice
if not three evenings ana spent the entire
evening in company with the detective
and others including Mr. (ates. After
the detective came out, he came during
the session of the grand jury and de-
velopments made it seem necessary to
send another detective to Garland., We
procured another detective and he went
to Garland. The arrangement we were
then working made it necess

:ary o have
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constant communication with him and
part of it went through Mr. Emerson’s
office. That matter worked out so suc-
cessfully, this was the second detective
agency, that I determined to try the sec-
ond agency on the Jacobin case. We got
two Pole detectives down and had one
go to Old Town and got arrested and
brought down to tine jail. We then went
through the same performance, that is,
this detective would get his reports out
through Mr. Emerson. That man stayed
in jail I don't remember how many days,
I could tell by looking it up, Mr. Powers
and Mr. Emerson being the only ones—
and Mr. Gates—at that time knowing of
the arrangements. Later on, the very
last end of the grand jury term, the de-
velopments in the Garland case made it
necessary for us to make some secret
investigations in the towns of Dover,
Foxeroft and Garland. I requested Mr.
Kmerson to go personally if possible., It
was a matter that I did not at that time
care to have a great number of people
know about, and Mr. Emerson did go
taking one deputy and one detective to
those towns, and was there I think two
days. And at the time the grand jury
was in session, we frequently conferred
at my request in my office as well as at
my house. I think perhaps that is about
all in that line.

Q. Now, Mr Attorney, did you ask the
sheriff for men to obtain for you the
necessary stamp evidence? A. I did.

Q. And did he assign to you men as
he has described? A, Assigned Deputy
Spratt and Deputy Trask.

Q. Now, these two men are
deputies in Bangor, are they not?
think so.

Q. Did you keep them about the grand
jury rooms during the session of the
grand jury? A. Well, not all of it. They
went to Portsmouth the latter part of
tue first week of the grand jury. I re-
member one of them got back Sunday
and the next one Tuesday T think of the
second

liquor
A1

week.  After they got back, T
worked on the 1list mights, about the
only time that I could get. By that I

mean, that I called in officers as many
as 1 could from the surrounding towns
and would take the lists and go over
town hy town, asking them about them



1888

and getting what evidence I could to
back up the stamp so-called.

Q. Now when you procurred these in-
dictments, Mr. Attorney, were they ob-
tained on stamp evidence alone? Al
They were not.

Q. Each case was corroborated by
some additicnal evidence? A. Why I
notified the grand jury that I stood
ready to corroborate it if they desired
it in any case.

Q. And how many, Mr. Attorney, daid
they indict at that term? A. 159.

Q. And those indictments were re-
turned into court? A. They were.

Q. And capiases issued? A. They
were.

Q. Now on those capiases, Mr. At-
torney, how many respondents were
brought and haled into court? A. I
think before answering that, in justice
to Mr. Emerson, 1 should say that of
the 159 indictments 21 indictments were
Lrought against the apothecaries or
druggists. They were brought by the
grand jury, T might say perhaps, with-
out the evidence exactly bheing pre-
sented to them. T would not care at this
time to go into the details unless you
desire them. For reasons hest known
to the prosecuting officer, I at once
took the matter up with Judge Cornish
as soon as he arrived there and after a
conference with him, we decided, I say
we, Judge Cornish and myself, to hold
the 21 capiases against the druggists.
Ry that T mean, of the 159 indictments,
138 capiases were turned over to Mr.
Emerson and not the 159. Now of that
number, I am guessing when I say that
14 were brought in during the February
term. It is about that number.

Q. And can you give this convention
any idea of what became of those 14
cases? A. I can in a general way.

Q. That is all we expect. A. The
very first we had wes the case of an
old gentleman in Hampden. The case
was explained te Judge Cornish and he
finelly placed the matter on file. It was
a man who had lost his wife, T think
ahout a month before, and I think he
had 8§ children. The next respondent I
think received a sentence of 4 months
and a fine of $300. And then after that
the Millinocket contingent arrvived and
they received anywhere from $25¢ fine
to 6 months and $200. Various sentences
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were imposed by Judge Cornish.

Q. How many respondents do you
know landed in jail? A. Why on those
indictments, T shauld say 9 or 10—8 or
9.

Q. Now you have heard Mr, Attorney,
the attorney for the state ask in regard
to cne Crowe. Do you know as to
whether or not there has becen a sec-
ond search and seizure at the Crowe
rlace recently? A. I simply know this—
the only knowledge 1 have of Major
Fmerson’s searches is what I read in
the paper and I think I remember
reading in the paper where one of the
Crowes a week or two ago—

Judge CLEAVES: Bre. Thompson do
vou want to put in the newspaper?

Mr. THOMPSON: No.

The SPEAKER: That would not be
admissible.

The WITNESS: That is all I know
about it.

Q. Mr. Attorney, you heard Geo. F.
Hill testify this morning? A. I did.

Q. Do you know Mr. Geo. F. Hill? A,
I do.

Q. Do vou know what his reputation
is for truth and veraecity? A. I think T
do.

Q. What is it? A. T sheuld say it was
very bad.

Cross-Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. of these several men who received
jail sentences at the February term
how many of them live in Bangor? A.
Not any.

Q. So that of the 159 indictments, 21
of which were against druggists, not a
soul who lived in Bangor was brought
in by the sheriff or any of his deputies
for sentences before Judge Cornish? A.
Just one.

G, One—and was he sentenced? A. He
defaulted.

Q. That is, he came iri— A. And gave
bonds for his appearance the next day
and then it was defaulted the next day.
He didn’t put in appearance.

Q. So no Bangor man is in jail as a,
result of any of those indictments®
A. Not as the result of tlie indictments.

Q. Now about what time did you anA
Sheriff Emerson in your considerations
in regard tc these various murders and
arson cases have your investigatiorsg?
A. Just about the time the grand jury
coinpleted its deliberations.
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2. That would be the last part of
Tebruary? A. No, that would be about
thie end of the second week.

2. IInd of the second week in Fe¢bru-
ary? A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that after that time, Mr. Emer-
son owas oft duty as far as yvou wers
concerned?  A. Why except as to his
dutieg in court, ves sir.

FRED M. GATES, having been duly
sworn, testified as follows:

Examination by Mr. Thompson.

Q. What is your name pleasz2? A.
Fred M. Gates.

Q. And your residence?
nocket.

Q. You are a deputy sheriff of the
county of Penobscot? A, 1 am.

Q. Mr. Gates, how long have
been deputy sheriff in all? A,
ol about ten or eleven years.

Q. And you served two years un-
der Mr. White? A, I did, yes, wir.

Q. And under Mr. Brown? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. XNow after the first day of Janu-
ary, did you clean up the town cf
Millinocket? A, 1 started in just
about as soon as I got back there,
ves.

Q. And did vou make some seizures
up there?” A. On the 3d day of
January I started in. Yes, sir, I made
some seizures.

Q. Can you tell this convention
how many seizures you made in Milli-
nocket. A. Well, I have sworn out
28 gearch warrants. 1 think I have
been successful in 16 of them. Twelve
of them I missed in.

Q. And have you done anything in
the enforcement line outside of the
town of Millinocket? A, Why, vyves.
at East Millinocket, T have sworn out.

). What have you done at East
Millinocket? A, I went down and
swore out before the trial justice, I

won't say for sure, but 5 or 6 war-

A, Milli-

you
F0ing

rants.
€. Did you assist in those? A, I
did. 1 assisted the constable. We

¢leaned them up.

Q. Now did you do anything eilse
vutside of those two towns in regard
to the prohibitory law? A. Why, I
have been at Sherman Station; that is

ail outside of the town.
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Q. And you have worked in three
different places then? A. Yes, or
anywhere they wanted me.

Q. Millinocket, East Millinocket
and Sherman? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were the capiases given to you

at the February term of court? A.
They were, yes, sir.
Q. And did you find the respon-

dents in Millinocket? A. I fouad all

but four. I had 16 capiases.

Q. Sixteen capiases? A. I found
all but four of them.

Q. You got 12 respondents ther,

did you? A. 1 did, yes, sir.

Q. And brought them into court?
A, T did.

Q. And as a result, Mr. Gates, of
your efforts, how many people arc
there now in Penobscot jail for viola-
tion of the prohibitory law. A. Why
at the present time, I think there are
12, tfrom Millinocket, East Millinockrt
and Sherman Station.

Q. Are there any open rum shops
in Millinocket today? A. No, xir.

Q. Have you made any seizures
over at the station? A. I hace, yes,
sir,

Q. I suppose those were seizures
which would come under the Inter-
state Commerce Law, would they not?
A, Yes, sir. Shipments from one
town in this State to another.

Judge STEARNS: Would not coma
under,

Q. Have you seized anything from
the express companies there? A. Yes,
sir,

Cross-Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. What is the business at Milli-
nocket? A. It is paper making town.

Q. And the population during the
present year, about? A. Why in the
neighborhood of, why mnear in the
neighborhood of 4000.

Q. And quite a number of foreign
born peopie? A. TLots of them.

Q. Largely—the population is of a
foreign element? A, Yes, sir, alarge
per cent, of it.

Q. How many open places were
there when you began your duties as
deputy sheriff the first day of Janu-
ary? A. Thirteen.

Q. And there are none
There are none.

now? A.
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Q. I suppose that all these places
that you closed up and have kept
closed, you went into them occasion-
ally, didn’t you? A. Well, I niade a
visit once in a while, yes, sir.

Q. And that was the way that you
concluded people up there would know
that you meant business was to make
seizure and then follow it up from
time to time to see if they were do-
ing anything-—you look at it that way,
do you? A. They have to he watched
pretty close.

Q. And you don't know of
other way? A. I do not, no, sir.

Q. Of closing anything and keep-
ing it closed-—a rum shop—without
following up your seizure with visits,
do you? A. You have to keep ham-
mering at them all the time.

Q. You wouldn't expect to clos=
those places and keep them closed :f
vou made a seizure on the first day or
fourth day of January and never went
into the place afterwards, would you?
A, No, sir.

Q. You were ready to go anywhere
in Penobscot county that the sheriff
wanted you to go? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he ever ask you to come to
Bangor? A. No, sir.

any

CALVIN KNAIDE, having been duly
sworn testified as follows:

Examination by Mr. Thompson.

Q. What is your name A. Calvin

Knaide.

Q. You live in Bangor? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Police officer of Bangor. A.
Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been con-
nected with the police department of
Bangor? A. 30 years.

G. What position do you hold? A.
now?

Q. Yes. A. Inspector of police.

Q. And you are the plain-clothes
man of the Bangor police department,
are you? A. Yes, sir.
how

Q. And have been for many
vears? A. Nine years straight., 10
vears since we started.

Q. Now, Mr. Knaide, will vou tell

this convention what is the condition
of the men in Bangor during the
spring and £311 months particularly
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this time of year. A. Well, they are
woodsmen, foreigners, mostly all for-
eigners, coming ~and goihg to the
woods, and now on the drive back and
forth.

Q. What about the numbers? A.

Oh, I should say 5,000 or 6,000.

Q. And those people congregate in
what vpart of the town? A. They
mostly congregate now on Exchange
street and French street and Wash-
ington street, they used to on Broad
street, not so much now.

Q. Where do these people come
from, if you know? A. Well they
come from the Provinces, and then the
employment agencies go to Boston
and fetch them from Boston.

Q. Now will vou tell the convention
the conditions in the city of Bangor
now in regard to the liquor traffic? A.
Well, since when? how long?

Q. Well describe it in the last three
months. A, Well, the last four years,
it has been bad, very had, couldn’t be
any worse. It has improved since the
first of January considerably.

Q. Describe in what way, Mr. In-
spector. A, Well, we haven’t had so
much trouble, nor had so much drunk-
enness, haven’'t had no stealing,

Q. That is, the last three months
you mean. A. In the last three
months, yes.

Q. And have you assisted in mak-
ing any searches of liguor? A, Yes.

Q. Describe those searches for the
convention. A, Well, I haven’t made
many, made two, one at Stillwater
Park, with the sheriff and another
officer, and one down on Broad street
with a warrant swarn out by the chief
of pelice Gilman, on Monday, I think,
or Tuesday.

Q. Against whom was the one on
Broad street? A. Annie Burns.

Q. Describe to the convention what
vou found there. A. She keeps a food
and victualing shop in the front part
and in the back part a shop where
she feeds people, and this liquor. 1
found three pint bottles in a long ta-
hle, a hide she had in the table.

Q. Now tell about the places
pangor and how liquor is exposed for
sale at the present. A. There is no
liquor in sight in any of the shops in

in
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the city of Bangor today—I don’t know
about today, but when I left there.

Q. No liquor in sight? A. None
whatever,

Q. That
Well,
there.

Q. Now about watchers around the
city? A. Well watchers around Ban-
gor—everybody on the street if they
see a deputy sheriff coming, they will
send word around to everybody, mer-
chants will do that, truckmen will do
it, and everybody do it.

Q. They are doing
they? A. Yes, sir,
do it.

Q. In your opinion, Mr. Inspector,
the people in Bangor engaged in the
liquor traffic, are they acquainted with
these liquor deputies? A, Oh, yes.
sir.  The first thing they do, find them
out, see who they are and get a line
on them.

Q. What then? A. And
along the street will send the
aleng they are coming.

Q. That is called the wireless, isn't
it? A, Well, T don't know what they
call it, that is the way they do it.

Q. Now what do wyou say, Mr.
Knaide, in regard to the number of
saloons in Bangor now in corparison
with the first day of Januarv—mum-
ber of shops rather. A, 1 should say
there is somewhere in the necighbor-
hood of—closed up vou mean?

Q. Yes. A. Yes—bH or 6.

Q. Are those shops as a rule kept
open all the year round by those pen-
ple? A. They are.

Q. Do you know Mr. George Frank

condition
two or three

recently? A.
weeks, around

that now,
and always

are
will

people
word

Hill who testified here this morning?
A. I do.
Q. Do vou know what his reputa-

tion is for truth and veracity? A. Tt
is bad.

Q. Mr. Inspector, these shops that
we refer to here in the city, how long
have most of them been in existence
as shops? A. Well, the most of them
have heen in existence a long while,
couldn't tell you how long.

Q. Have these shops kept open for
a good many vears? A, All but one,

Q. And were they open during the
dry times? A. They were,

—HOUSE, APRIL 10. 1891

Q. During the Sturgis Commission?
A. They were.

Q. And are kept open all the time?
A, They were, yes, sir.

Q. And those are the same shops
that are open today? A. All but one.

Q. What one is that? A. That is
Milan’s on Washington street, Charles
Milan, on Washington street.

Q. That is not open now? A. That
is not open, they made two searches,
seized and drove him out.

Q. Now if you know, Mr. Inspector,
whether or not there was a search
made recently in the Crowe place? A.
I do.

Q. Was there one? A. There was.

Q. Do you know what the penalty
imposed by the court was in that case?

A, Well he gave them a jail sen-
tence, 60 days in jail, and $100 in case
of any default of payment, additional
60,

Q. And they of course appealed?
A. They appealed and gave bhonds.

Q. Now what about Peter McAuley’s
place on Fraunklin street, do you Kknow
where that is? A, T do.

Q. I that running now?

Q. Closed up is it? A.
now, was when T left Bangor.
Cross-Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. You haven't heard since you have
heen down here whether he was closed
up or not? A, No, but I wish I was
there to find out.

Q. You have been in several of these
open shops since the first day of Janu-
ary, haven't vou? A. I have becn in
the whole of them, sir.

Q. And up to how recent a period,
wwithin a few days? A. Yes.

Q. And up to within a week or two
ago, they were openly exposing liquor
ot their bars or about their bars? A.
Yes sir,

Q. Running in good
shape, were they not? A. T don’t know
what kind of shape they run it. Any-
body who went in there could get it.

Q. Just about the same as they have
for a number of years? A. Not quite
20 bad as they were for the last four
years.

Q. But had a good fair stock of
liquor on hand all the time? A. Yesy,
up to a short period ago.

A. No sir.
Closed up

old-fashioned
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Q. Beer on That I

couldn’t say.

Q. Didn’t you notice anything about
that? A. I saw the ©beer there, I
couldn’t tell what it was, some kind of
beer.

Q. When there is a good fair stock
of hard ligquor on the bar in Bangor,
do you know -of any citizens there who
come in and take Uno as a matter of
choice? A. TUno, I don’t.

Q. When there is hard liquor about
a bar room and you see something on
draught, does that call to your mind
that it is pretty good evidence that it
ig either lager or ale? A. I don’t drink,
and so I can’t tell.

Q. In your experience? A. I have
taken some that was ale and some that
was Uno beer.

Q. With liquor on the bar?
not with liquor on the bar.

Q. When you find liquor on the bar
and take it, you don’t have to bring it
back? A. No, that settles it.

Q. Now, with three or four thousand,
as you stated, people coming in from
the woods and other places, transient
people in Bangor, congregating down
around Exchange and French streets,
that means a pretty fair sort of busi-
ness for the places down there? A.
And Washington street, and some on
Broad street, but not so many as there
used to be.

Q. But it means a pretty fair busi-
ness for any places that are open there?
A. I should say it would.

Q. Now that Annie Burns place that
the marshal swore out a warrant for
and you went down and found three
pints of liguor-—was that after some
woodsman had been robbed in there?
A, No sir.

Q. Wasn't there a complaint made
to the marshal and he acted upon that
complaint? A. No sir.

Q. He went down there of his own
motion? A. Yes sir. Well, he sent
me down to swear out a warrant and I
went down.

Q. And is it your idea and recollec-
tion that the city marshal, desiring to
enforce the prohibitory law, selected
that one place in Bangor where he
could make a seizure? A. No sir, he
was getting at a house of ill fame, and

draught? A.

A. No,
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there was a lady arrested, and he told
me to go in and talk with her, and I
went in and talked with her, and I
came out and told Chief of Police Gil-
man, and he got a warrant, and went
down and got the stuff. She was tried
and bound over in the sum of $500 fow
a nuisance.

Q. You spoke about when the sheriff
and his deputies started out on a raid
that quite a number of people became
watchers and sent the word around.

A. They will do it, yes sir.

Q. Now let me ask you if in the
same afternoon, on the 4th day of Jan-
uvary last, the sheriff and his deputies
seized one cart load of liguor from
Arthur Martin Cox’s place, hauled it
off and had the team come back and
went down to Richard Crowe’s place,
seized another cartload and hauled it
off, and had the team come back and
seize a cartload at McAuley's place, and
then come back with the same cart
and made a seizure of a cartload at
Jameson’s place? A. Do you mean
the first raid they started? No one
knew they were coming until they came,
they had deputies in every place at one
time.

Q. You heard the sheriff testify? A.
I did, I am speaking now about the first
trip.

Q. You heard him testify when he
said he didn’t have deputies enough
to cover all the places? A. The first
seizure he covered every place, all hut
two, and they shut up and ran.

Q. Do you know of any places in
Bangor that closed up their bars that
day except the two that you have
spoken of? A, No, I don't know as I
do; 1 couldn’t say.

Q. There were two of them that
really got frightened and went off? A.
They all got frightened.

Q. But two of them went off? A.
Yes sir, two that were frightened and
ran.

Q. Did they
They are back.

NORMAN SMITH, called for the de-
fense, sworn, in answer to questions
by Mr. Thompson, testified as follows:

Q. You are a police officer in the
city of Bangor? A. I am.

Q. And have Dbeen a great many
yvears? A. 12 years.

ever come hack? A.
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Q. Now where is your present beat,
Captain? A. Down on Exchange St.,
Washington St, French 8St., Hancock
St., and Oak St.

Q. That
of woodsmen are now?

is down where the crowd
A. Yes sir.

Q. Now have you made any seizures
or searclies lately? A. Not since the
middle of last summer.

Q. Will vou tell the convention in
vour own way, Captain, just how the
conditions in Bangor are at the present
time? A. Well, how far back?

Q. Just during the first of ithe vear
until the present time. A. Well, they
are somewhat better now than they
were the first of January. The first of
January 1 considered they were as bad
as any time that I have seen for the
twelve years that I have been on the
force, but I don’t thirk there are so
many arrests as usual at this time in
the year. I know of some places that
have gone cut of business, and one of
the worst places that I know of that
was running the first day of January.

Q. What was that? A. That was the
Moosehead.

Q. That has gone nut of business? A,
That is out of business; it was running
the first of January.

Q. Now are there any other
places out of business? A, Well,
there is one that opened up about

two weeks ago and ran a little more
than a week there on Washington
sire2t—I don’'t know but what it might
have run two weeks—it opened up, and
they raided it and closed it, it went out
of business.

Q. Now do you know what they call
the “wireless” around Bangor? A. I
think I do.

Q. Well, Mr. Smith, describe what
the wireless is. What is meant by the
wireless? A. Well, if a man starts
from city hall, they know it on ian-
cock street hefere he gets to PPol’'s Cor-
ner. If a public carriage sees an officer
that is known to be searching, is promi-
nent in it, when he starts out he will
start ahead of him, if he startys up Har-
low street he will notify them up that
way, if he starts across the bridge,
before he gets to the East side of Har-
low gtreet, they will know it the whole
length of the street and up Hancock
street. I have seen it when I was mak-
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ing a search on Hancock street, I
would have to go at least three quart-
ers of a mile out of my wav in order
to have any show at all to make a sue-
cess of it.

Q. Is that wireless in operation now
in Bangor? A. Not as much ag I have
seen it, although T think it was a week
ago last Sunday that I saw Sheriff
Iimerson, his turnkey, Sheriff Spratt,
the Sheriff from Hampden—Trask-—on
Exchange street, and I came down a
ways with them, and I stepped out,
away from them. I was in uniform, and
1 made up my mind they was on busi-
ness, and they would meet with bet-
ters succese with me away from them,
50 I took the other side of the road.
They walked down the street, and
shortly after, I went up Hancock street
aud down French street, and in front
of one of the Wodsmen’s hotel, thera
was &4 man standing in the door, a bar
tender. Another man came along and he
says “Which way did they go?’ “Well,”
this man told him, “They have gone
down Washington street, two of them,
and [ have seen two of them go up Ex-
change street.” There is one bar room
on Hancock street, run by Xelliher
where they keep a watch on the door
all the time and the door bolted, and
no man, citizen or officer, gets in that
dnor until they see who he is.

Q. How long has that been? A. Ever
since T have been on the beat. I took
that the 18th day of March, I think it
was.

Q. Do you know where Mike Hen-
nesy’'s place is? A. I don’t think T do.
I don’t know this man’s first name,
but he goes by the name of Dike. That
is on Hancock street.

Q. What about that place? A. That
is the place I have heen telling you
abort.

Q. Are there any more guards out
down in that section? A. None that I
know of.

Q. Is the alarm given down there
when the officers are coming? A. T have
secen 1t given.

Q. Recently? A. Yes, sir, that Sun-
day that T was telling you about.

Q. What abcut the business down
there at the present time, are they wide
open? A, The shops are wide open.

Q. Anything on the hars? A. No

sir.
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Q. Are they puting sturtf in hides
now? A. I couldn’t tell you that, for
I haven't been in a search.

Q. Whese place was it you spoke of
—cne or iwo of them that kept a locked
door—those are what you call joints?
A. Il is a regular bar rom, sir.

Q. Wasn't that a pretty low order of
har room? A. I have seen better ones,
and a lot worse ones.

Q. Do you know why this particular
man keeps his door locked and all the
otilers are open? A. All I know is ap-
pearances. I know he keeps it locked,
for 1 have seen it, I have been in there
and waited for him to pull the lock.

Q. You dor’t know why he lkeeps his
locked while all the others are open? A.
T can use my common sense, sir and
that is ali T have attempted. I only
know what the appearance is.

Q. When this wireless is working so
that they know the Sheriff ig coming,
wouldn’'t it be a pretty hard job to get
out the beer on draught, if they are
drawing it from bharrels, before the of-
ficers get there? A, Well, that is ow-
mg to circumstances. I have seen
places where they would get it off be-
fore you could get from the door to
the bar. I have known a bar room in
Bangor with draught ale on and they
vwould get it out of the way before you
conld get from the door to the bar.

Q. A barrel of beer? A. I don’t know
whether it was a barrel, but they would
get it out of the way so that you
couidn't find it. They would be draw-
ing #le when you came in the door, and
when vou got there, it would be water
from the same faucet.

Q. They l:ad one of those two way
faucets that they spoke about in Port-
land, that pipe must lead soriewhere?
A, Yes, sir, and I know now whera
the pipe led. T have found one barrel of
ale under the sidewalk, and it was &
double pipe.

Q. How long ago was that? A. That
was several years ago, it wasn’t this
spring.

Q. QQuite a long while ago? A. Yes, sir.

Q. This Mcoschead that they closed—
uid you ever know of the Sheriff mak-
ing any seizures there this year? A. T
covldn’t say, I don’t know that he did.

Q. It went into bankruptcey, didn't it?
That is the way it clesed? A. I couldn’t
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say sir, I know it was open, and I know
it was closed; that is all I can say
about it.

Q. You don’t know anything about
his bankruptcy? A. No, sir.

. . DEARTH, called for the de-
fenge, sworn, in answer to questions by
Mr. Thompson, testified as follows:

Q. Your residence? A. Dexter.

Q. Profession? A. Attorney at law.

Q. You are at present postmaster in
Dexter? A. I am.

Q. And have been for how long? A.
Aboul 13 years.

Q. Now, Mr. Dearth, you have lived
in Dexter practically all your life? A.
20 years.

Q. Just tell what you know about
conditions it Dexter? A. Well, the con-
ditions in Dexter relative to the en-
forcement of the prohibitory law since
January 1st, unquestionably have been
very much anproved. Prior to January
1st, there were places in Dexter com-
tnonly known and called as open places.
1 don’'t mean by that saloons or rum
shops as such, hut there were undoubi-
edly intoxicating liquors sold there, as
sort of a side line, in connection with
cther business. Since the 4th day of
Januury, on which day the sheriff made
seizures in Bangor, I believe and know,
s0 far as an honest belief will result
in knowledge, that since that time there
has been no place in Dexter where in-
toxicating liguor has been sold open-
1y. It there has been any sale of liquor
since that time it has been in a clan-
destine manner, and there has been
ne change since that date. I don’t think
that during Mr. Emerson’'s administra-
tion there have bheen actually any
searches and seizures in Dexter, be-
vause the effect of the searches that
he made in Bangor on the 4th day of
January was such that there has seem-
ed®to te no immediate occasion for it
up to thie present time.

. Your testimony and observation
all relates to Dexter? A. I have so
testified.

ARTEMAS WEATHERBEE,
for the defense, sworn,
questions by Mr. Thompson,
as follows:

Q. You are an attorney at law?
I am.

Q.

called
in answer to
testified
A,

And trial justice at the present
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time in the town of Lincoln? A, Yes,
sir.
Q. Now, Mr. Weatherbee, will you

kindly tell the convention in your own
way just what the conditions are in
Lincoln, and incidentally, if you re-
member, tell us how many searches
and seizures have been made this
yvear? A, There have bcen five
=earches and seizures made this year.
We had at least three open places
there upon the first day of January,
and two of them have been completcely
cloged. One of the sellers is now in
jail, the other went completely out of
Business. The other one is under in-
dictment, and there was a search and
seizure at his place of husiness about
a week ago; I don’t know whether he
js in business now or not. The gen-
eral condition is a great deal better
than it has been before for years.

Q.
-—do you act as magistrate in all the
drunk cases in the town of Lincoln
and vieinity? A. I do, yes.

Q. How are they, Mr. Weatherbee,
in comparison with some time ago?
A, T should say that they were less
than formerly.

Q. And on the whole, sn far as you
have obsorved, you would say that
conditions are much better than they
had been previously. A. Decidedly
80, ves sir.

Cross-Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. You have a deputy sheriff there
at Linceln? A, Yes, sir.

&Q. And you and he work together
to cleose up these places? A, Yes,
gir.

Q. You bhelieve in full enforcement
of the prohibitory law? A. T do.

Q. And have had a deputy sherifr
there at Lincoln this year who would
work with vou? A. Yes, sir.

MERRITT C. FERNALD, called for
the defense, sworn, in answer to
questions by Mr. Thompson, testificd
as follows:

Q. Your profession? A. Educator,
retired from active service.

Q. You were formerly president of
the University of Maine? A. I was.

Q. And you reside at Orono? A.
Orono.

Q. Dr. Fernald, vou are about the

Do vou have all the drunk cases,
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streets of QOrono quite a bit, going
about from place to place? A. I go
about freely.

Q. Now, Dr. Fernald, will you
kindly deseribe to the conventioa in

your own way the conditions in Orono
as they now are? A, In my judg-
ment, and from a limited observation,
I am satisfied that conditions are very
much better than they have been. 1
think there has Dbeen a large im-
provement since the first day of Jan-
uary, and if T am permitted to tell my
story in my own way I will endeavor
to fortify it. All my experience that
1 have had with the places where in-
toxicating liquors are sold 1is very
slight indeed. In fact I have rarely
been into places where Intoxicating
liquors are sold, but a few weeks ago
I had occasion to look up a man for
o little service, and I was told that he
was not employed, and could usually
be found in one of two rum shops,
and I ventured to try to go in—I
would heartily admit that that was
falling from grace—but I went in and
found this man, or attempted to T
went to one of the places and I found
it closed, locked, barred. I didn’t
quite understand how that had come

about until subsequently. I went to
the other place and found my mamn.

and got him out, told him T could put
him into better business, and this
second place, T am informed, has since
Leen closed.

Now there are two places that are
cloged, and from the impressions that
1 have gained on the street, I have
been satisfied that the conditions in
regard to the sale of intoxicating li-
¢quor have changed very materially
since the first of January from the
quiet on the streets, and the absence
of those who are intoxicated or semi-
intoxicated. That is from my obser=
vations.

Now I sought to confirm or disprove
my own impressions by inquiry from
certain gentlemen in the town, prom-
inent in the town, known to many of

you—
Judge CLIAVES: This is very in-
terosting, but his conversation with

men however prominent ought not to
he made a subject of testimony.
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The SPEAKER: It is against the
rules of evidence, Dr. Fernald, that is
the difficulty about it, to state what
other people have told you. Your ob-
servations and your own knowledge
are perfectly admissible, but what
other people told vou they must tell
us themselves.

WITNESS: I wanted to confirm it
by the Catholic Priest, who knows
Orono-—

The SPEAKER: It wouldn’'t he ad-
missible evidence.

Witness: And by other parties.
Well, you have the result of my own
observation, and I believe it is cor-
rect, and it has been fully confirmed
by those with whom it has been my
privilege to confer upon the subject.

Cross-Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. With the exception of thig one.
place that you have spoken of, hav:
you ever been inside of any bar room
or liguor place in Orono or elsewhere?
A. Not knowingly except of cours
in the earlier years 1 have been into
the hotels.

Q. I mean, within the last 10 or a
dozen vyears, we will say? A. Well,
the last half dozen years.

Q. And this man that you were
looking for, you say you found him
and got him out and told him you
could put him into Dbetter business,
had been drinking at that time? A,
1 don’t think he had been; I would
make no implication in regard to that
man.

Q. And upon this occasion when
you went into this place was it fitted
up and apparently being used as 2
bar room at that time? A. I iidn’t
observe; I didn’t look about to see
whether there were fittings or not; I
went after my man, and when I got
him I was satisfied; but the place has
been closed I am informed since, and
it has been notorious.

CHARLES E. RACKLIFFE, called
and sworn, testified as follows:
By Mr. Thompson.
Q. What is your name? A, Charles

E. Rackliffe.
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Q. And you reside where? A.
Old Town.

Q. You are a deputy sheriff? A.
I am.

Q. How long have you been a dep-
uty sheriff? A. I was a deputy

sheriff six years under Sheriff Gilman.
Q. And then you were out four
vears under White? A. Yes, sir.
Q.. Ar}d you have been deputy
sheriff since the first of January last?

A. T have.

Q. Now, Mr. Rackliffe, have you
been connected with the B. & A.
strike? A. 1 have.

Q. Where have you been working

during that time? A. I have been to
Millinocket, Northern Maine Junction
and Old Town.

.Q. I want you to tell this conven-
tion in your own way just what you
have done in regard to the enforce-
ment of the liquor law in the city of
Old Town? A. Well, T have had some-
where, as near as my memory serves
me, in the neighborhood of 25 war-
rants. I think that I have been sun-
cessful in nine of these. These that
I have been successful in the court
has imposed a fine of $100 and costs
and 60 days in jail, and 60 days addi-
tional on the non-payment of the fine
and costs; and during that time there
have been 12 or 14 places which were
selling liquor that have closed up
their places of business ang gone out
of the liquor business.

Q. Can you give the names of the
people who have gone out of the liquor

business? A. I can; that is, T have
them on the list in my pocket. I
might call them from memory, but

probably I might go over them quicker
by looking at the list which I have
here. Lewis Jam, Fred Lovejoy, Wil-
liam Tier, William Fisher, Frank Mil-
ler, John F. Kennedy, Joseph Rich,
John English, Charles Perry, Joseph
Boulier, Sr., Joseph P. Boulier—and
this fellow went out, Mike Sherry, and
the other one went out before I came
into office, Michaud.

Q. What about the number of
searches? Have you searched a greut
many places in 0Old Town? A, I have
searched them.
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Q. Have you ever asked the ;heriff
for assistance or to assist you in this
work? A. I have.

Q. What has been the result? A.
The first time he sent up a man, a
deputy by the name of Mullin who
was with me a few days and then he
sent up a, man by the name of Trask,
and the deputy from Orono, Davis.

(Document put in and marksd re-
spondent’s exhibit B.)

Q. I hand you paper marked re-
spondent’'s exhibit B and ask vyou if
that is a certified copy of the .ecord
of the liquor cases for the past three
months in the town of Old Town, or
before the Old Town municipal court?
A. T should say it was, nearly all the
cases; that is, all up to that time per-
haps.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Clesaves.

Q. Thesge places were running
pretty fairly open when you went int?
office the first of January? A. They

were, yes, sir.

Q. And were pretty notorious as
liquor places? A, Yes, sir.

Q. And you started in making
seizures? A. I did as soon as i
could.

Q. And followed them up? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. And kept at them? A, Yes,
sir.

Q. And sent to Bangor and  got
help? A, Yes, sir,

Q. When did these places go out of
business, how recently? A. There

has been none go out in the last two
weeks, except by hearsay—I hear
there are two that have gone out sinca2
that time, but none of those that 1
have read.

Q. But you gradually kept at them
until about two weeks ago you got
them all out of business? A. All those
that I have told you about.

ALBIOXN OAKES, called and sworn,
testified as follows:

By Mr. Thompson.

Q. What is your name? A. Al-
bion Oakes.

Q. Where do you live? A. Mil-
ford.

Q. That is right aeross the river
from Old Town? A, 1t is.

Q. Mr. Oakes, will vou give the
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convention the result of your observa-
tion in the past three months in re-
gard to the liquor law in Old Town an i
vicinity? A. I think in Old Town the
liquor situation is being cleaned uw
very nicely, and in Milford I consider
it is entirely cleaned up. There are
no open places in Milford today.

Q. And were there some sometime
ago? A. There has been a hotel
where liquor has ben sold almost con-
tinuously for—well, nearly as long as
I can remember.

Q. And that is out of business
now? A. That is out of business
since the raid of January 4th.

(Cross examination waived.)

GEORGE W. HATHORN, called
sworn, testified as follows:
By Mr. THOMI'SONXN:

Q. What is your name
Hathorn.

Q. And your residence?

Q. You are one of the
missioners of Penobscot
Yes, sir.

Q. How
A. On an
sometimes more.

And you have to go through Old Town?
A. Most always.

Q. And you are about Old
good deal? A. Yes.

Q. And you come down on the steam
cars as a rule, do you? A. Yes.

Q. And you have to walk up Exchange
street and State street and up Hammond
street to the court house? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where your office is? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now Mr, Hathorn, will vou kindly
give this convention what your opinion
is in regard to conditions all along the
line from Milford to the court house?

Mr. CLEAVES: I object to his stat-
ing his opinion.

The SPEAKER: He does not probably
mean that. You can give your observa-
tions and not your opinions.

Mr. TEHIOMPSON: I meant to
stated that.

A, There is only one thing in particu-
lar that I have noticed, that is, I would
#ay that I haven’t seen as much drunk-
ennesg in that period as there formerly
was; I haven’'t observed it on the street.

Q. What about Milford? A. Well, we
have only had, as Mr. Oakes testified just

and

A, George W.
A. Milford.
county com-

county? Al

often do you go to Bangor.
average of twice a week, and

Town a

have
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now, one place that ever I knew up
there of late years where they . sold lig-
uor. I have understood, although 1
never have been in there myself to see
from my observation, but I have under-

stood that that man had gone out of
business.
Q. What about Old Town? A. 1

couldnt’ say about Old Town, only what
I have heard.
Cross-Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. What is the name of this man they
put out of business at your town? A.
In Milford?

Q. Yes. A. I think his name is Ma-
dore; he kept hotel there.

Q. Did he go down to Bangor? A. 1
don’t think so. I think he is keeping ho-
tel there now.

Q. When you go from the railroad sta-
tion up Exchange street, how far do you
go before you come to your office, or
turn off to go to it? A. We go up about
the full length of Exchange street there
until after you get up to State street and
then I turn to the left and go across the
bridge and right up Hammond street to
the court house.

Q. Now upon any of your journeys
have you ever been into McNamara’s
place this year? A. I think I was in
there once.

Q. When was that? A. I think it was
the first time I came over here this win-
ter at some committee hearing; I should
gay it was in January sometime.

Q. Pretty well stocked bar room at
that time? A. I didn’t go into it; I
didn’t go back where the bar was at all.

Q. Have you upon any of your trips to
the office been into any of the places for
the purpose of observing whether they
had a bar or not, and if so, what kind of
a bar? A. No, sir; I have not.

Q. So that your entire observation has
been merely as you have walked along
the street in the forenoon up to your
place of business and back down the
street along towards night to take your
train? A. Yes, sir.

NORMAN A. SMITH recalled, testified
as follows:

By Mr. THOMPSON:

Q. Captain Smith, you heard Mr. Ed.
H. Emery testify this morning, didn’t
you? A, 1 did.
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Q. He testified that on March I4th he
went to Bangor and went into . I Mec-
Namara's place on Exchange street.
Now do you Kknow where P. H. DMc-
Namara’s place is? A. I do, sir.

Q. That is, the place to which he re-
ferred A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, had there been a fire in that
place about that time? A. There was a
fire there the last of February I think it
was, if my memory serves me right, I
couldn’t give you the exact date.

Q. On March 14th was P. FH. DMec-
Namara’s place running? A. I couldn’t
say as to the 14th. I went on that beat
on the 18th, and he was closed then.

Q. And had he been closed? A. Yes,
there was a whole Dblock that closed;
they were looking it over for repairs.

Q. And that was all burned out? A.
It was all burned out and a board across
the door.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Cleaves.

Q. Places right in that same locality
that were then running as open shops?
A. What is that?

Q. Places right in that locality that
were then running as open rum shops?
A. It is in the same place.

Q. You don’t understand me. At the
time you say that MecNamara’s place
was closed for repairs there were in that
same locality other places running as
open rum shops? A. Not in that block.

Q. In that same locality? A. Yes,
above there.

Mr. THOMPSON: How far above was
the nearest one? A. I should say it would
be 150 feet for a guess.

George W. Stearns, called and sworn,
testified as follows:

By Mr THOMPSON.

Q. What is your name? A. George W.
Stearns.

Q. And ‘you reside where? A. At
Milinocket.
Q. You are judge of the Millinocket

municipal court? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been judge of
that court? A, Four years mnearly; four
years the 15th of next July.

Q. Will you tell the convention about
the conditions in Millinocket, and tell
about the court work? A. Can I refer
to notes I have here?

Q. Yes, certainly. A. Since Januars
1st, 1913, from our court there has beer
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issued,—from the Millinocket municipal
court there has been issued 28 search
and seizure warrants, of which 12 were
returned with no liquors found; eight
cases were convictions and fined $100 and
costs which were paid; four were con-
tinued for sentence on the respondent
taking an oath never to engage in the
sale of intoxicating ligquors again so long
as he should live; two were acquitted;
and in two cases no arrests were made;
those were ‘‘persons unknown’’ warrants,
There were two illegal possession war-
rants issued; one case continued and an-
other case acquitted; two illegal trans-
portation warrants, one continued, and
one paid $50 and costs.

Q. Now you live right there in the
town of Millinocket? A. I have for the
last 13 years; yes, sir.

Q. State to the convention your ob-
servation of the conditions there for the
last three months? A, Why, the condi-
tions are very good at Millinocket at the
present time; of course there is pocket
peddling there, but no open bar rooms.
There are those—I imagine, I think, I
know in fact, at the present time there
are those who are engaged surreptitiously

in the sale of intoxicating liquors, bhut
not openly.

Q. Have conditions improved tihere
lately? A. Very much,

Cross-Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. You find, do you not, when you
have a deputy sheriff in your town who
really means to close up liguor saloons,

that you can work with him and make
the town pretty dry? A. My experience
has heen confined mostly to association

with Mr. Gates, and I find that he has
been very efficient.

Q. And working with him in the way
he worked, vou closed them up tight?
A Well, we closed them up, as I have
«described. Tt is not closed. But the open
bar rooms are closed.

Q. There are no open places? A
These places referred to are open by
claiming to be doing other business. T

do not think that intoxieating liquors,
oither than Uno Leer are sold there.
Q. It has been your experience in this

matter with a good denuty you  can
make the town pretty ncariy dry? AL
Yes, very satisfactory.
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Re-direct by Mr. Thompson.

Q. You are judge of that court? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. This Uno beer is not seizable? A.
No, sir.

John A. Harlow, called and sworn, tes-
tified as follows:

By Mr. THOMPSON.

Q. What is your name? A. John A.
tiarlow.
Q. And your business? A, Assistant

superintendent of a pulp mill at Great
Works,

Q. That is in Old Town?
of ‘Old Town.

Q. Will you state in your own way
the conditions in your part of the town
where the mill is at the present time?
A. At the present time I do not know
of any places running open. There may
be some pocket peddling and some dives
at present. I do not know of any openu
places running in that ward near the
mill,

A, One ward

Q. Are there any dives about your
place where people hide liquors? A,

There is one place where the owner hid
two or three barrels of bottled beer some
time during the winter under an old mill
which was not used except in the sum-
mer. The hide was discovered by the
men working there and the beer sgcized.

Q. 'What do you say as to the con-
ditions as they are there now? A, I
think the conditions are very much
better than last year, especially in the
last four weeks.

(Cross-examination waived.)

CHARLES J. HUTCHINS,
and sworn, testified as follows:

By Mr. Thompson.

Q. What is your full name? A.
Charles J. Hutchins.

Q. And vour residence? A,
er.

Q. You have lived there sometime?
A. I have,

Q. You heard the testimony
today? 1 heard most of it,

Q. You are an attornev-at-law?
A, T am,

Q. Kindly tell us in yvour own wav
in regard to conditions in Drewer?
A Well, T believe that in  Brewer
proper today and for the past thres
manths there are no places  <ellin:
any lirquor except possibly the druz

called

Brew-

1

nere

A
A
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stores. I think there

are no open
bars in Brewer proper. About the
drug stores I do not know whether

they are selling or not. I am aot in-
formed. In South Brewer about two
and a half miles from Brewer proper
I think there are two or three places
possibly where it is reputed liquor s
sold. That is the extent of my in-
formation.

Q. What do you say about condi-
tions? A. ‘I think the conditions are
very excelelent in Brewer, indeed.

Q. What do you mean by very ex-
cellent? A, 1 think in times past n
Brewer there have been places where
liguor was sold. At present I 1o not
think there are places except possibly
the exception of the drug stores, and
I do not know about that. 1 think
there are no places where liquor is
sold.

Cross- Examination by Judge Cleaves.

Q. Your observation having cov-
ered a period of years, have you no-
ticed that the open sale of liquor in
Bangor rather has the effect of mak-
ing Brewer dry? A. I don’t thinx
it has any effect on Brewer. I have
not noticed that it had.

Q. Brewer is right near?
across the river.

Q. So that if Bangor is
‘does not make so much difference
about Brewer? A. 1 do not Kknow
that it makes any difference in Brewer
what the conditions are in Bangor.

Q. Then you think if there were
two towns snug together, one license
and the other no license, that it would
not make any difference to the no li-
cense town? A, 1 am not going i
give vou my opinion. T am telling
vou about the conditions in Brewer.
1 do not think they are affected by the
conditions in Bangor.

WALTER A. TRASK,
sworn, testified as follows:

By Mr. Thompson.

Q. What is your full namn? A,
Walter A. Trask,

Q. And where do you live? A.
Hampden.

Q. And how far from Bangor? A.
Trive miles, on the car line.

Q. Are you a deputy sheriif? A
I am.

A, Yes.

open it

called and

in
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Q. And one of the
A, Tam.

Q. Now, Mr, Trask, how many days
if you remember were you employed

on the B, & A. railroad? A. Five
days.

ligquor squad?

L]

Q. Have you been out of town at
all? A. 1 have.

Q. Where have you been? A.
0Old Town.

Q. What for? A. 1 was up there
to assist Mr. Rackliffe in searching for
liquors.

Q. Have you been to Brewar? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us what happened in Brew-
er? A. I went down to Brewer one
evening to serve a writ, and I stopper
in the house a little longer than I ex-
pected to and missed my car. I came
out on the street and went into a
cigar store to get a match to re-light
my cigar. On getting in there I
heard noises down below, people talk-
ing. I mistrusted there was a bhar
room there. I made the remark to a
fellow there, the fellow that sold the
cigars, and he says “Yes,”’ and 1 said,
“How long have you been running a
bar here,” and he said, “Quite a
while,” I don’t remember exactly. I
said that I guessed I would go down
and see what was doing. 1 went down
below and there were perhaps half a
dozen fellows there, and liquor set-
ting on the table. Of course I had no
warrant and I simply asked him what
was in the bottles, and he told me,
and I said that I should have to take
them. I took them and brought them
to Bangor and I placed him under ar-
rest and he was sentenced by the
court.

Q. Will you state to the convention
what your experience is lately in re-
gard to hides? A. We have found
hides in different places in Bangor.
On Third street I remember a dwell-
ing house, the number I do not re-
member, just beyond Mr. Foley’s store
on the right, J. Edward Foley's on
Third street. We went in there and
we found a jug of whiskey and gin

Tu

and different kinds of liquor in the
kitchen. We asked if there was a
cellar, and the lady said there was
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not, We looked around and found a
trap door that we could lift up, and
we went down and hunted arouni
and in a pile of wood we found a keg
of beer or ale.

Q. Now have you discovered any
watchers as you go about searching?
A. T have, sir.

Q. Tell the convention about them?®
A. We had a warrant for J. Edward
Foley’s store. There were three of us
going up. We were walking up Third
street and a hack came along driving
fast, and as it got to the store a fel-
low jumped out and went in and the
hack went on, and they ran their
horses to get there ahead of us. At
another place, Mrs. Conova's, there
was a fellow there whom we saw giv-
ing a sign. At 33 Hancock Place thera
is a place where as you go by thera
is always a fellow on watch. At the
St. James Hotel there is always a
fellow in the window watching. And
at different places, I do not think of
them now.

Q. What have you taken, Mr. Dep-
uty Sheriff, when you have made these
searches and seizures, what have you
taken? A. I have taken all the
liquor that was in sight, when e had
a search warrant, all we could find.
When it was a seizure T think we took
away whatever was before us.

Q. Has the sheriff assisted vou in
any searches? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What have been his intructions
to yvou? A. His instructions have
been to me always to enforce the law
and never to leave anything, but take
everyhting that we found.

Q. Do you remember, Mr. Trask,
how many places in Bangor you have
searched in the last three months? A.
I have not kept count. You mniean
searches separate from seizures?

. How many have you had war-
rants for? A. I should say some-
where arcund or 100. I couldn’t
tell exactly.

Q. Do you go around about these
places a good deal? A. Yes, sir.
). And go into them quite

quently? A, Yes, sir.

Q. What do you do in those places?
A. T go into those places and look
around and see what they are doing,
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and if there is anything
take it.

Q. Do you do that practically all
day? A. When I am not doing other
things, I look about and I also get the
numbers of different places to take in-
to the sheriff’s office.

Q. Do you consider you are doing
all that_ you can? A. I certainly do.

Q. Of course you could not give the
convention an idea o f how many
places you have visited in the last
three menths with or without war-
rants? A. It seems to me I have
visited about all of them. Of course
there may be some that I have not.
When I began business in Bangor I
was a perfectly new man in that line
of work and had to get acquainted
with the different places, and of
course in doing seizing I have started
out and travelled from place to place.
In lots of places there would be noth-
ing in sight, and in the others I would
seize something.

Cross-Examination by Judge Cleaves.
Q. Say in the month of March, af-

in sight I

ter vou sort of learned your way
around, how many times have you
been into McNamara’'s place, A. T

have been in there I should say twice.
Q. Ever see anything? A. I never
did, sir.
Q. And any of these places marked
in red above there, have you been in

any of them since the month of
March? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tver see anything? A. Yes, sir,
Q. In what places? A, In the

month of March the sheriff and I and
Mr. Spratt made seizures in those
places.

Q. In the Bastern Eating House?

A, That is on the left-hand side of
HExchange sireet going toward the sta-
tion?

Q. In either of those places that
vou have been into, in the month of
March, did you see anything? A. Mr.
Victor Chassen’s place, we went into
all those places In Chassen's place
we found something and also in the
eating place.

Q. In what other places
vou find anything in the
March? A. At Buckley’s.

here did
month of
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Q. Is he before you get to Hancock
street? A, No, sir; below.

Q. Between Hancock and Washing-
ton? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What other places? A. Vie. Fo-
ley’s, on the corner, we went in there
and looked around. That is on the
corner of York and Exchange streets.

Q. Away up here? (Indicating on
plan.) A. Yes, sir.

Q. You looked around. Did you
find anvthing? A. No, sir; there

wasn’t anything in sight.

Q. Did yeu go into the Golden Oak?
A. Yes, sir.

Q). And did you see anything there?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many times did you go in?
A. We seized all they had and took it

away, and I haven’t been in there
since.

Q. What time was that? A1
can’'t tell, but sometime in the month
of March.

Q. What is the man’s name? A,

Augustine MclIntyre.

Q. Did that fellow
ruptey? A. I don't know.

Q. Have you ever been in the place
right opposite during the month of
March? A. Whose place is it?

Q. I haven’t been in Bangor very
much and you have. Don’t you know
where there is a liguor saloon pretty
nearly opposite the Gelden Oak? A,
You mean the Manhattan Cafe, do

go into Bank-

vou? )
Q. Yes. A. I have mnot been in
there. That is one of the places I

haven’t been into.

Q. Have you in the month of March
been in the Shack or either of the two
adjoining places? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you make a seizure? A. 1
said T hadn’t been in there.

Q. Have you beenin that place dm:—
jing the month of March? A. T haven’'t
been in the Jameson place~yes,.1
have been in there in March and in
the places adjoining.

Q. In the month A.
Yes, sir.

Q. Have you bheen

of March?

in the place on

Franklin street in the month of
March? A. Yeu mean Peter MceAu-
ley’'s?

Q). Yes. A. Yes,
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Q. Did you seize anything? A. XNo,
sir; it was all cleaned out.

Q. The place pretty nearly opposite
on Central street, one of the Jame-
son's? A, Joe Jameson, do you mean
on Hammond street?

Mr. THOMPSON: Fred Johnson, he
means. A, TFred Johnson’s—I have
not been in there sir. Excuse me, I
have been into the place. I take my
dinners upstairs in the dining room.
the lower part I wasn't in, haven’'t
been near during the month of March
at all.

Q. Have you been to this place on
the cornmer of State and Main street
during the month of March at all? A.
you mean Joe Jameson’s, I have, ves,
sir.

Q. Did you see anything? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Make a seizure? A, I did.

Q. Was that one of the seizures
or did you make a search? A. No,

that was a seizure.

Q. T don’t understand in regard to
that. If I understand vyour position
correctly, when you go into a place
without a warrant, you feel that vou
have a right to seize all that there is
in sight that you don’t seas¥ch for. A.
Yes, sir.

Q. Now has it ever occurred to you
when you went into one of those
places and found a lot of stuft stuck
up behind the bar, something in the
bar, that it would ke a good idea for
vou to stay right there where that
stuff was and have a warrant secured

to search so that you could get all
that there was there. A, Well I
didn't do that Mr.

Q. Did it occur to you? A, I don't

as it did.

know
And at the end of three months”

Q.
service, that has never been done by
you? A, No, sir, it has not.

Q. Had you done that your search
would have disclosed and given vou
the opportunity to take away all that

there was in that kind of place,
wouldn't it? A, T presume it would.
Q. And you didn't do it? A. No,
sir.

Q. Have you heen during the month
)]

of March in the Holland place? A, 1
have, sir.
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Q. Make a seizure? A. I did, sir.

). Was a search and seizure? A,
seizure,

Q. Seizure? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And have you been in the Crowe
place next to it, or next on this plan?
A. I have, yes, sir.

Q. And did you make a seizure? A,
No, sir.

Q. And find anything?
a search warrant.

Q. And did you
Yes, sir.

Q. Did you take away anything? A.
Yes, sir.

Q. And the warrant that is produced
to the court will show what you took,
what you got? A. I presume it will sir.

Q. And did you go to the place next
helow on this plan to Cox’s restaurant?
A, I have heen in there.

Q. In March? A. Yes, sir. There were
no liquors in sight. I had no search
warrant.

Q. When you started out that day to
g0 to the Cox place, did vou have an
idea that you might want to look it
over a little? A. Well, I was going
around seing how things looked in the
city of Bangor and of course in going
down, I went into all of these places,
some I caught, some I dirdn’'t cateh.

Q. When vou started out that partic-
ular day, did vou have 4 single search
warrant of any sort? A. I did not
sir,

Q. As a resuit of anything that vou
saw in the Cox place, did you after-
wards during the menth of March,
taking any scarch warrant and go out?
A. T did not sir.

Q. But did you make a seizure that
day? A. In that place?

Q. Yes. A. No, sir, not in thatp lace.
I made no seizure, there was nothing
in sight, sir.

Q. Did vou see anything that led you
to helieve that Mr. Cox was doing a
liquor business? A. Well T saw nothing
around there, he had bheczun selling li-
quor, whether he was gelling it then 1
did not know.

Q. And his place was still open? A.
His place was open.

Q. Did he have a har-tender there,
some one behind the bar, some one in
charge apparently keeping the place
open? A, Yes.

A, We had

find anything? A.

£
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Q. And thereafterwards, during the
entire month of March, did you take
out any swarrant, or do you know of
the sheriff’s department taking out any
warrant to search that place? A. Not
to my knowledge. Might have done it
when I wasn't there. I know nothing
of it.

Q. Have you taken out a search war-
rant to s2arch any of these places in
Haymarket square which appear on
this plan, during the month of March?
A, Well, now, I am not positive about
that Mr. -— I didn’t keep those records,
1 know we have been down there.

Q. Do vou keep any diary of what
vou were doing? A. No sir, I do not
but there is a dairy kept in the office.

Q. Is the man here who has got it,
the man in Augusta? Who is the
man? What is his name that keeps
the diary? A, Why, it is kept by the
gir]l, I thiak, or Mr. Spratt, one of
them, I don't know who keeps it. I
think likely it may be kept—

Q. Going around with your associ-
ates, liquor deputies, don’t vou know
who it is that makes the record of what
you do? A. I see two people working
on the books.

Q. I am not talking about books, I
am talking about a diary. Do you keep
any personal diary, or do yeu know!
of any of your associates who do? A.
Yesg, there is a diary kept in this office
and Mr. Spratt has it. And it is kept by
him and the stenographer whom we
have in the deputy sheriff’s office.

Q. Mr. Spratt here? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well now, during the month of
darch have vou taken out anyv search
warrants against any of the places
shown on the map within the space
marked Devil's Half-Acre. A. Yes, sir.

Q. What place? A. Well now the
name I don't remember. I know we
went to this place and if I remember
now it comes to me this stuff wag
feund in a hide upstairs, I think it was
under the stair. I wouldn’t say for
sure, but it was found. We hunted
there a long while and when we found
the stuff this man, well I think he left
the house before we found the stuff,
and then after swe found it, we tried to
find him, and he had gone, left the
town well, he hadn’t left the town then
hut he had left the building so we
couldn’t find him.
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Q. Now

vou speak about some
searches over on Third street where
you found a keg of beer in the wood-

pile? A, Yes.

Q. 'Mird street is not shown on this
plan at all, is it? A. Why I presume so
sir, I don’t know. I have not studied
your plan.

Q. Well, will vou step round here
and look and see if you find it any-
where. A. No it is not there.

Q. So that wherever Third street is
it is farther away than this plan
shows? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And two of the searches or seiz-
ures whichever it may have been, which
you have testified to, were made upon
Thirg street were they? A. This house
was on Third street.

Q. And the store that you speak of,
Toley’s, that was on Third street—it
is a grocery? A. It is a grocery, and
he has the name of selling liquor. I
think he did, and this house—

Q. Wait just a minute before we
leave the grocery store. He has got
some groceries in it hasn’t he? A. Yes
sir,

Q. And how many times have
searched Mr. Foley’s grocery store

vou
this

year? A. Just once.
Q. Didn’t find anything there? A.
No sir. But we found indications of it.

There was where the wireless went in.

Q. Now 33 Hancock street is where?
A. Why it is right opposite the Penob-
scot Exchange.

Q. On this occasion you have spoken
of did you find anything? A. The first
time we went there with the search
warrant—

Q. I am speaking about this time
that you have testified to which was
in the month of March. Were you there
in March at all? A. At 33 Hancock?
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Q. Yes. A. T couldn’t say for sure
Mr.— when that last— We had two
warrants for that place. The rnrst we
wasn't successful and the last was.

Q. And you can’t remember whether
it was in March or not? A. Now let
me see.

Q. Whenever it was, since that suc-
cessful time, have you searched it
again? A. No sir.

Q. Now when was the search of the
St. James Hotel? A. We have made
two.

Q. When was the last one? A. The
last one was about the middle of March,
I should say.

Q. Was it sucesful? A,
sir.

Q. Have you searched it since? A.
No sir.

Q. Now was there a seizure that
vou and Mr. Spratt took part in which
related to one Holland? A. Yes sir.

Q. And did you go there upon com-

It was not,

plaint? A. Yes sir.
Q. And was it at Mr. Holland’s
house? A. Yes sir.

Q. And who made the complaint to
you? A. TUlysses G. Mudgett.
Q. And upon that complaint and that

warrant, what did you find? A. At the
house?
Q. Yes. A, Well, we found—well,

now I can't tell you just what we did
find.

Q. Well a very small quantity of
hard liquor in some bottles? A. Well
there was—

Mr. MOREY of Androscoggin: Mr.
President, I rise to a point of order.
I think if we are to listen to evidence.
there should be a quorum present.

On motion by Senator Morey of An-
drescoggin, the convention took a recess
until tomorrow morning at half past
nine.





